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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

9:05 a.m.: 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: The next cause before the 

Commission i s Case Number 14,000. I t ' s the de novo 

A p p l i c a t i o n of Harvey E. Yates Company f o r expansion of a 

u n i t area i n Otero County, New Mexico. 

Are counsel present f o r t h i s case? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are you ready t o proceed? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, why don't we begin w i t h 

the e n t r y of appearance by counsel? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, Jim Bruce of Santa Fe, 

repr e s e n t i n g Harvey E. Yates Company. I have two 

witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Mikal Altomare on behalf of O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n . I have one witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Since i t ' s Yates' A p p l i c a t i o n , 

I assume you're going t o begin, Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I would p r e f e r t o , s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

Ms. Altomare, d i d you — ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I j u s t — I guess you're — 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, do you have an 

opening statement? 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I ' d p r e f e r j u s t t o 

proceed w i t h my witnesses. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. Altomare, do you 

have an opening statement, or would you l i k e t o reserve i t 

f o r the beginning of your case? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I ' d l i k e t o reserve i t f o r the 

beginning of my case. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, you sa i d you had 

two witnesses? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: W i l l they a t t h i s time stand 

t o be sworn? 

(Thereupon, the Applicant's witnesses were 

sworn.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, are you ready t o 

begin? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

VERNON D. DYER, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. W i l l you s t a t e your name f o r the record? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 A. I t ' s Vernon D. Dyer. 

2 Q. And what i s your occupation? 

3 A. I'm a landman, petroleum landman. 

4 Q. For the Commission, would you please summarize 

5 your educational and employment background? 

6 A. I have a bachelor's degree w i t h a t r i p l e major i n 

7 geology, business and h i s t o r y . I've done graduate work a t 

8 Texas Tech. 

9 My background, I've been i n the o i l i n d u s t r y f o r 

10 41 years. I worked f o r Texaco a l i t t l e over 11 years, then 

11 went w i t h Santa Fe Energy and worked w i t h them t i l l I took 

12 e a r l y r e t i r e m e n t i n '95. Moved t o Roswell, went t o work 

13 f o r Harvey E. Yates i n '98, and l a s t Wednesday I r e t i r e d 

14 from Harvey E. Yates. 

15 Q. Have you been r e t a i n e d by Harvey E. Yates Company 

16 f o r the purposes of t h i s hearing? 

17 A. Yes, I have. 

18 Q. Now your jobs w i t h Texaco, Santa Fe Energy and 

19 Heyco, have you been a landman f o r a l l of those companies? 

20 A. Yes, I have. 

21 Q. And p r i m a r i l y i n the Permian Basin of west Texas 

22 and southeast New Mexico? 

23 A. P r i m a r i l y , yes. 

24 Q. And a t Heyco were you the landman i n charge of 

25 the Bennett Ranch Unit? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 A. When I came on board, yes, I took over the 

2 Bennett Ranch U n i t . 

3 Q. And are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the land matters 

4 invo l v e d i n t h i s A p p l ication? 

5 A. Yes, I am. 

6 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I ' d tender Mr. Dyer as 

7 an expert petroleum landman. 

8 MS. ALTOMARE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Noting no o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Dyer 

10 w i l l be so accepted as an expert petroleum landman. 

11 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Dyer, could you i d e n t i f y 

12 Heyco E x h i b i t 1 f o r the Commission? 

13 A. I t ' s the land map of the u n i t , being — the blue 

14 o u t l i n e i s the u n i t e x i s t i n g now, the orange o u t l i n e i s the 

15 proposed u n i t o u t l i n e . 

16 Q. What type of lands are w i t h i n the u n i t area? 

17 A. State and f e d e r a l . 

18 Q. And t h a t would p e r t a i n t o both the e x i s t i n g u n i t 

19 and the u n i t as i t may be expanded? 

20 A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. I n loo k i n g a t the area around the u n i t , s t a r t i n g 

22 o f f w i t h Township 26 South, Range 12 East, Section 16, what 

23 type of land i s that? 

24 A. That i s s t a t e acreage, s t a t e mineral owner. 

25 Q. And i f you look on the very southeast corner of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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the u n i t , there's a Section 32, which I b e l i e v e i s 2 6 

South, 13 East. What type of land i s t h a t ? 

A. That i s also s t a t e minerals. 

Q. What type of land i s — are a l l of the r e s t of 

the sections a d j o i n i n g the u n i t area as expanded? 

A. I t i s f e d e r a l acreage c o n t r o l l e d by the BLM. 

Q. What i s the status of a l l of the — oh, and then 

i f you go t o , excuse me, 25 South — I f o r g o t , t h e r e i s one 

a d d i t i o n a l t h i n g , 25 South, 12 East, Section 36, j u s t t o 

the n o r t h of the u n i t , what type of land i s t h a t ? I s t h a t 

s t a t e land? 

A. That's s t a t e land. 

Q. Okay. Now what i s the s t a t u s of a l l of the 

acreage a d j o i n i n g the expanded u n i t , i n s o f a r as the l e a s i n g 

s t a t u s goes? 

A. A l l of i t i s unleased except Section 34 i n 12-26, 

and Heyco has the o i l and gas lease on t h a t . 

Q. Okay, so the only o f f s e t s are the BLM, the State 

Land O f f i c e and Heyco? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Except of course t o the south. What forms 

the southern boundary of the u n i t ? 

A. That i s the Texas s t a t e l i n e , and the land below 

t h a t i s u n i v e r s i t y lands. 

Q. Okay. How many w e l l s have been d r i l l e d t o date 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 i n the u n i t area? 

2 A. We have two completed w e l l s i n i t . 

3 Q. What type of w e l l s are they? O i l or gas? 

4 A. They're n a t u r a l gas. 

5 Q. What i s the OCD's w e l l spacing f o r gas w e l l s i n 

6 t h i s area a t t h i s time? 

7 A. 160 acres. 

8 Q. Okay. What has been Heyco's proposal w i t h 

9 respect t o w e l l s w i t h i n the u n i t area? 

10 A. I n our discussion w i t h the BLM we f e l t t h a t i t 

11 would be b e t t e r i f we j u s t d r i l l e d one per s e c t i o n a t t h i s 

12 time. Instead of t r y i n g t o go on a 160 basis, go ahead and 

13 go on a 64 0. The i n d i c a t i o n i s , the one w e l l would d r a i n 

14 the f u l l s e c t i o n . So t h a t ' s what we've been di s c u s s i n g 

15 w i t h the BLM. 

16 Q. Okay. And i s t h a t the reason — and — i s t h a t 

17 the reason f o r expanding the u n i t , t o include f u l l 

18 sections? 

19 A. Well, t o include the — or t o comply w i t h the OCD 

20 r u l e s of 160 and t o b r i n g i n the f u l l s e c t i o n - t y p e u n i t — 

21 Q. Okay — 

22 A. — or p r o r a t i o n u n i t . 

23 Q. — and t h a t i s the basic reason f o r the expansion 

24 of the u n i t ? 

25 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 2, Mr. Dyer? 

2 A. That i s the order from the OCD hearing — no — 

3 yeah, i t ' s the order from the OCD hearing i n 1995 f o r the 

4 o r i g i n a l establishment of the u n i t . 

5 Q. Okay, and i t approved the u n i t area f o r the lands 

6 described i n E x h i b i t A t o t h a t order, c o r r e c t ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Does the u n i t agreement — i s the u n i t agreement 

9 d e p t h - r e s t r i c t e d ? 

10 A. No, i t i s not. 

11 Q. So i t covers a l l formations? 

12 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. I s i t r e s t r i c t e d as t o type of hydrocarbons, o i l 

14 or gas? 

15 A. No, i t ' s not. I t ' s e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t , which means 

16 a l l — everything i s a v a i l a b l e . 

17 Q. Okay. What i s E x h i b i t 3? 

18 A. That i s the proposed — t h a t i s the acreage i n 

19 the proposed o u t l i n e of the expansion. 

20 Q. Okay, t h a t would be the complete d e s c r i p t i o n of 

21 the expansion? 

22 A. Right, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

23 Q. And what i s Heyco E x h i b i t 4? 

24 A. That i s the p r e l i m i n a r y approval from the State 

25 Land O f f i c e f o r us expanding the acreage, w i t h the caveat 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



13 

t h a t i t comes t o the BLM. 

Q. Or the OCD? 

A. The OCD, I'm sorry, yes. Thank you. Too many 

l e t t e r s . 

Q. And what i s E x h i b i t 5? 

A. That i s approval from the BLM f o r the expansion 

of the Bennett Ranch U n i t , without any co n d i t i o n s on i t . 

Q. And attached t o t h a t approval, i s th e r e a 

complete d e s c r i p t i o n , a new E x h i b i t B t o the u n i t agreement 

c o n t a i n i n g a complete d e s c r i p t i o n of a l l leases? 

A. Yes, there i s . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I j u s t n o t i c e d 

something. My copy of E x h i b i t 5 — and i t may be on yours 

— the very l a s t page of i t i s an e-mail from a c l i e n t , 

which I t h i n k you can s a f e l y — regarding some t i t l e 

i n f o r m a t i o n , t h a t I t h i n k you can s a f e l y take and throw 

away. I t wasn't meant t o be p a r t of t h i s e x h i b i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t 5? 

MR. BRUCE: E x h i b i t 5, yeah. Maybe i t wasn't on 

yours, but i t was on mine. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k the l a s t page I have 

on E x h i b i t 5 was j u s t the signature page — 

MR. BRUCE: Okay — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — from the — 

MR. BRUCE: — I must have go t t e n a l i t t l e t oo 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 e n t h u s i a s t i c w i t h the s t a p l e r i n my o f f i c e . 

2 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) F i n a l l y , i n s o f a r as your e x h i b i t s 

3 go, Mr. Dyer, were the BLM and the State Land O f f i c e 

4 n o t i f i e d of the o r i g i n a l D i v i s i o n Hearing i n t h i s matter? 

5 A. Yes, they were. 

6 Q. And i s t h a t r e f l e c t e d i n the a f f i d a v i t of n o t i c e 

7 submitted as E x h i b i t 6? 

8 A. Yes, i t i s . 

9 Q. And of course, as you p r e v i o u s l y t e s t i f i e d , the 

10 Land O f f i c e and the BLM would be the only o f f s e t s t o the 

11 u n i t as expanded? 

12 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Now j u s t a few more questions, Mr. Dyer. 

14 You s a i d two w e l l s have been d r i l l e d t o date i n 

15 the u n i t . Approximately when were those two w e l l s d r i l l e d ? 

16 A. One was d r i l l e d i n 1997, and the other was 

17 d r i l l e d i n 2001. 

18 Q. And were they on s t a t e or f e d e r a l acreage? 

19 A. Federal acreage. 

20 Q. What — Why haven't w e l l s been d r i l l e d since t h a t 

21 time? 

22 A. Because the RMP t h a t was i n place a t the time 

23 allowed f o r d r i l l i n g and completing but i t d i d not a l l o w 

24 f o r producing and t r a n s p o r t — 

25 Q. Okay, you — 

STEVEN T. 
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A. — so we had t o r e - w r i t e the RMP f o r pro d u c t i o n . 

Q. And what i s a — define the — what i s the R- — 

what does RMP stand for? 

A. Oh, RMP i s the resource management plan f o r an 

area t h a t each BLM o f f i c e has t o present. 

Q. Okay, so t h a t ' s a BLM document? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Was a — Was an RMP, a resource management 

plan, f o r f u r t h e r d r i l l i n g and production e v e n t u a l l y 

approved by the BLM? 

A. Yes, i t was. 

Q. But i s t h a t now t i e d up i n l i t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, i t i s , once they issued the record of 

de c i s i o n on i t , the Attorney General from the State of New 

Mexico, along w i t h some — and some w i l d l i f e foundations, 

f i l e d an a c t i o n against i t , t o have i t set aside and s t a r t 

a l l over again. 

Q. Okay. And as a r e s u l t , t here has been — Heyco 

has been unable t o f u r t h e r explore the u n i t area since 

about 2 001? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now you've read the order t h a t was issued by the 

D i v i s i o n i n t h i s matter, have you not? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. And the order made some references t o p o s s i b l e 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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c o n t r a c t i o n of the u n i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s there a p r o v i s i o n i n the u n i t agreement i t s e l f 

p r o v i d i n g f o r contraction? 

A. Yes, i t ' s an ex p l o r a t o r y u n i t agreement t h a t sets 

a time l i m i t f o r e x p l o r a t i o n , which a t c e r t a i n times i t 

c o n t r a c t s a u t o m a t i c a l l y , and anything t h a t i s producing or 

i n a PA, which i s a p a r t i c i p a t i n g area, remains i n the 

u n i t , and everything else f a l l s out. 

Q. Okay. Now what was the c o n t r a c t i o n p e r i o d i n the 

u n i t agreement? 

A. Well, i t was — o r i g i n a l l y i t was f i v e years from 

the date of the u n i t . 

Q. Has t h a t been extended? 

A. That — because of the l e g a l problems and 

ev e r y t h i n g , t h a t has been extended by the BLM. 

Q. Does t h a t f i v e - y e a r c o n t r a c t i o n p e r i o d also 

provide f o r continuous development i f there's continuous 

development a t the end of t h a t f i v e years? 

A. Yes, a t the end of f i v e years you make an 

a p p l i c a t i o n w i t h an authorized o f f i c e r , and they can extend 

the e x p l o r a t i o n period i f you haven't completed your 

d r i l l i n g program. 

Q. And you mentioned the PA or a p a r t i c i p a t i n g area. 

What — j u s t b r i e f l y , what i s a PA? 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 A. Well, a PA i s the — l e t me get i t f o r you 

2 c o r r e c t l y here — the acreage deemed reasonably prudent t o 

3 be productive of u n i t i z e d substance i n paying q u a n t i t i e s . 

4 And t h a t ' s i n the u n i t agreement. 

5 Q. Okay. 

6 A. Come r i g h t out of t h a t . 

7 Q. Our next witness w i l l get i n t o t h i s , but have 

8 p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas been approved f o r the two w e l l s or 

9 c e r t a i n zones w i t h i n the u n i t area? 

10 A. Yes, they have. 

11 Q. And f o r which producing — or which p r o d u c i b l e 

12 formations? 

13 A. The 1Y i s f o r the M i s s i s s i p p i a n , and f o r the 25-1 

14 i t ' s the Canyon. 

15 Q. Okay. Were there o r i g i n a l and expanded PAs f o r 

16 both of those zones? 

17 A. Yes, there was. 

18 Q. Okay. Were they approved by the BLM and the Land 

19 Off i c e ? 

20 A. Yes, they were. 

21 Q. Was the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n n o t i f i e d of the 

22 p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas and the p a r t i c i p a t i n g area expansions? 

23 A. Yes, they were. 

24 Q. Did they ever deny the p a r t i c i p a t i n g area or 

25 p a r t i c i p a t i n g area expansions? 
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A. No, they d i d not. 

Q. Mr. Dyer, also i n the order of the D i v i s i o n 

which denied the u n i t expansion, there was a discu s s i o n of 

the o r i g i n a l t a r g e t , which apparently was 40-acre o i l ; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And a t l e a s t t o t h i s date, the d i s c o v e r i e s have 

been gas? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Did the order t a l k about the p o t e n t i a l f o r gas 

l i n e s — gas p i p e l i n e s , due t o the discovery of gas? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

Q. I n your opinion, would surface use be less i f 

t h i s i s a gas-producing u n i t ? 

A. Be much less of a gas-producing u n i t . 

Q. The o i l spacing under the D i v i s i o n ' s general 

r u l e s i s — 

A. — 4 0 acres. 

Q. And your proposal t o the BLM i s t o develop the 

gas resource on one w e l l per — 

A. — 64 0 a t the present time, yes. 

Q. Okay. Now when you have more wells, aren't there 

more facilities, roads, et cetera? 

A. Yes, there's much more on the — j u s t g e t t i n g t o 

the — there's a l o t more there. 
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1 Q. Okay, so there could be more roads. What other 

2 type of equipment f o r o i l wells? 

3 A. The o i l w e l l s we have t o use, they have t o set up 

4 scrubber tanks f o r one, or set up separators, and besides 

5 p u t t i n g a n a t u r a l gas l i n e or an o i l l i n e i n t h e r e , we'd 

6 have t o put a casinghead gas p i p e l i n e also. 

7 Q. So th e r e would be two p i p e l i n e s — 

8 A. Two p i p e l i n e s — 

9 Q. — f o r each o i l wells? 

10 A. — yes. Then — 

11 Q. Would there also be pumps and e l e c t r i c l i n e s ? 

12 A. E l e c t r i c i t y , t o e l e c t r i f y them, and t h e r e would 

13 be e l e c t r i c l i n e s going a l l through t h e r e , t o each w e l l . 

14 I t would j u s t t u r n i t i n t o a reg u l a r o i l f i e l d where every 

15 4 0 acres you're going t o have a pumping jack and e i t h e r 

16 have t o put a c e n t r a l b a t t e r y somewhere t h a t ' s going t o 

17 cause a — numerous p i p e l i n e s going t o the c e n t r a l b a t t e r y , 

18 both o i l and water, and then w e ' l l have pumping from there 

19 out, somewhere else w e ' l l have i t a l l t r u c k e d out, which 

20 w i l l cause t r u c k t r a f f i c going on, whereas the n a t u r a l gas, 

21 we j u s t have one gathering l i n e running through t h e r e , 

22 which the BLM has already approved the r i g h t - o f - w a y , we 

23 j u s t can't b u i l d a p i p e l i n e — 

24 Q. So a right-of-way has been approved, but — 

25 A. Yes. 
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Q. — but you have not been able t o b u i l d t h a t 

p i p e l i n e ? 

A. Because of the RMP, wouldn't l e t us b u i l d a 

p i p e l i n e , we have t o w a i t t i l l the new one i s approved. So 

we've got the approved right-of-way r i g h t now f o r the 1Y 

and the 25-1. 

Q. Now i f the u n i t i s n ' t expanded, could t h a t lead 

t o more f a c i l i t i e s than i f the u n i t area i s expanded? 

A. Yes, i t w i l l , because we s t i l l have the o i l and 

gas leases, and we — s t i l l , our main f u n c t i o n i s t o f i n d 

petroleum products. So instead of being i n t o a u n i t w e l l , 

i t would be a nonunit w e l l , and then we'd d e f i n i t e l y have 

t o keep separated w i t h d i f f e r e n t f a c i l i t i e s . 

Q. With an expanded u n i t area, a l l of the f a c i l i t i e s 

could be c e n t r a l i z e d ? 

A. Right, we could c e n t r a l i z e them. 

Q. And i f there i s acreage — leased acreage outside 

the u n i t , t h a t would have t o have i t separate f a c i l i t i e s , 

t o comply w i t h various D i v i s i o n rules? 

A. Yes, i t would. 

Q. Now Mr. Dyer, you said your — you've been i n the 

business now f o r 40-plus years? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And as p a r t of your d u t i e s as a landman a t the 

various companies t h a t you worked f o r , have you helped i n 
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1 d r i l l i n g i n w e l l s , whether w i l d c a t w e l l s or development 

2 wells? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. Quite a number of wells? 

5 A. Yes, q u i t e a few, we've made — w i t h both 

6 companies, we became — we — Texaco was very a c t i v e here 

7 when we — when I was w i t h Santa Fe and we moved i n t o New 

8 Mexico and opened our operations, we went from t w e n t i e t h 

9 producer t o number two or three i n n a t u r a l gas prod u c t i o n 

10 and t h r e e or four i n o i l production i n the s t a t e of New 

11 Mexico. 

12 So our f a c i l i t y r e a l l y — our operations r e a l l y 

13 increased. 

14 Q. When Heyco or Santa Fe Energy or Texaco submitted 

15 APDs t o the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r w i l d c a t w e l l s , 

16 d i d you ever have t o submit economics on the w e l l t o the 

17 OCD? 

18 A. No, we never submitted economics on anything t h a t 

19 I know of . 

20 Q. And the Bennett Ranch Unit i s an e x p l o r a t o r y 

21 u n i t , i s i t not? 

22 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

23 Q. And the w e l l s d r i l l e d were w i l d c a t w e l l s , were 

24 they? 

25 A. Yes, and the next ones w i l l be too. 
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Q. And as p a r t of your d u t i e s w i t h your various 

employers, were you also i n charge of o b t a i n i n g approval 

f o r various e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And d i d the D i v i s i o n ever r e q u i r e you — your 

company t o submit economics on the development of an 

ex p l o r a t o r y u n i t t o obta i n approval? 

A. No, they never have. 

Q. Mr. Dyer, were E x h i b i t s — Heyco E x h i b i t s 1 

through 6 e i t h e r prepared by you or under your s u p e r v i s i o n 

or compiled from company business records? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i n your opinion, i s the g r a n t i n g of the u n i t 

expansion i n the i n t e r e s t s of conservation and the 

preventi o n of waste? 

A. D e f i n i t e l y , i n my opinion. 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I ' d move the admission 

of Heyco E x h i b i t s 1 through 6. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection? 

MS. ALTOMARE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 1 through 6 w i l l be 

admitted. 

MR. BRUCE: And I pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 
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1 CROSS-EXAMINATION 

2 BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

3 Q. Were you — Mr. Dyer, were you w i t h the company 

4 when the o r i g i n a l A p p l i c a t i o n went through i n 1995? 

5 A. No, I was not. 

6 Q. You had in d i c a t e d t h a t there were two w e l l s t h a t 

7 have been d r i l l e d on t h i s u n i t t h a t were completed — 

8 A. Yes. 

9 Q. — correct? 

10 I n f a c t , the f i r s t w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d a c t u a l l y 

11 was attempted but was not completed; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. Okay. Do you know why — Can you e x p l a i n t o the 

14 Commission why t h a t occurred? 

15 A. No. I could, but i t wouldn't be as accurate as 

16 l e t t i n g Gordon do i t — 

17 Q. Okay, i t would — 

18 A. — our ge o l o g i s t . 

19 Q. — be more appropriate — 

20 A. He was — he was a c t u a l l y on the r i g . I wasn't 

21 even — 

22 Q. Okay. 

23 A. — w e l l , no, I wasn't even employed a t t h a t time. 

24 Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the issues t h a t were 

25 involved — the problems t h a t were encountered, and are you 
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1 i n v o l v e d a t a l l i n addressing those issues f o r f u t u r e 

2 d r i l l i n g ? 

3 A. Am I personally involved? 

4 Q. I mean, are you one of the people i n v o l v e d -- i n 

5 the company t h a t would be involved i n addressing those 

6 issues f o r f u t u r e d r i l l i n g on t h i s u n i t ? 

7 A. No, I would not, t h a t would — 

8 Q. Okay. 

9 A. — be geology. 

10 Q. You had i n d i c a t e d t h a t p r e l i m i n a r y approval was 

11 given by the State Land O f f i c e , and you acknowledged t h a t 

12 they d i d also put i n there t h a t the OCD needs t o also give 

13 approval before t h e i r approval i s confirmed; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

14 A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. Okay. And I t h i n k you s t a t e d t h a t you had also 

16 received approval from the BLM, but no c o n d i t i o n s had been 

17 given i n t h e i r approval; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

18 A. Correct. 

19 Q. But i n the a c t u a l operations agreement, i t ' s 

20 r e q u i r e d t h a t a l l expansion approval — whether or not i t ' s 

21 a c t u a l l y s t a t e d i n the BLM approval i t s e l f , any approval of 

22 an expansion a c t u a l l y has t o be approved by the OCD as 

23 w e ll? 

24 A. No, i t doesn't s t a t e t h a t . 

25 Q. Okay, do you have the operations agreement i n 
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1 f r o n t of you? 

2 A. The — what — which operations agreement are 

3 you — 

4 Q. You had r e f e r r e d t o something e a r l i e r d u r i n g your 

5 testimony, the Bennett Ranch Uni t u n i t agreement. 

6 A. Okay, no, I do not. 

7 Q. Okay. 

8 A. The request from the BLM was a request t o come 

9 through here, not a requirement. 

10 Q. Okay. Would i t s u r p r i s e you t o know t h a t i t ' s a 

11 requirement from the BLM i n the u n i t agreement f o r the 

12 development and operation of an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t t h a t the 

13 expansion or c o n t r a c t i o n upon approval by the AO, the Land 

14 Commissioner and the D i v i s i o n , become e f f e c t i v e as of the 

15 date prescribed by the n o t i c e , t h a t the OCD has t o approve 

16 i t as well? 

17 A. I t said the OCD has t o approve i t as we l l ? 

18 Q. Yeah, would t h a t s u r p r i s e you? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 MS. ALTOMARE: This hasn't been made an e x h i b i t , 

21 but I'm going t o go ahead — May I approach the witness? 

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

23 Q. (By Ms. Altomare) Does t h i s look f a m i l i a r t o you? 

24 A. Yes, t h a t t i t l e looks f a m i l i a r . I s a l l of i t 

25 here? I s t h i s the whole thing? 
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1 Q. Yeah, i t ' s an unexecuted copy, I b e l i e v e , t h a t 

2 was submitted w i t h one of Heyco's previous a p p l i c a t i o n s t o 

3 the BLM. But i f you t u r n t o page — 

4 A. Then t h i s i s not an executed agreement. 

5 Q. This i s the version t h a t — t h i s i s — 

6 A. No, I said, i s t h i s an executed agreement? 

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Dyer, she asks the 

8 questions. You give the answer. 

9 THE WITNESS: Okay. 

10 Q. (By Ms. Altomare) This was submitted by Heyco, 

11 attached w i t h one of t h e i r a p p l i c a t i o n s t o the BLM, and i t 

12 was approved f o r execution. 

13 I f you could look a t page 3, subsection D — and 

14 I could provide the Commission — I d i d n ' t r e a l i z e I would 

15 need t o a t t a c h t h i s as an e x h i b i t . I presumed t h a t i t 

16 would be made p a r t of the record because i t was p a r t of the 

17 o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

18 This i s the o r i g i n a l operations agreement — I 

19 mean the o r i g i n a l u n i t agreement upon which t h i s 

20 a p p l i c a t i o n was based back i n 1995. This i s p a r t of the 

21 record. I ' d ask the Commission t o take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

22 n o t i c e t h a t t h i s document — i s t h i s i n the record? — I 

23 p u l l e d t h i s o f f of our court records, or OCD records • 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any o b j e c t i o n , Mr. — 

25 MR. BRUCE: No, I don't have any o b j e c t i o n to 
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1 making the u n i t agreement p a r t of the record, and i f the 

2 Commission would care, I could make copies and submit t h a t 

3 as p a r t of the record. 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Well, Ms. Altomare s t a t e s t h a t 

5 i t ' s p a r t of the OCD records, so i t ' s — w e ' l l take 

6 a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e — 

7 MR. BRUCE: — of the e n t i r e OCD f i l e ? 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yes, s i r . 

9 MR. BRUCE: That i s p e r f e c t l y f i n e w i t h me. 

10 MS. ALTOMARE: I apologize f o r not making a copy 

11 ahead of time. 

12 Does counsel confirm t h a t page 3 of t h a t 

13 agreement, subsection D, does indeed read as I had stated? 

14 MR. BRUCE: Yes. 

15 MS. ALTOMARE: Okay, I j u s t wanted t o make sure 

16 t h a t I'm not — since my copy i s not executed. 

17 Q. (By Ms. Altomare) Given t h a t t h a t ' s included i n 

18 the u n i t agreement, would you concur t h a t even the BLM has 

19 i n d i c a t e d t h a t the OCD does indeed have t o approve — 

20 A. I agree t h a t — 

21 Q. — any exceptions? 

22 A. — i t ' s i n t h a t document you have, yes. 

23 Q. Okay. 

24 A. I don't know whether t h a t ' s the o f f i c i a l document 

25 or not — 
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Q. Okay. 

A. — what you — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Dyer — 

THE WITNESS: I don't mean t o — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — your a t t o r n e y can b r i n g 

those p o i n t s up — 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — on r e d i r e c t . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare) You have i n d i c a t e d t h a t the — 

f u r t h e r development of the u n i t has been held up due t o the 

RMP being i n l i t i g a t i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. That as a r e s u l t , you haven't been able t o do 

f u r t h e r e x p l o r a t i o n of the u n i t ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Does t h a t preclude Heyco from going i n and doing 

any a d d i t i o n a l t e s t i n g or ev a l u a t i o n of the u n i t ? 

A. I don't know what k i n d of e v a l u a t i o n . I t doesn't 

preclude us from t e s t i n g . 

Q. I mean, you can go on t o the u n i t , t o the land 

and t e s t the s o i l s , t e s t the water, you can do eval u a t i o n s 

of the u n i t besides ac t u a l d r i l l i n g f o r e x p l o r a t i o n of o i l 

and gas, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, we can — w e l l , we have t o do seismic, i f 

t h a t ' s what you're t a l k i n g about. 
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1 Q. I n c l u d i n g seismic. 

2 A. We would have t o get permission — get a s p e c i a l 

3 permit from the BLM t o do t h a t — 

4 Q. Okay — 

5 A. — yes. 

6 Q. — and has Heyco conducted any a d d i t i o n a l seismic 

7 t e s t i n g ? 

8 A. No, we have not. 

9 Q. Okay. Have they considered doing a d d i t i o n a l 

10 seismic t e s t i n g during t h i s downtime — 

11 A. Yes, we — 

12 Q. — t o f u r t h e r — 

13 A. — have. 

14 Q. — evaluate the u n i t ? 

15 And why was the decision made not t o proceed w i t h 

16 t h a t ? 

17 A. I t was a management de c i s i o n , because of the — 

18 so I don ' t know. 

19 Q. Okay. So at t h i s time, when was the l a s t seismic 

20 data obtained on t h i s u n i t ? 

21 A. By us? 

22 Q. Yes. 

23 A. I ' l l l e t Gordon answer t h a t because he's been 

24 involved i n t h a t . I haven't been in v o l v e d i n any of the 

25 seismic. 
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1 Q. You had t a l k e d about a p a r t i c i p a t i n g area as 

2 being an area deemed reasonably prudent t o be pr o d u c t i v e of 

3 u n i t i z e d substances; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

4 A. Yes. 

5 Q. Okay. At t h i s p o i n t , based on the data t h a t 

6 Heyco has i n i t s possession, i s there any data or evidence 

7 t o suggest t h a t the areas t o the no r t h are such areas t h a t 

8 would be reasonably prudent t o be productive of u n i t i z e d 

9 substances and should be included i n t h a t PA area? 

10 A. Which PA area are you t a l k i n g about? There 1s two 

11 PA areas out t h e r e . 

12 Q. Okay, so are you t a l k i n g about — when you're 

13 t a l k i n g about the PA area, what are you t a l k i n g about? 

14 A. / We're t a l k i n g about the PA f o r each w e l l . 

15 Q. Okay. 

16 A. That's what t h a t w e l l , we f e e l , can cover. 

17 Q. Okay. What about the northern p a r t of the u n i t ? 

18 A. We haven't got a w e l l up there t o be able t o 

19 explore i t , t o r e a l l y put i t i n a PA a t t h i s p o i n t . 

20 Q. Okay, and you haven't — there's no seismic data 

21 e i t h e r t o i n d i c a t e whether or not there's — 

22 A. Well — 

23 Q. — any u n i t i z e d substances t h a t are — 

24 A. — I j u s t said the seismic i s going t o be handled 

25 by him. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



31_ 

Q. Okay. 

A. Any answer I would give you would be pure 

s p e c u l a t i o n , because I'm not a geophysicist. 

Q. Okay, but you d i d t e s t i f y e a r l i e r about the 

c o n t r a c t i o n issue; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And i n your opinion you don't t h i n k t h a t 

there's anything t o j u s t i f y c o n t r a c t i n g the u n i t ? 

A. No, because we haven't even had the chance t o 

a c t u a l l y explore the u n i t y e t . 

Q. Okay. But you've already t e s t i f i e d t h a t you 

haven't done any a d d i t i o n a l t e s t i n g e i t h e r , t o assess — 

f u r t h e r assess the u n i t ? 

A. These two w e l l s don't need t e s t i n g . What other 

t e s t i n g do you want us t o do? 

Q. Have you done a d d i t i o n a l t e s t i n g i n the no r t h e r n 

p a r t of the u n i t t o f u r t h e r assess whether or not t h a t p a r t 

of the u n i t would j u s t i f y c o n t r a c t i o n a t t h i s p o i n t i n 

time? 

A. I don't understand t e s t i n g . What are you t a l k i n g 

about we need t o do t o t e s t i t ? 

Q. Have you done any seismic — You t e s t i f i e d t h a t 

you haven't done any seismic assessments. 

A. We haven't done any seismic on i t , as f a r as I 

know. 
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1 Q. Okay. 

2 A. As f a r as I know. Now I t o l d you, I'm not going 

3 t o answer t h a t --

4 Q. Okay. 

5 A. — because I don't know t h a t . 

6 Q. Okay. But you've i n d i c a t e d t h a t a t t h i s p o i n t 

7 i t 1 s your contention t h a t b a s i c a l l y one w e l l can d r a i n an 

8 e n t i r e 640 — 

9 A. No, we said i t appears t h a t i t might, and we want 

10 t o t e s t i t t h i s way on our e x p l o r a t i o n p a r t of the deal , t o 

11 not have to be d r i l l i n g every 40 acres t o work our way out, 

12 so we can work our way and do some good e v a l u a t i o n of i t . 

13 Q. Okay, so — but you are planning on approaching 

14 t h i s u n i t on a 640-acre spacing approach a t t h i s p o i n t i n 

15 time? 

16 A. On the d r i l l i n g — on the d r i l l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n , 

17 yes. 

18 Q. Okay. Have you addressed y e t how you're going t o 

19 — how and when you're going t o apply f o r s p e c i a l pool 

20 r u l e s t o address the 640-acre spacing? 

21 A. Have we addressed — How and when? 

22 Q. Yes. 

23 A. When we have enough w e l l s t o j u s t i f y t h a t i t can 

24 be done on 640. 

25 Q. Okay, and have you considered what would happen 
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i f you l a t e r apply f o r s p e c i a l pool r u l e s and are denied 

the 640-acre spacing a t a l a t e r time? 

A. Then we would d r i l l on 160s. 

Q. Okay. I s there a reason t h a t you haven't 

submitted the 64 0-acre spacing s p e c i a l pool r u l e request 

simultaneously w i t h t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , given t h a t i t ' s the 

foundation f o r your request f o r expansion? 

A. No, i t ' s not the foundation f o r a request f o r 

expansion. Our foundation i s t o get i t so i t would comply 

w i t h the OCD r u l e s of 160 spacing r i g h t now, so we can 

square i t o f f . Because i f we don't do i t — Once we get 

through t h e r e and see t h a t i t i s f e a s i b l e t o do i t w i t h one 

on every 640, then we w i l l apply f o r i t . But w e ' l l have 

geology and engineering t o back i t up. 

We have been discussing t h i s w i t h the BLM, t o 

cover as l i t t l e land as we can w i t h o u t damaging i t , and 

t r y i n g t o see i f t h i s i s a f e a s i b l e t h i n g . 

Q. Okay. But haven't you t e s t i f i e d t h a t the basis 

f o r t h i s expansion i s t h a t you plan t o use 640-acre 

spacing? 

A. I f i t ' s t e s t e d , t h a t would be our eventual g o a l , 

yes. 

Q. Okay. 

A. But we're so e a r l y i n t o the e x p l o r a t i o n , 

e v e r y t h i n g we do on something l i k e t h i s i s r e a l l y a 
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s p e c u l a t i o n . We're hoping t h a t t h a t works, but you have t o 

t e s t i t . 

Q. Why — why do you t h i n k t h a t there's p o t e n t i a l 

f o r i t t o be f e a s i b l e t o only need 640-acre spacing? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t we're doing i t t o save the 

e x p l o r a t i o n , and Gordon can give you a l l t h a t answer. What 

we're t r y i n g t o do i s put as l i t t l e f o o t p r i n t out th e r e as 

we can wh i l e we're t r y i n g t o explore. That's a l l the 

reason we're doing — I'm saying t h a t from my standpoint. 

Gordon can give you b e t t e r answers on t h a t . 

Q. Okay. Has there been c o n s i d e r a t i o n r e g a r d i n g the 

c o r r e l a t i v e - r i g h t s issues t h a t could a r i s e i f a w e l l i s 

d r i l l e d too close t o the perimeter of the u n i t on a 640-

acre spacing u n i t ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s been considered by Gordon, geology, 

when he places the w e l l s . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I'm assuming. I t ' s not my j o b , I don't place the 

w e l l s . 

Q. Okay. So you're not here t o t e s t i f y about 

whether or not Heyco has addressed — 

A. We've addressed i t a t our meetings, yes, but I'm 

not the one t h a t a c t u a l l y addresses i t and does the 

p l a t t i n g of the w e l l on the ground. 

Q. Okay. 
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1 A. But t h a t ' s always been a concern, j u s t l i k e 

2 d r i l l i n g as l i t t l e as we can and making — damaging as 

3 l i t t l e as pos s i b l e . That's our concern. That's why we've 

4 been t a l k i n g about one w e l l every s e c t i o n r i g h t now. 

5 Q. Okay. But you recognize t h a t there's an issue, 

6 i f you d r i l l a w e l l too close t o the perimeter, t h a t you 

7 could be d r a i n i n g property t h a t i s not p a r t of the u n i t ? 

8 A. I recognize t h a t , and the people t h a t approve the 

9 u n i t recognize i t , but they d i d n ' t have a concern. 

10 Otherwise they would have voiced i t , the State Land O f f i c e 

11 or the BLM would have voiced i t t o us. 

12 Q. A l l r i g h t , you had t e s t i f i e d t h a t you never 

13 before had t o submit economics f o r an e x p l o r a t o r y or 

14 w i l d c a t u n i t or w e l l a p p l i c a t i o n ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? — 

15 A. That's c o r r e c t — 

16 Q. — t o the OCD? 

17 A. — as f a r as I know, I never have. 

18 Q. Okay. 

19 A. We never have. 

20 Q. So the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the BLM you d i d , 

21 though; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

22 A. I don't know, I wasn't i n on the o r i g i n a l 

23 a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the BLM. 

24 Q. Would i t s u r p r i s e you t o know t h a t as p a r t of the 

25 a p p l i c a t i o n process f o r an ex p l o r a t o r y u n i t , the BLM does 
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1 r e q u i r e the submission of economics? 

2 A. Okay, okay, I see what you're t a l k i n g about. 

3 Yes, we had t o submit something t h e r e , but t h a t ' s not t r u e 

4 economics. That — you know, there i s no t r u e economics on 

5 a w i l d c a t w e l l . 

6 Q. Right, but you submit some economic data — 

7 A. — p r o j e c t e d , based on the w e l l s t h a t we t h i n k 

8 can be done. 

9 Q. Okay, now — 

10 A. But t h a t was before any w e l l was d r i l l e d . 

11 Q. Exactly. And i n 1995, the w e l l s t h a t you were 

12 p r e d i c t i n g t h a t were going t o be d r i l l e d were 4 0-acre-

13 spacing o i l w e l l s , correct? 

14 A. That's because the cl o s e s t w e l l t o the area was 

15 an o i l w e l l . 

16 Q. Okay, and you were d r i l l i n g t o the Fusselman, 

17 r i g h t ? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Okay. Now the e n t i r e nature of the u n i t i s 

20 p r e t t y much changed. You're d r i l l i n g n a t u r a l gas w e l l s , 

21 shallower, w i t h much d i f f e r e n t spacing, r i g h t ? 

22 A. No, every w e l l we've d r i l l e d has been t o the 

23 Fusselman, and the next w e l l i s going t o go t o the 

24 Fusselman too. 

25 Q. So you s t i l l plan t o d r i l l t o the Fusselman, even 
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1 though — 

2 A. We're s t i l l l o oking f o r i t . The whole s e c t i o n i s 

3 open game f o r us — 

4 Q. Okay. 

5 A. — and j u s t because we d i d n ' t f i n d i t i n the 

6 south end, the temperature may be b e t t e r or more c o r r e c t t o 

7 a c t u a l l y get the o i l production from the n o r t h end. We 

8 don't know, we haven't been up there y e t . 

9 Q. Okay, so you're s t i l l t a r g e t i n g both o i l and 

10 gas — 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. — i n t h i s u n i t ? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. Would you say the primary t a r g e t of t h i s u n i t has 

15 switched t o gas, though? 

16 A. No, not a t t h i s p o i n t . 

17 Q. Okay. 

18 A. We would — a c t u a l l y , t h a t would be the — Okay, 

19 l e t me rephrase t h a t . Yes, t h a t would be the primary 

20 t a r g e t , because we know i t ' s got a good chance t h e r e . But 

21 t h a t secondary t a r g e t i s anything else t h a t ' s i n t h e r e . 

22 Q. Okay, so — 

23 A. That doesn't stop us from completing i n a — a t a 

24 d i f f e r e n t zone. 

25 And again, Gordon can do t h i s a l o t more than I 
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1 can — 

2 Q. Okay. 

3 A. — because he's the g e o l o g i s t . 

4 Q. Okay. But given how much a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n 

5 has been acquired i n the course of the d r i l l i n g of the 

6 three w e l l s t h a t you have done out t h e r e , and the change of 

7 the nature of your t a r g e t , why weren't new economics 

8 submitted t o the BLM, given t h a t the p i c t u r e has changed? 

9 A. The p i c t u r e hasn't changed. That's not our — We 

10 found two gas w e l l s out there i n two d i f f e r e n t zones, and 

11 the — Gordon can answer a l l t h i s , I can't. But t h a t 

12 doesn't mean we've changed and gone j u s t p r i m a r i l y — 

13 You're g e t t i n g a l i t t l e ahead of the game on economics — 

14 Q. Okay. 

15 A. — i n an e x p l o r a t i o n . . . 

16 Q. Okay. But the bottom l i n e i s t h a t you d i d — or 

17 Heyco d i d , who you represent today, submit economics f o r 

18 the o r i g i n a l a p p l i c a t i o n f o r the u n i t approval? 

19 A. Yes, before anything was d r i l l e d . 

20 Q. Okay. 

21 A. And t h a t was based on sp e c u l a t i o n . 

22 Q. And they have not now submitted any a d d i t i o n a l 

23 economics t o support the u n i t expansion? To the BLM, the 

24 State Land O f f i c e — 

25 A. No — 
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Q. — or the OCD? 

A. — we have not. No, we have not. 

Q. Okay. At t h i s p o i n t i n time, how many a d d i t i o n a l 

w e l l s are planned? 

A. One. 

Q. One. 

A. One a t a time. 

Q. One a t a time. And where i s the next w e l l 

planned t o be d r i l l e d ? 

A. The APD was submitted i n September of '06, you 

have a copy of i t , the OCD has a copy of i t . I t i s i n 

Section 24 — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — i s t h a t correct? 

Q. Okay, and what i s — Again, you're d r i l l i n g a l l 

the way t o the Fusselman t o explore f o r o i l i n t h i s — 

A. To explore f o r anything i n the hole — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — whether i t be o i l and/or gas. That's what 

e x p l o r a t i o n i s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And w e l l — more issues and water 

issues would be something I need t o ask the g e o l o g i s t 

about, corr e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You said t h a t the p i p e l i n e rights-of-way have 
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already been approved? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I presume t h a t t h a t ' s t o be a b u r i e d p i p e l i n e , or 

i s i t t o be above ground? 

A. I t h i n k i t ' s buried. I ' l l have t o look a t and 

see. I t ' s been so long since i t ' s been approved, I haven't 

read i t i n a long time. And we do a l o t of p i p e l i n e s , so I 

don't remember which one — which i t was. 

Q. Do you remember the s p e c i f i c s about the p i p e l i n e 

as t o the s i z e , the diameter, t h a t k i n d of t h i n g , t h a t ' s 

been proposed? 

A. We — No, I don't. I t h i n k we submitted f o r a 

bigger one than we was going t o need i n case we d i d need i t 

when we became able t o do i t , but t h a t doesn't mean i t ' s 

going t o be t h a t s i z e . I t ' s going t o be whatever s i z e we 

need. 

Q. Okay. And where i s the p i p e l i n e going t o be run 

to? 

A. Texas s t a t e l i n e , goes due south from the w e l l t o 

the Texas s t a t e l i n e . And i t has been — had an 

environmental/archaeological study on i t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I don't t h i n k I have anything 

a d d i t i o n a l f o r t h i s witness, so I ' l l go ahead and pass the 

witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 
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1 EXAMINATION 

2 BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

3 Q. You're not asking f o r any k i n d of exemption or 

4 d i f f e r e n c e t h a t would be covered under Rule 21, which i s 

5 s p e c i f i c t o Otero and Sie r r a Counties, are you? 

6 A. We are not. We're not asking f o r any exemptions 

7 t o anything. We're j u s t asking t o move the l i n e out. 

8 Q. And even i f the expansion i s denied, you could 

9 s t i l l communitize w i t h those lands on the borders, should 

10 you f i n d p roductive w e l l s — 

11 A. Yes. 

12 Q. — along the borders? 

13 A. Yes. 

14 Q. So a d e n i a l of the expansion would not prevent 

15 you from being able t o d r i l l on the outside borders of the 

16 u n i t , r i g h t ? 

17 A. That i s c o r r e c t . I t wouldn't prevent us from 

18 d r i l l i n g anywhere i n the e x i s t i n g u n i t a t t h i s time. 

19 Q. Would the expansion approval r e s e t the clock f o r 

20 c o n t r a c t i o n dates t h a t were set out i n the u n i t agreement? 

21 A. I t does not, does not change t h a t a t a l l . 

22 Q. So there's no e f f e c t on the len g t h of time t h a t 

23 you've been approved f o r c o n t r a c t u a l dates? 

24 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

25 Q. During your tenure a t Heyco, were you in v o l v e d i n 
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1 any land t r a n s a c t i o n s or APDs or w e l l s t h a t were d r i l l e d i n 

2 the Carlsbad k a r s t area? 

3 A. No, I was not. I don't remember any, f o r us. Do 

4 you, Gordon? You'd have t o ask Gordon t h a t , I don't know. 

5 Q. Yeah, I'm j u s t wondering i f as a landman you were 

6 connected w i t h any of those. 

7 A. No, as a landman I never — never was w i t h t h a t . 

8 And I was the land manager, so I should have been i n v o l v e d 

9 i f i t was ther e . 

10 Q. Okay. I have heard i n the past t h a t t h e r e were 

11 o i l and gas w e l l s t o the south of the Texas l i n e — 

12 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. — maybe even as f a r as Mexico, but d e f i n i t e l y 

14 south of the New Mexico s t a t e l i n e ? 

15 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. And those are extremely p r o l i f i c w e l l s , aren't 

17 they? 

18 A. You can t a l k t o Gordon, he's been f o l l o w i n g them. 

19 I don't know. 

20 Q. Okay, you haven't followed them as a landman? 

21 A. As a landman I've j u s t been n e g o t i a t i n g c o n t r a c t s 

22 w i t h them, I d i d n ' t — 

23 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Okay, then those are a l l 

24 the questions I have f o r you. 

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 
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1 COMMISSIONER OLSON: I don't have any questions. 

2 EXAMINATION 

3 BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

4 Q. Mr. Dyer, the lands t h a t — t o be included i n the 

5 expanded u n i t , they're a l l leased by Heyco? 

6 A. No, they're not. 

7 Q. Who else are — i s — holds the leases out there? 

8 A. Up i n Section 2 i t was leased a t the l a s t — a t 

9 the land sale r e c e n t l y by a speculator i n Las Vegas, 

10 Nevada. He buys a l o t of sale, and he bought i t t o o . 

11 A c t u a l l y , he bought i t , o u t b i d me, and then he turned 

12 around and c a l l e d me and asked me i f I wanted t o buy i t . 

13 Q. Okay, I'm a l i t t l e confused. The map I've got 

14 shows a l l of Section 2 i n the cu r r e n t u n i t . Or am I 

15 misreading something? 

16 A. Well, the blue o u t l i n e i s i n c o r r e c t , i t comes up 

17 t h i s way. 

18 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I plead s c r i b n e r ' s 

19 e r r o r . I was the one who h i g h l i g h t e d . And r e a l l y , i f you 

20 look a t t h a t dashed — 

21 THE WITNESS: — t h a t d o t t e d — 

22 MR. BRUCE: — dashed and do t t e d l i n e — 

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

24 MR. BRUCE: — i n the northeast p a r t , t h a t should 

25 a c t u a l l y be the northeastern boundary of the e x i s t i n g u n i t . 
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1 I apologize. 

2 Q. (By Chairman Fesmire) Okay. So t h a t t r a c t t h a t 

3 you 1ve got marked 11a i s the one t h a t sold? 

4 A. Yes, t h a t ' s the one t h a t s o l d . 

5 Q. Okay. And — 

6 A. And I can't — not remember the gentleman's name 

7 r i g h t now. 

8 Q. Okay. I t looks l i k e t h a t ' s the only change on 

9 the map • 

10 Then the lands i n Section 18 are Heyco lands? 

11 They 1 re leased by Heyco? 

12 A. Section 18? 

13 Q. Yes, on Range 13. 

14 A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

15 Q. Okay. Now what about the ones t h a t you have 

16 marked t r a c t 7a? Are they — 

17 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

18 Q. That's a Heyco lease also? 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. And 8a? 

21 A. That's the only lease t h a t i s not ours, t h a t — 

22 i t goes i n t o the expanded area, i s t h a t Section 2. 

23 Q. Section 2? 

24 A. To t h a t 11a. 

25 Q. Tract 11a? 
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1 A. Tract 11a. 

2 Q. Okay, but the r e s t of i t ' s a l l Heyco lands? 

3 A. Yes. 

4 Q. For my e d i f i c a t i o n , on e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , should 

5 you e s t a b l i s h production from w e l l s w i t h i n the e x p l o r a t o r y 

6 u n i t , i s t h a t production shared by everybody i n the 

7 e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t ? 

8 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. U n t i l i t ' s contracted? 

10 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. Okay. 

12 A. Well, even when i t ' s contracted, i f the owner's 

13 land was contracted out, t h a t he's s t i l l a member, he s t i l l 

14 shares i t — 

15 Q. Okay. 

16 A. — or she. 

17 Q. I f the — Within the e x i s t i n g u n i t , i s t h e r e any 

18 other operator h o l d i n g leases w i t h i n the c u r r e n t u n i t ? 

19 A. No, there's not. 

20 Q. How would i t change the p a r t i c i p a t i n g percentage 

21 between the f e d e r a l and s t a t e leases i f the proposed 

22 expansion were approved? 

23 A. As percentage i n the lands? 

24 Q. Uh-huh. 

25 A. I n the e x i s t i n g one, I don't have t h a t i n f r o n t 
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1 of me, do i t ? The e x i s t i n g one t h a t . . . 

2 I n the expanded one here, i t — Okay, i t does not 

3 — or i t does — I take t h a t back. I t gives the s t a t e .24 

4 a d d i t i o n a l i n t e r e s t . 

5 Q. Okay, so — 

6 A. .24 percent a d d i t i o n a l i n t e r e s t . 

7 Q. Okay, so t h a t ' s about — j u s t a l i t t l e l e s s than 

8 7 percent i n the curr e n t u n i t , s t a t e p a r t i c i p a t i o n , r i g h t ? 

9 Based on the land? 

10 A. Based on the e x h i b i t from the u n i t agreement i n 

11 1995, the f e d e r a l lands has 90.959591 percent and s t a t e 

12 land has 9.040409. 

13 Q. So the expansion would increase the s t a t e ' s 

14 percentage over the — a t the expense of the f e d e r a l — 

15 A. Yes — 

16 Q. — some quarter of a percent — 

17 A. — i t would increase i t from .04 t o .24. 

18 Q. Have there been any other w e l l s d r i l l e d i n t h i s 

19 e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t , besides the two t h a t have t e s t e d gas? 

20 A. Not t h a t I know of. Gor- — t h a t ' s — Again, 

21 t h a t ' s a question f o r Gordon. 

22 Q. Okay. Now you made the statement, these two 

23 w e l l s don't need t e s t i n g . I f I remember c o r r e c t l y , t h e r e 

24 was an a p p l i c a t i o n t o t e s t a t l e a s t one of them f o r a 

25 s i g n i f i c a n t p e r i o d of time. 
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1 A. Yes, there was. 

2 Q. How does t h a t j i b e w i t h what you s a i d , these two 

3 w e l l s don ' t need t e s t i n g ? 

4 A. Well, f i r s t of a l l , I'm not a g e o l o g i s t or an 

5 engineer, I'm a landman, and t h a t statement was based on 

6 the f a c t t h a t i t was going t o be too c o s t l y and we couldn't 

7 do i t t o t e s t them, based on the r o y a l t i e s we was going t o 

8 have t o pay people and the amount of fees t o the EPA. 

9 Q. Okay. Now the two w e l l s t h a t are d r i l l e d , I 

10 haven't c o r r e l a t e d the data. What sections are they i n , i n 

11 the c u r r e n t u n i t ? 

12 A. Gordon, c o r r e c t me i f I'm wrong — 

13 Q. No, no — 

14 A. — 14? — 

15 Q. — do you know the answer? 

16 A. No, I don't. 

17 Q. Okay. 

18 A. I do, but not o f f the top of my head. 

19 Q. Okay, w e ' l l ask Gordon, unless you have something 

20 there t h a t can answer t h a t f o r us. 

21 A. No. 

22 Q. Now you said t h a t there were i n d i c a t i o n s t h a t one 

23 w e l l w i l l d r a i n the whole s e c t i o n , and I remember Ms. 

24 Altomare t a l k e d t o you a l i t t l e b i t about t h a t . I s t h a t 

25 something w e ' l l have t o t a l k t o Gordon about, or where does 
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1 t h a t assumption come from? 

2 A. That assumption comes w i t h our d i s c u s s i o n w i t h 

3 the BLM. And yes, Gordon needs t o e x p l a i n a l l t h a t . 

4 Q. Okay. Now you said t h a t expansion of the u n i t 

5 would prevent waste. Would you e x p l a i n t o me how t h a t 

6 occurs, what you meant when you sai d t h a t ? 

7 A. Well, because — i t would commit waste because 

8 otherwise somebody could get a lease and come i n and come 

9 r i g h t up against t h i s area and d r i l l w h i l e t h i s u n i t i s 

10 s t i l l going on. 

11 But the main t h i n g i s g e t t i n g i t t o conform. We 

12 want t o be able t o conform w i t h the u n i t , the OCD u n i t — 

13 p r o r a t i o n r u l e s . 

14 Q. Okay — 

15 A. So — 

16 Q. — I t h i n k you misspoke t h e r e . You s a i d i t would 

17 commit waste. You meant prevent waste? 

18 A. Prevent waste, yes. 

19 Q. Okay, by —• I d i d n ' t q u i t e understand t h a t 

20 theory. 

21 A. Okay, what — Let's go back then. 

22 Q. Okay, you said i t would prevent waste by keeping 

23 somebody from snuggling up t o your u n i t l i n e and d r i l l i n g 

24 another well? 

25 A. That's c o r r e c t , i f the t r a c t s were leased out 
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1 t h e r e , somebody could do t h a t . 

2 Q. Would t h a t be a c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s issue or a 

3 waste issue? 

4 A. Probably a c o r r e l a t i v e - r i g h t s issue. 

5 Q. So how would — 

6 A. Well — A l l r i g h t , ask the question again. 

7 Q. Okay. 

8 A. Let me make sure I've got the r i g h t question. 

9 Q. Okay. Expanding the u n i t area would prevent 

10 somebody from snuggling up t o your u n i t l i n e and d r i l l i n g 

11 an a d d i t i o n a l w e l l — 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. — and your statement was t h a t t h a t would prevent 

14 waste. How would t h a t prevent waste? 

15 A. I was mistaken on t h a t . 

16 Q. But you're saying t h a t i t becomes a c o r r e l a t i v e 

17 r i g h t s issue? 

18 A. Yes. 

19 Q. Okay, aren't the spacing r u l e s — the statewide 

20 r u l e s t h a t would be i n e f f e c t , s u f f i c i e n t t o p r o t e c t your 

21 u n i t from drainage i n t h a t s i t u a t i o n , i f the u n i t boundary 

22 were not expanded? 

23 A. I don't t h i n k I know the answer t o t h a t r i g h t o f f 

24 the top of my head. 

25 Q. But I can say t h i s , there's nothing t o stop us 
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from d r i l l i n g o f f s e t t h e r e , because we have the lease on 

i t . 

Q. So what i s the advantage of expanding the u n i t ? 

A. I don't know the answer t o t h a t question. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce, I have 

f u r t h e r questions. I'm assuming y o u ' l l have some r e d i r e c t 

of t h i s witness? 

MR. BRUCE: Just a few. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. Dyer, the D i v i s i o n ' s a t t o r n e y asked you about 

a d d i t i o n a l t e s t i n g . At t h i s p o i n t you can't d r i l l any 

a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s t o t e s t the u n i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you can't even produce the e x i s t i n g ones a t 

t h i s p oint? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Get t i n g back t o a question t h a t Commissioner 

Bail e y asked you regarding whether a lease i s i n s i d e or 

outside the u n i t , as a lessee you should be e n t i t l e d t o 

develop your acreage? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. I n s o f a r as the c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s of people 

outside the u n i t , again you stat e d t h a t ' s a l l s t a t e and 

f e d e r a l acreage? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. And i f the s t a t e and f e d e r a l governments were 

3 wor r i e d about p r o t e c t i n g t h e i r c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s outside 

4 the u n i t , they could put t h a t acreage up f o r lease, could 

5 they not 7 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. They cannot independently — under s t a t u t o r y 

8 schemes, they cannot independently develop t h e i r own 

9 acreage? They would have t o put i t up f o r lease? 

10 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

11 Q. And i n s o f a r as the expanded u n i t goes, t h e r e are 

12 b e n e f i t s i n u n i t i z e d management, are th e r e not? 

13 A. Very much b e n e f i t s there. 

14 Q. I t minimizes surface use? 

15 A. I t would minimize surface use and separate 

16 f a c i l i t i e s on the production. 

17 Q. And so you would have c e n t r a l i z e d management, 

18 c e n t r a l i z e d f a c i l i t i e s — 

19 A. Yes. 

20 Q. — r a t h e r than development on a lease-by-lease 

21 basis? 

22 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

23 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Chair. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, anything on 

25 those — on the subject of r e d i r e c t ? 
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MS. ALTOMARE: I don't b e l i e v e so. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything f u r t h e r from the 

Commissioners? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Dyer, thank you very much. 

Mr. Bruce, your next witness i s — ? 

MR. BRUCE: C a l l Mr. Gordon Yahney t o the stand. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Yahney, you've been 

p r e v i o u s l y sworn i n t h i s case? 

MR. YAHNEY: Explain, s i r ? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You've been sworn i n i n t h i s 

case, you swore t o t e l l the t r u t h ? 

MR. YAHNEY: Yes, I d i d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay — 

MR. YAHNEY: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — please take the stand. 

GORDON YAHNEY. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Would you please s t a t e your name and c i t y of 

residence f o r the record? 

A. My name i s Gordon Yahney, and c i t y of residence 

i s Roswell, New Mexico. 
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1 Q. Could you s p e l l your l a s t name f o r the c o u r t 

2 r e p o r t e r , please? 

3 A. My l a s t name i s s p e l l e d Y-a-h-n-e-y. 

4 Q. Could you — and are you the — What i s your 

5 occupation? 

6 A. I am a g e o l o g i s t . 

7 Q. And who do you work f o r ? 

8 A. I work f o r Harvey E. Yates Company and i t s 

9 a f f i l i a t e s . 

10 Q. And are you the g e o l o g i s t responsible f o r the 

11 Bennett Ranch Unit? 

12 A. Yes, I am. 

13 Q. Could you describe your educational and 

14 employment background f o r the Commission? 

15 A. Educational background, I have a bachelor's i n 

16 science from Defiance College, a master's i n geology from 

17 Bowling Green State U n i v e r s i t y i n Ohio. 

18 Work experience, e i g h t years w i t h Texaco and 23 

19 w i t h Harvey E. Yates Company. 

20 Q. And your area of r e s p o n s i b i l i t y a t Harvey E. 

21 Yates Company includes t h i s area of southern New Mexico, 

22 does i t not? 

23 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

24 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I tender Mr. Yahney as 

25 an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t . 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection? 

2 MS. ALTOMARE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Yahney 1s c r e d e n t i a l s w i l l 

4 be so accepted. 

5 Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. Yahney, l e t ' s run through 

6 your e x h i b i t s f i r s t . F i r s t of a l l , what i s E x h i b i t 7? 

7 A. E x h i b i t 7 i s a p l a t showing the expanded extent 

8 of the Bennett Ranch Unit t h a t has been a p p l i e d f o r . The 

9 expanded u n i t boundary contains the three w e l l s t h a t have 

10 been d r i l l e d t o date, the Bennett Ranch U n i t Number 1, i t s 

11 replacement w e l l , the Bennett Ranch U n i t Number 1Y i n 

12 Section 14, and the Bennett Ranch U n i t Number 25-1 i n 

13 Section 25 of 2 6 South, 12 East, Otero County. 

14 Q. Okay. And what zone i s the 1Y w e l l completed in? 

15 A. The 1Y i s completed as a s h u t - i n gas w e l l from 

16 the M i s s i s s i p p i a n Helms formation. 

17 Q. And what about the 25-1 well? 

18 A. The 25-1 i s completed as a s h u t - i n gas w e l l from 

19 the Canyon formation. 

20 Q. The 1Y w e l l was d r i l l e d i n what year? 

21 A. That year was 1997. 

22 Q. And when was the 25-1 w e l l d r i l l e d ? 

23 A. 2001. 

24 Q. Ge t t i n g back t o a question the Chairman asked Mr. 

25 Dyer, are there any other w e l l s w i t h i n the u n i t area or the 
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1 u n i t area as expanded? 

2 A. No, there i s not. 

3 Q. I n o t i c e j u s t t o the south i n Texas there's a 

4 couple of w e l l symbols. What are those? 

5 A. I n Texas, i n Section 1 of block B, U n i v e r s i t y 

6 Lands, i n the northeast quarter, i s a w e l l d r i l l e d by T r a i l 

7 Mountain c a l l e d the U n i v e r s i t y Serengeti B Number 1. 

8 Q. Okay. I s t h a t a f a i r l y recent well? 

9 A. Yes, t h a t w e l l was d r i l l e d s h o r t l y a f t e r the 

10 Bennett Ranch 25 Number 1. 

11 Q. Okay. What footage i s t h a t o f f of the Section 

12 35? Do you know, roughly? 

13 A. I b e l i e v e i t ' s 600. 

14 Q. Okay. Six hundred feet? 

15 A. Right. 

16 Q. What i s E x h i b i t 8, please? 

17 A. E x h i b i t 8 i s a schematic c r o s s - s e c t i o n t h a t ' s 

18 been adapted from some documentation by Bruce Black t o 

19 d e p i c t i n general terms the Bennett Ranch U n i t s t r u c t u r e 

20 and the formations involved. 

21 Q. And could you go i n t o a l i t t l e d e t a i l on your 

22 geologic concepts f o r the u n i t ? 

23 A. The u n i t was put together based on a 40-acre 

24 Fusselman gas — I mean Fusselman o i l prospect. That was 

25 based on 2-D seismic t h a t was acquired by Heyco from 
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various sources, one of them being Texaco, Inc. 

That s t r u c t u r e was the basis — the c l o s u r e t h a t 

was mapped o f f of t h a t seismic was the basis f o r the 

o u t l i n e of the u n i t as i t was proposed and o r i g i n a l l y set 

out i n 1995. 

The schematic cross-section here d e p i c t s a l i t t l e 

— i t would be roughly a — looking from northwest on the 

l e f t t o southeast on the r i g h t . This p a r t i c u l a r cross-

s e c t i o n would be of — an evolvement based on some l a t e r 

seismic t h a t was shot a f t e r the i n i t i a l discovery w e l l , the 

Bennett Ranch Uni t Number 1Y. 

The Fusselman o i l prospect t o date has not been 

pro d u c t i v e . 

Q. Let me i n t e r r u p t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. When the u n i t was d r i l l e d , was the Fusselman the 

nearest w e l l t h a t had t e s t e d any — was the Fusselman the 

nearest zone t h a t had t e s t e d f o r hydrocarbons? 

A. The Fusselman was t e s t e d i n the Texaco Number 1 

FO about 8 t o 10 miles t o the south and west of the Bennett 

Ranch U n i t . I t was also t e s t e d i n the Texaco State of 

Texas FP, which i s about 15 t o 20 miles south of the u n i t . 

Both of the Texaco w e l l s , i f I remember r i g h t , 

had shows of o i l i n the Fusselman, and the FP, which i s the 

one t h a t was a l i t t l e f u r t h e r away, had very extensive 
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shows i n the Fusselman. 

Q. Okay. Continue, please. 

A. Besides the Fusselman, we recognized t h a t t h e r e 

was a s i g n i f i c a n t unconformity a t the base of the Wolfcamp 

s e c t i o n , which removed the Cisco and t o some extent the 

Canyon formations i n the area of the u n i t . 

Because of outcrop work t h a t we had done i n 

lo o k i n g i n the Hueco Mountains, we recognized t h a t t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r unconformity was something t h a t was a c t i v e as a 

petroleum system, and r e s e r v o i r s i n the upper Pennsylvanian 

were p o s s i b l e . I n f a c t , the Texaco FO w e l l , t h a t i s 

southwest of the u n i t , t e s t e d o i l from a carbonate 

development i n the Cisco s e c t i o n . I t was cored, t h e r e was 

o i l i n the cores. 

Subsequent d r i l l i n g by H.L. Brown t r i e d t o o f f s e t 

t h a t and make a commercial o i l w e l l from the Cisco. 

Q. So there are always secondary zones i n the u n i t 

area? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let's move on t o E x h i b i t s 9 and 10. What do they 

r e f l e c t ? 

A. E x h i b i t 9 i s an expanded Canyon p a r t i c i p a t i n g 

area. The darker blue o u t l i n e and c o l o r f i l l represents 

the i n i t i a l Canyon p a r t i c i p a t i n g area t h a t was done on 160-

acre spacing. 
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1 The l i g h t e r greenish-blue represents the expanded 

2 p a r t i c i p a t i n g area based on 640-acre spacing. 

3 Q. Okay. And t h a t i s based on the 25-1 w e l l ? 

4 A. That — Yes, t h a t expansion i s based on the 25-1 

5 w e l l . Our engineers modeled the pressure and p e r m e a b i l i t y 

6 i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t we had from the 25-1 and determined t h a t 

7 t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l w i t h those c o n d i t i o n s would d r a i n a t 

8 l e a s t 640 acres. 

9 Q. And again, t h a t w e l l , other than some minor 

10 t e s t i n g , has not produced t o date? 

11 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

12 Q. And E x h i b i t 10, please? 

13 A. E x h i b i t 10 i s an expanded p a r t i c i p a t i n g area p l a t 

14 showing the expansion of the i n i t i a l M i s s i s s i p p i a n 

15 p a r t i c i p a t i n g area from 320 acres — 32 0 acres t o a much 

16 l a r g e r area t h a t incorporates 640-acre spacing. 

17 Q. And again, the p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas as expanded, 

18 the data was submitted t o the BLM, the Land O f f i c e and the 

19 O i l Conservation Division? 

20 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. The supporting data f o r the p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas? 

22 A. To my knowledge, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

23 Q. So looking at these two p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas — 

24 and I d i d n ' t do an exact c a l c u l a t i o n , Mr. Yahney, but w i t h 

25 these two p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas about t w o - t h i r d s of the u n i t 
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1 area has been deemed reasonably productive of hydrocarbons, 

2 has i t not? 

3 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

4 Q. With only two wells? 

5 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

6 Q. And Heyco would l i k e t o develop a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s 

7 w i t h i n the u n i t area? 

8 A. Exactly. 

9 Q. I s there an APD, a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit t o d r i l l , 

10 c u r r e n t l y pending before the Bureau of Land Management? 

11 A. Yes, there i s , f o r the Bennett Ranch U n i t Number 

12 6 l o c a t i o n i n Section 24 of 26 South, 12 East. 

13 Q. And what w i l l t h a t w e l l t e s t ? 

14 A. That w e l l i s scheduled t o go t o approximately 

15 6100 f e e t t o t e s t the e n t i r e s e c t i o n down through t o the 

16 Fusselman. 

17 Q. At t h i s p o i n t , due t o the l i m i t e d amount of 

18 d r i l l i n g and the i n a b i l i t y t o produce the w e l l s , has t h e r e 

19 been enough d r i l l i n g t o e i t h e r — t o condemn acreage w i t h i n 

20 the u n i t ? 

21 A. We do not believe at t h i s p o i n t t h a t there's been 

22 enough d r i l l i n g t o condemn any s p e c i f i c acreage w i t h i n the 

23 u n i t . 

24 Q. Whether the u n i t area as i t e x i s t s or the u n i t 

25 area as expanded? 
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A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. At t h i s p o i n t , can you t e l l or l i m i t the f u l l 

e x tent of the Canyon and M i s s i s s i p p i a n r e s e r v o i r s ? 

A. No, we cannot. We can expect p o s s i b l y t h a t each 

of these r e s e r v o i r s has some l i m i t a t i o n s , because they 

weren't d i r e c t l y seen i n the second w e l l . But as t o the 

f u l l e xtent of those r e s e r v o i r s , we do not know what t h a t 

i s . 

And I might add t h a t the seismic t h a t we have i s 

not of the d e f i n i t i o n t h a t would t e l l us the e x t e n t of the 

pr o d u c i b l e areas of these r e s e r v o i r s e i t h e r . 

Q. And again, t h i s i s an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t , i s i t 

not? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i n your opinion, should you conduct a f u l l 

e x p l o r a t i o n program before the u n i t i s contracted? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Have you reviewed the order of the D i v i s i o n 

denying the u n i t expansion? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. One of the issues they address i s the water t h a t 

was encountered i n d r i l l i n g the w e l l s . I n your o p i n i o n , 

does t h i s have anything t o do w i t h u n i t expansion? 

A. No, i t does not. 

Q. What does t h a t have t o do with? 
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1 A. That has t o do w i t h the APD approval process and 

2 the d r i l l i n g program t h a t may be set out by the c o n t r o l l i n g 

3 body. 

4 Q. Okay. So r e a l l y , i t has t o do w i t h the adequacy 

5 of the wellbore design? 

6 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

7 Q. Do operators i n New Mexico d r i l l through water­

8 bearing zones b a s i c a l l y every day of the year? 

9 A. Yes, they do. 

10 Q. And even i f the u n i t i s n ' t expanded, Heyco could 

11 s t i l l f i l e f o r an APD on i t s non-unit lands, could i t not? 

12 A. Yes, s i r , i t could. 

13 Q. Have you encountered pools t h a t were — i n your 

14 geologic work i n New Mexico, t h a t were spaced on 640 acres? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. Are you aware of the types of setbacks they have? 

17 A. Yes, I am. 

18 Q. And what are they, generally? 

19 A. Setbacks f o r 640-acre spacing are normally e i t h e r 

20 1650 acres from the section l i n e or 660 acres from the — 

21 Q. Not acres, but — 

22 A. No, f e e t , excuse me, yes. 

23 Q. They're e i t h e r 1650 f e e t or as f a r as, sometimes, 

24 660 feet? 

25 A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. I s there any need f o r any of those setbacks f o r 

w e l l s i n the i n t e r i o r of the u n i t ? 

A. No, there i s not. 

Q. Because once the w e l l s are i n a p a r t i c i p a t i n g 

area, everyone shares production anyway? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , as I understand i t . 

Q. I suppose y o u ' l l get t h i s question anyway, Mr. 

Yahney, but obviously Heyco hasn't a p p l i e d f o r — t o the 

D i v i s i o n f o r 640-acre spacing? 

A. No, we have not, as of t h i s time. 

Q. And a t t h i s time no one has been — whether the 

spacing i s 160 or 640 acres, no o f f s e t has been adversely 

affected? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. The two producing w e l l s are q u i t e a ways w i t h i n 

the i n t e r i o r of the u n i t area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i f you can produce — i f you can commence 

production from those w e l l s , your engineers would o b t a i n 

a d d i t i o n a l data, would they not? 

A. Yes, they would. 

Q. And Heyco i s n ' t adverse t o seeking an expansion 

of the w e l l spacing i f t h a t ' s what the engineering 

d i c t a t e s ; i s t h a t correct? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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1 Q. Do you have any other comments a t t h i s p o i n t , Mr. 

2 Yahney? 

3 A. No, I do not. 

4 Q. Were E x h i b i t s 7 through 10 prepared by you or 

5 under your supervision? 

6 A. Yes, they were. 

7 Q. And i n your opinion, i s the g r a n t i n g of the u n i t 

8 expansion i n the i n t e r e s t s of the prevention of waste, 

9 p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

10 A. Yes, i t i s . 

11 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I ' d move the admission 

12 of Heyco E x h i b i t s 7 through 10. 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection? 

14 MS. ALTOMARE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: E x h i b i t s 7 through 10 w i l l be 

16 so admitted. 

17 MR. BRUCE: I pass the witness, Mr. Chairman. 

18 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At t h i s p o i n t , why don't — 

19 before we begin the cross-examination, l e t ' s take a 10-

20 minute break and reconvene a t 25 t i l l 11:00. 

21 Thank you a l l . 

22 (Thereupon, a recess was taken a t 10:25 a.m.) 

23 (The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 10:39 a.m.) 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, l e t ' s go back on the 

25 record. Let the record r e f l e c t t h a t t h i s i s a c o n t i n u a t i o n 
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of Case Number 14,000, t h a t a l l three Commissioners are 

s t i l l present, we s t i l l t h e r e f o r e have a quorum. 

And I believe we were about t o begin the cross-

examination of Mr. Yahney by Ms. Altomare. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Proceed. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. Yahney, were you involved i n the d r i l l i n g of 

the f i r s t w e l l t h a t was attempted on t h i s u n i t ? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. And can you ex p l a i n t o the Commission what 

happened as t o why t h a t w e l l was not completed? 

A. That w e l l was d r i l l e d t o somewhere around 2600 

f e e t , and i n d r i l l i n g through the bottom p a r t of the 

Wolfcamp i n t o the Powwow formation we cut a shale, k i n d of 

a greenish shale, t h a t we l a t e r found out swelled 

s i g n i f i c a n t l y on us. And when we attempted t o run an 

intermediate set of casing t o i s o l a t e water t h a t we 

encountered, we could not get t h a t casing down and ended up 

ju n k i n g t h a t w e l l . Couldn't get the casing down, couldn't 

get i t out, and had t o plug and s k i d . 

Q. Was any t e s t i n g done on the water t h a t was 

encountered as you d r i l l e d t h a t well? 

A. Probably, yes. 
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Q. Do you r e c a l l whether t h a t water was f r e s h or 

what the nature of t h a t water was? 

A. The water encountered on the o r i g i n a l w e l l , I 

guess most of i t , i f I remember r i g h t , would be considered 

under the d e f i n i t i o n of the OCD as f r e s h , c o n t a i n i n g less 

than 10,000 p a r t s per m i l l i o n t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s . 

Some of the water at TD, when we were having a l l 

of our problems, t e s t e d i n the range of 10,000 t o 12,000 

p a r t s per m i l l i o n t o t a l dissolved s o l i d s . 

Q. At TD on the f i r s t w e l l or on the f i r s t — 

A. On the f i r s t w e l l — 

Q. — completed well? 

A. — the f i r s t w e l l , the one t h a t we junked. 

Q. Okay. On the second w e l l t h a t was d r i l l e d , how 

d i d you d r i l l i t d i f f e r e n t l y t o accommodate — t o overcome 

the problem t h a t was encountered i n the f i r s t w e l l ? 

A. We switched from a smaller r i g t o a bigger r i g 

w i t h more compressed a i r c a p a b i l i t i e s , and we d i d not leave 

the problem formation open t o d r i l l i n g f l u i d s , f o r mation 

waters, f o r a length of time t h a t would allow i t t o s w e l l 

and give us problems, and we cased i t o f f . 

Q. Okay. And at what p o i n t i n t h a t second w e l l — 

which i s the 1Y; i s t h a t r i g h t ? — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — a t what p o i n t i n the d r i l l i n g of the second 
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w e l l d i d you encounter water? 

A. We encountered water i n roughly the same places 

t h a t we encountered water i n the f i r s t w e l l . A l i t t l e b i t 

i n the Abo, various l i t t l e places i n the Wolfcamp, and then 

again a t the base of the Wolfcamp, a t the unconformity w i t h 

the Pennsylvanian s e c t i o n . We also had gas i n those zones. 

Q. Okay, so the gas and the water were adjacent t o 

one another? 

A. I n t h a t area they were i n close p r o x i m i t y t o each 

other, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Was the water t h a t was discovered i n the d r i l l i n g 

of the 1Y considered f r e s h by OCD standards? 

A. I don't know t h a t I've got any k i n d of a n a l y s i s 

on the waters t h a t were t e s t e d i n t h a t upper p a r t of the 

1Y. 

Q. Was any k i n d of f l u i d used t o complete the 

d r i l l i n g of the 1Y well? Were muds used, d r i l l i n g muds? 

A. The 1Y was — which ended up being completed as a 

gas w e l l i n the M i s s i s s i p p i a n , was d r i l l e d w i t h a i r u n t i l 

we got through the b i g gas zone i n the M i s s i s s i p p i a n . So 

a f t e r t h a t , i t was — a f t e r t h a t zone was cased o f f , we 

d r i l l e d ahead w i t h a normal, conventional mud system. 

Q. Okay, and what — I n a normal, conventional mud 

system, what i s comprised of the normal, conventional mud 

system used by Yates — by Heyco? 
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A. I don't have those d e t a i l s , I can't g i v e you 

t h a t . I t was probably a low-chloride system t h a t — w i t h 

c e r t a i n gels and a d d i t i v e s t o take care of water l o s s . 

Q. Okay. When you use a mud system f o r d r i l l i n g , do 

you have a mud engineer on s i t e ? 

A. We have a mud engineer t h a t ' s — i n t h i s case, 

was on s i t e , t h a t ' s i n terms of our normal d r i l l i n g 

o perations. That mud engineer may not be on s i t e around 

the clock — 

Q. Were steps — 

A. — but f o r — 

Q. — were steps taken t o p r o t e c t the waters i n the 

area from the f l u i d s t h a t were being used t o d r i l l with? 

A. I don't know e x a c t l y what you mean by steps here. 

Q. Were — was anything done by Heyco i n the process 

of d r i l l i n g once you switched over t o a f l u i d system t o 

ensure t h a t no contamination of groundwater occurred? 

A. While we're d r i l l i n g , we're using a mud system 

t h a t — you know, i f we know t h a t we're invading the 

formations, t h a t we w i l l increase the water loss and b u i l d 

a f i l t e r - c a k e so t h a t t h a t invasion does not i n c u r , t o a 

great extent. 

Q. What would you consider a great extent? 

A. I don't know what I would consider a great 

extent. We t r y t o monitor our losses from our p i t s . 
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Q. Okay, and how i s t h a t monitoring conducted? 

A. With f l o a t s , u s u a l l y . I'm not the person t o be 

asking about engineering-type operations, but yes. 

Q. And Heyco i s not presenting an engineer today t o 

t e s t i f y as t o any engineering aspects; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Would you be s u r p r i s e d t o know t h a t your 

predecessor a t the preceding hearing t e s t i f i e d t h a t a high 

c o n c e n t r a t i o n of KCl was used i n the d r i l l i n g of the 1Y? 

A. We used KCl i n , you know, concentrations between 

2 and 7 percent f o r c e r t a i n t h i n g s . And i n the 1Y we may 

have even used a concentration — s i m i l a r c o n c e n t r a t i o n of 

calcium c h l o r i d e . And we d i d t h a t because we ran some 

t e s t s t h a t t r i e d t o t e l l us about the i n t e r a c t i o n of the 

d r i l l i n g f l u i d s t h a t we had w i t h the c l a y mineralogy t h a t 

was present i n the shales. 

Q. Okay, and so those percentages t h a t you were 

c i t i n g i s what you would consider a high c o n c e n t r a t i o n of 

c h l o r i d e ? 

A. I don't know t h a t I ' d consider t h a t a high 

c o n c e n t r a t i o n of c h l o r i d e s . 

Q. Okay. I f somebody — 

A. And l e t me say, when we're d r i l l i n g w i t h a i r , 

we're p u t t i n g i n a calcium- — or a potassium-chloride 

s o l u t i o n i n t o a mister, we're not using a l o t of calcium-
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1 c h l o r i d e s o l u t i o n . We're p u t t i n g t h a t i n t o a m i s t e r , i n t o 

2 the compressed a i r stream t h a t we're pumping down the w e l l , 

3 and we're — t h a t ' s not a large volume of water. 

4 Q. Okay. Did you — I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d the name of 

5 the gentleman t h a t t e s t i f i e d a t the l a s t hearing. Was i t 

6 Underwood? 

7 A. John Underwood. 

8 Q. Did you work w i t h him on t h i s s i t e ? 

9 A. Yes, I have. 

10 Q. Okay. And he i s — i s he l i k e w i s e a ge o l o g i s t ? 

11 A. He i s a g e o l o g i s t and a ge o p h y s i c i s t , w i t h a 

12 degree i n g e o l o g i c a l engineering from Colorado School of 

13 Mines. 

14 Q. So i f he were t o use the — i f he were t o say t o 

15 you t h a t you were using a high c o n c e n t r a t i o n of potassium 

16 c h l o r i d e , what would you i n t e r p r e t t h a t t o mean? 

17 A. I don't know what ne c e s s a r i l y — I wasn't th e r e 

18 f o r t h a t p a r t i c u l a r testimony. I know i t ' s p r e t t y easy f o r 

19 c e r t a i n t h i n g s t o get taken out of context. 

20 Q. What k i n d of casing was run i n the 1Y? Was i t 

21 run a l l the way t o the surface? 

22 A. Casing? The 1Y casing program, we have a surface 

23 s t r i n g , and I believe i t was set a t a c e r t a i n depth which 

24 would have gotten i t i n t o the top of the Wolfcamp. 

25 Q. Okay. 
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1 A. A second s t r i n g t h a t was in t e r m e d i a t e , t h a t was 

2 set i n the — below the unconformity, and a — somewhere 

3 below the unconformity, and then a production s t r i n g t h a t 

4 was run t o TD. 

5 Q. Were there any d i f f i c u l t i e s i n running the casing 

6 s t r i n g s w i t h the 1Y well? 

7 A. I don't r e c a l l any. 

8 Q. And d r i l l i n g the t h i r d w e l l , the 25-1, was t h a t 

9 d r i l l e d i n the same way as the 1Y? 

10 A. I t was d r i l l e d w i t h a i r t o a p o i n t where we got 

11 i n t o the p o r o s i t y development i n the Fusselman, a t which 

12 time we switched t o — you know, a l i t t l e b i t past t h a t , we 

13 switched t o water — 

14 Q. Okay. 

15 A. — a mud system. 

16 Q. And again, i t would have been the same standard 

17 mud system t h a t you would have used i n the 1Y? 

18 A. I t would probably have been q u i t e s i m i l a r . 

19 Q. Do you r e c a l l a t what p o i n t you encountered 

20 waters i n the 25-1 well? 

21 A. We encountered water a t approximately 3 3 00 f e e t . 

22 Q- And do you r e c a l l the nature of t h a t water? 

23 A. That water probably had t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s i n 

24 the neighborhood of 3000 t o 4000 p a r t s per m i l l i o n , and i t 

25 was s o f t I t had low hardness readings and higher 
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c h l o r i d e s . 

That p a r t i c u l a r phenomenon i s something 

associated w i t h an igneous s i l t t h a t ' s c a r r y i n g a l t e r e d 

f e l d s p a r s and has a concentration of z e o l i t e s i n i t t h a t 

are a c t i n g as b a s i c a l l y ion-exchange-type m a t e r i a l s . 

No water was seen i n the same zones t h a t were — 

t h a t i t was seen i n , i n the 1Y or the 1. 

Q. Okay, so the water encountered i n the 25-1 was a t 

d i f f e r e n t l e v e l s than a t the preceding two — 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. — d r i l l . . . 

So t h i s i s a v a r i a b l e area; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I would c l a s s i f y i t as such, yes. 

Q. I'm going t o r e f e r you t o the E x h i b i t 8 t h a t you 

had t a l k e d about, which i s the schematic c r o s s - s e c t i o n — 

A. Yeah. 

Q. — you had r e f e r r e d t o . And the only t h i n g t h a t 

was noted on i t — i t says Bennett Ranch schematic cross-

s e c t i o n , although I t r i e d t o w r i t e down q u i c k l y — You had 

mentioned t h a t i t was taken from some source. Where i s 

t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n derived — 

A. I t was modified from some documentation by Bruce 

Black, probably r e s u l t i n g from h i s PhD d i s s e r t a t i o n from 

the U n i v e r s i t y of New Mexico. 

Q. Okay, and when was t h i s compiled? 
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A. When d i d I do the work, or when d i d Bruce do the 

work? 

Q. When d i d Bruce do the work? When d i d the — the 

data t h a t l e d t o t h i s schematic? 

A. Well, the date of the d i s s e r t a t i o n , I b e l i e v e , i s 

1973, so t h a t would probably be some — he d i d a l o t of 

work i n the area i n the e a r l y '70s, so somewhere i n th e r e . 

Q. And then when d i d you do the work t o put together 

t h i s adaptation? 

A. This was, you know, prepared and modified j u s t 

f o r t h i s hearing. 

Q. Okay, and what m o d i f i c a t i o n s d i d you make t o i t 

from the o r i g i n a l schematic as prepared by Ms. [ s i c ] Black? 

A. Well, i t ' s — some of the f o r m a t i o n a l boundaries 

have been moved, and some a d d i t i o n a l minor d e t a i l s have 

been added. 

Q. Okay. And on what basis d i d you make these 

changes? 

A. Based on my knowledge of the Bennett Ranch u n i t . 

Q. Okay. Was i t based on seismic data? 

A. To a minor extent, yes. 

Q. Okay, and what seismic data was i t based on? 

A. There e x i s t s a s i g n i f i c a n t data set of 2-D data 

t h a t was shot between the mid-'60s t o the e a r l y '80s, 

probably — yeah, e a r l y '80s — which Heyco bought a good 
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p o r t i o n o f . I t ' s also based on a l i n e t h a t was j o i n t l y 

shot by the partners i n Bennett Ranch U n i t across the area, 

a 2-D l i n e . 

Q. And i s t h i s meant t o d e p i c t a p a r t i c u l a r s e c t i o n , 

a p a r t i c u l a r — 

A. This i s meant t o b a s i c a l l y show a schematic t h a t 

would s t a r t o f f the north end of the u n i t and continue t o a 

p o i n t o f f the south end of the u n i t , running from northwest 

t o southeast. 

Q. Okay. I s there a reason t h a t you d i d not include 

groundwater d e p i c t i o n i n t h i s schematic? 

A. I d i d not t h i n k t h a t i t was important i n terms of 

the concept f o r e x p l o r a t i o n . 

Q. Where on t h i s schematic, i f you are able t o 

s p e c i f y , would the c u r r e n t l y e x i s t i n g w e l l s be located? 

A. Okay, approximately i n the middle of the 

Pennsylvanian, the l a b e l t h a t says Pennsylvanian — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — the Bennett Ranch Number 1 and 1Y would be — 

would have been d r i l l e d i n t h a t p o s i t i o n . 

And f u r t h e r t o the r i g h t , a t an approximate 

p o s i t i o n i n the middle of the word Woodford, would be the 

25-1. 

Q. Okay. And i s there a reason t h a t you d i d n ' t 

i nclude those two we l l s f o r p o i n t s of reference on t h i s 
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1 schematic •p 

2 A. I d i d n ' t t h i n k i t was necessary. 

3 Q. This i s an area t h a t i s known t o be h i g h l y 

4 f a u l t e d ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

5 A. I disagree. 

6 Q. You disagree w i t h t h a t ? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Okay. I'm going t o go ahead and show you — t h i s 

9 i s not a formal e x h i b i t , t h i s i s p a r t of the OCD record, 

10 but we d i d make a d d i t i o n a l copies f o r the Commission so 

11 t h a t you have — 

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And f o r Mr. Bruce? 

13 MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. 

14 THE WITNESS: Would you c l a r i f y what you mean by 

15 "highly"? 

16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you approach the 

17 witness? 

18 MS. ALTOMARE: What? 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you approach the 

20 witness? 

21 MS. ALTOMARE: May I approach the witness? 

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

23 Q. (By Ms. Altomare) Do you recognize t h i s document? 

24 A. Sure do. 

25 Q. Okay. 
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1 A. Helped b u i l d i t . 

2 Q. What d i d you say? 

3 A. I helped b u i l d i t . 

4 Q. Okay. I'm going t o represent f o r the record t h a t 

5 t h i s i s a schematic cross-section t h a t was la b e l e d E x h i b i t 

6 Number 4, Bennett Ranch, Heyco, and i t i s i d e n t i f i e d by J. 

7 Underwood. And I t h i n k t h i s was an e x h i b i t t o the o r i g i n a l 

8 a p p l i c a t i o n i n 1995 f o r the Bennett Ranch U n i t . 

9 This p a r t i c u l a r schematic shows — or p u r p o r t t o 

10 show the same area t h a t i s portrayed by E x h i b i t 8, does i t 

11 not? 

12 A. I t i s roughly 90 degrees opposing the example of 

13 Number 8. 

14 Q. 90 degrees opposing. Okay. 

15 A. E x h i b i t 8 i s perpendicular t o t h i s schematic. 

16 Q. Okay. I s there a reason t h a t you chose t o submit 

17 an e x h i b i t i n t h i s proceeding t h a t i s f a r less d e t a i l e d 

18 than the e x h i b i t t h a t was prepared i n the o r i g i n a l 

19 a p p l i c a t i o n i n '95? 

20 A. I prepared t h i s e x h i b i t s p e c i f i c a l l y t o show the 

21 s t r u c t u r e i n the other d i r e c t i o n , plus the intended 

22 o b j e c t i v e s of the petroleum system t h a t I perceive i s t h e r e 

23 a t the unconformity, going out t o the n o r t h , where s t a t e d 

24 i n the d e n i a l of the — by the OCD, they have a problem 

25 w i t h our expanding the u n i t i n t h a t d i r e c t i o n . 
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Q. Okay. But since 1995 a s i g n i f i c a n t amount of 

a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n has been acquired about t h i s u n i t ; 

i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. There has been two a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s , seismic 

data, yes. 

Q. So wouldn't i t f o l l o w t h a t the Commission and the 

D i v i s i o n would not be unreasonable t o expect a more 

d e t a i l e d e x h i b i t of a schematic of t h i s area, based on the 

f a c t t h a t you now have more i n f o r m a t i o n , not a less 

d e t a i l e d e x h i b i t ? 

A. Well, I don't know t h a t — i n my mind, t h a t t h a t 

i s necessary. I don't — as an e x p l o r a t i o n i s t , I don't 

p a r t i c u l a r l y want t o put i n the p u b l i c record t h i n g s t h a t 

w i l l allow my competitors t o have the same co m p e t i t i v e 

advantage as I have. 

Q. Okay. Would the i n c l u s i o n of i d e n t i f i c a t i o n of 

l o c a t i o n of f r a c t u r e s i n t h i s area give any k i n d of an edge 

t o competitors? 

A. I don't see any f r a c t u r e s i d e n t i f i e d on — 

anywhere here. I see f a u l t s t h a t do not penetrate the — 

much beyond the base of the Wolfcamp. They do not come t o 

the surface. 

Q. Okay, I apologize i f I'm using the wrong 

verbiage. F a u l t s . There are f a u l t s depicted on the 

schematic cross-section t h a t I'm showing you t h a t ' s been 
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labeled as E x h i b i t 4 t o the o r i g i n a l A p p l i c a t i o n ; i s n ' t 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And they do permeate down beyond the 

Fusselman, correc t ? 

A. Yes, they would go down below the Fusselman. 

Q. Okay, and the Fusselman i s the area t o which 

Heyco i s c u r r e n t l y d r i l l i n g ? 

A. Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And there are no f a u l t s depicted a t a l l on your 

E x h i b i t 8 schematic f o r today? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Were you involved i n the submission of the 

a p p l i c a t i o n or the statement of the — the request f o r the 

expansion t h a t was submitted t o the BLM o r i g i n a l l y i n 2007? 

A. I suppose so, yes. 

Q. Okay. So what i s your understanding of what the 

reason f o r t h i s expansion request is? 

A. The expansion request i s t o develop the gas 

r e s e r v o i r s t h a t have been proven by the two w e l l s on — 

t h a t have been proven by the two w e l l s , instead of on 160-

acre spacing or 40-acre spacing as the u n i t o u t l i n e was 

o r i g i n a l l y set out, but t o develop t h a t on 64 0-acre 

spacing. And we supplied what i n f o r m a t i o n we had t o 

j u s t i f y t h a t t o the BLM, and you should have obtained 
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1 copies of such. 

2 Q. Okay. So the goal of t h i s expansion, i n c l u d i n g 

3 the expansion t h a t ' s requested t o the n o r t h , i s t o pursue 

4 gas recovery a t 640-acre spacing? 

5 A. That would be p a r t of i t , yes. 

6 Q. Okay. 

7 A. Not necessarily a l l of i t . 

8 Q. Okay. The request t h a t was submitted t o the BLM 

9 s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e d t h a t the expansion was being requested 

10 t o accommodate development of a probable gas resource, 

11 which i s y e t t o be f u l l y d elineated. 

12 Where i n t h a t statement i s there any k i n d of a 

13 request f o r any other k i n d of j u s t i f i c a t i o n f o r expansion 

14 t o the n o r t h , besides searching f o r gas? 

15 A. I don't see where anything else i s needed. 

16 Q. Okay. What other i n f o r m a t i o n do you have t o 

17 j u s t i f y expansion t o the n o r t h , t h a t there's gas t o the 

18 north? 

19 A. As I st a t e d e a r l i e r , i n t r y i n g t o describe the 

20 E x h i b i t 8, we i d e n t i f i e d w i t h the d r i l l i n g of the Number 1 

21 and the 1Y t h a t there i s gas, and t o some extent a l i t t l e 

22 b i t of o i l , possible i n a petroleum system associated w i t h 

23 the unconformity, which the c r e s t of the s t r u c t u r e takes i t 

24 o f f t o the n o r t h and t o the northwest. 

25 As you p i c k up section t h a t you d i d not see i n 
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the Number 1 or 1Y, or t h a t you d i d not see i n the top of 

the s t r u c t u r e or near the top of the s t r u c t u r e i n the 25-1, 

those new formations t h a t are i n an a c t i v e petroleum system 

have not been looked a t . And we have not t e s t e d those 

zones i n the 1Y a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. Okay, i f Heyco knew t h a t they were going t o be 

applying f o r t h i s u n i t expansion, t h a t they were going t o 

have t o support the A p p l i c a t i o n , why wasn't a d d i t i o n a l 

seismic t e s t i n g done i n the northern p a r t of the u n i t t o 

j u s t i f y the Ap p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. We d i d not f e e l t h a t seismic t e s t i n g would t e l l 

us the answers t h a t we would need. You have t o have some 

s i g n i f i c a n t r e s o l u t i o n i n your seismic t o be able t o p i c k 

up a r e s e r v o i r . These — y o u know, i f the r e s e r v o i r i s 

s i m i l a r i n thickness t o the Canyon sand t h a t we have, 

you're not going t o see i t on seismic. 

Q. Was i t even attempted? 

A. There i s a 3-D shoot t h a t has been shot across 

most of the u n i t . I can t e l l you t h a t the data i s of 

r a t h e r poor q u a l i t y , and t o my i n t e r p r e t i v e a b i l i t i e s does 

not able anybody t o t r y t o determine what you're asking of 

us. 

Q. And t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n has not been shared w i t h any 

of the agencies t o which t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n has been 

submitted? 
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A. That i s c o r r e c t . That i s not normal process. 

Q. The basis f o r the expansion and f o r the 640-acre 

spacing i s t h a t t h i s area i s very permeable; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. The r e s e r v o i r s t h a t we have e s t a b l i s h e d , the 

M i s s i s s i p p i a n and the Canyon, both have p e r m e a b i l i t i e s and 

production i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t have t o l d us t h a t we can d r a i n 

640 acres, which means t h a t we've got p e r m e a b i l i t i e s i n 

excess, you know, of hundreds of m i l l i d a r c i e s or gr e a t e r . 

Q. Okay. And the same t h i n g t h a t enables t h i s high 

p e r m e a b i l i t y f o r accessing the n a t u r a l gas and other 

hydrocarbons also increases the p e r m e a b i l i t y f o r 

transmission of contamination; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I don't know t h a t I t o t a l l y understand your 

question here. 

Looking at the schematic, you've got a s e c t i o n of 

f a u l t s here. Okay? And you would assume t h a t there's 

f r a c t u r e s associated w i t h these f a u l t s . 

But the seismic t e l l s us t h a t most of these 

f a u l t s do not penetrate the base of the Wolfcamp, and we 

know t h a t there are shales at the base of the Wolfcamp t h a t 

act as a sea l . Otherwise we wouldn't have r e s e r v o i r s i n 

the Canyon w i t h producible q u a n t i t i e s of hydrocarbons i n 

them. 

Q. Okay, but you also know t h a t there i s water a t 

various l e v e l s throughout t h i s u n i t , c o r r e c t ? 
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1 A. Sure do. 

2 Q. Okay. These f r a c t u r e s run through the d i f f e r e n t 

3 l e v e l s — the d i f f e r e n t s t r a t i g r a p h y i n the u n i t ? 

4 A. There's no proof t o t e l l us t h a t the f r a c t u r e s i n 

5 t h i s area run from surface t o basement. 

6 Q. But the f a u l t s run — as depicted on the 

7 schematic from 1995, run through several d i f f e r e n t layers? 

8 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

9 Q. Okay. And the water t h a t you've encountered has 

10 l i k e w i s e been found i n several of those layers? 

11 A. We have found water i n some of those l a y e r s — 

12 Q. Okay. 

13 A. — t h a t i s c o r r e c t . And some of t h a t water has 

14 — could be considered t o be f r e s h by the OCD, and some of 

15 i t can't. 

16 Q. So the same t h i n g t h a t renders t h i s area 

17 permeable f o r purposes of o b t a i n i n g the hydrocarbons also 

18 renders i t a t r i s k f o r high t r a n s m i s s i b i l i t y f o r 

19 contamination of groundwater, correct? 

20 A. Groundwater — i f you describe groundwater as 

21 being the water t h a t — 

22 Q. For water-bearing zones, f o r f r e s h water i n 

23 water-bearing zones. 

24 A. I r e a l l y don't know how t o respond t o t h a t . 

25 Q. Okay. 
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A. You d r i l l f o r o i l and gas i n areas t h a t have 

freshwater zones a l l the time. That's not something t h a t ' s 

new. There's r u l e s and regs t o handle t h a t . 

Q. There's a d i f f e r e n c e between d r i l l i n g through a 

water-bearing zone and accessing a resource t h a t i s 

sandwiched i n between water-bearing — freshwater-bearing 

zones, though; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. I'm — again, I'm confused as t o where you're 

t r y i n g t o go w i t h t h i s . 

Q. You had t e s t i f i e d t h a t there was data t o support 

the 640-acre spacing, about the r a t e of drainage and 

whatnot. Why wasn't t h a t data submitted along w i t h the 

a p p l i c a t i o n a t e i t h e r the o r i g i n a l — the o r i g i n a l hearing 

w i t h — t o the D i v i s i o n , or a t t h i s date, u n t i l now? 

A. Didn't f e e l i t was necessary. 

Q. You also mentioned t h a t the 640-acre spacing — 

t h a t there are standard setbacks t h a t are u s u a l l y 

associated w i t h that? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Those setbacks u s u a l l y come i n t o f o r c e when 

s p e c i a l pool r u l e s are implemented; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's my understanding. 

Q. Okay, and you haven't applied f o r s p e c i a l pool 

r u l e s y e t , r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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1 Q. Has d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g been a c o n s i d e r a t i o n a t 

2 a l l i n t h i s u n i t ? 

3 A. Not t o t h i s p o i n t . I t may be i n the f u t u r e , but 

4 i t ' s not been a consid e r a t i o n a t t h i s p o i n t . D i r e c t i o n a l 

5 d r i l l i n g i s u s u a l l y a t o o l t h a t ' s used when you know the 

6 extents of your r e s e r v o i r s . We may not know t h a t y e t . 

7 Q. I s i t something t h a t Yates plans t o assess once 

8 the extent of the r e s e r v o i r has been determined? 

9 A. We'd l i k e t o d r i l l t o f i n d out those extents — 

10 Q. Okay. 

11 A. — d r i l l v e r t i c a l w e l l s . 

12 Q. Okay, and once the extents have been determined, 

13 i s Heyco w i l l i n g t o consider d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g ? Are 

14 they planning t o consider d i r e c t i o n a l d r i l l i n g i n t h i s — 

15 A. Well, I'm sure t h a t i t would be considered. I 

16 don't know t h a t i t — necessarily, t h a t i t would be i n our 

17 minds the prudent and proper t h i n g t o do. 

18 Q. And a t t h i s p o i n t do you know, long-term — or a t 

19 l e a s t i n the short term, what the plan i s f o r how many 

20 wells? 

21 A. I do not know what the plan i s n e c e s s a r i l y . The 

22 f i r s t w e l l t h a t we want t o do here, the Bennett Ranch 

23 Number 6, w i l l d i c t a t e what happens a f t e r t h a t . 

24 Q. Okay. I believe the only plan of o p e r a t i o n t h a t 

25 was submitted was the 2004 one t h a t had a d e p i c t i o n of any 
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k i n d of a plan f o r a d d i t i o n a l d r i l l i n g , and t h a t depicted 

f i v e a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s i n the southern p a r t of the u n i t . 

Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t one? 

A. There i s a plan of development t h a t was submitted 

a f t e r the Canyon discovery t h a t had development w e l l s i n 

the southern p a r t of the u n i t , t h a t i s c o r r e c t . Four or 

f i v e d i f f e r e n t w e l l s , d i f f e r e n t l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. Okay. And i s t h a t s t i l l Heyco 1s general plan f o r 

proceeding w i t h t h i s u n i t a t t h i s time? 

A. That would be considered a general pl a n , although 

I don't t h i n k t h a t a l l of the w e l l s t h a t you saw on t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r plan of development are probably necessary. The 

r e s e r v o i r study t h a t we d i d was conducted a f t e r the p lan of 

development t h a t was submitted, where those l o c a t i o n s were 

set out. 

We also submitted a t one time i n the l a t e '90s a 

plan of development showing an a d d i t i o n a l f o u r l o c a t i o n s t o 

develop the M i s s i s s i p p i a n r e s e r v o i r i n the n o r t h e r n p a r t of 

the u n i t . Those are s t i l l — could be v i a b l e l o c a t i o n s . 

And one of them i s i n the acreage t h a t i s above the 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas. 

Q. You're aware t h a t a large a q u i f e r has been 

designated beneath t h i s p a r t i c u l a r area? 

A. Well, I'm aware t h a t Rule 21 covers a l a r g e area 

out here. I'm aware t h a t there i s an extensive a q u i f e r i n 
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the V i c t o r i o Peak Shelf Reef sec t i o n i n the D e l l C i t y area. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the S a l t Basin a q u i f e r and 

i t s a t t r i b u t e s ? 

A. That's the a q u i f e r t h a t I'm t a l k i n g about. 

Q. Okay. Do you know what the s i g n i f i c a n c e i s when 

the State Engineer's O f f i c e designates a basin as an 

aquifer? 

A. I can't say t h a t I do, e x a c t l y . 

Q. Do you understand t h a t there are water r i g h t s 

associated w i t h t h a t body of water? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Okay. Does Heyco have any plan as i t proceeds 

f o r ensuring t h a t the a q u i f e r i s pr o t e c t e d from the — from 

any contamination from any a c t i v i t y ? 

A. We don't expect any contamination from our 

a c t i v i t i e s t o get t o the a q u i f e r as we understand i t . As 

we understand the a q u i f e r , i t i s l i m i t e d t o the lower p a r t 

of the San Andres and the V i c t o r i o Peak s e c t i o n . Those 

formations aren't a t Bennett Ranch. 

Q. Okay. At t h i s p o i n t would you say t h a t the 

primary t a r g e t of t h i s u n i t i s n a t u r a l gas? 

A. I t i s a primary t a r g e t . I t ' s not the only 

t a r g e t . 

Q. Okay. And as your colleague t e s t i f i e d , you do 

s t i l l i n t e n d t o d r i l l these w e l l s t o the Fusselman? 
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A. We inten d t o d r i l l a t l e a s t one more t o the 

Fusselman. I don't know beyond t h a t . 

Q. How f a m i l i a r are you w i t h the f r a c t u r i n g i n t h i s 

area? 

A. I t ' s hard t o say. Certain areas I'm f a m i l i a r 

w i t h , other areas I'm not. 

Q. Can you say whether or not the f r a c t u r e s — the 

water t h a t i s — has been found located above 2500 f e e t 

might connect t o the water t h a t i s found below 2500 f e e t i n 

t h i s area because of the f r a c t u r i n g i n t h i s u n i t ? 

A. Well, the d i f f e r e n t water chemistry suggests t h a t 

i t probably i s not connected, but I don't know t h a t f o r 

sure. 

Q. So i t ' s possible? 

A. I would assume maybe i t ' s p o s s i b l e . You have a 

number of seals t h a t you need t o get through, formations 

t h a t don't f r a c t u r e e a s i l y . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. I ' l l 

go ahead and pass the witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

Q. Don't know where t o s t a r t . I r e a l l y don't know 

where t o s t a r t . 

On the southern edge of the boundary of — i n 
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1 Texas Section 1 of Block B, you've located the U n i v e r s i t y 

2 Serengeti B 1 w e l l , 600 f e e t o f f of the New Mexico s t a t e 

3 l i n e ? 

4 A. Yes, t h a t sounds c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. Okay. Who i s the operator of t h a t w ell? 

6 A. The w e l l was operated by T r a i l Mountain. 

7 Q. I s i t producing now? 

8 A. That w e l l i s plugged. 

9 Q. Did i t produce f o r any length of time, or was i t 

10 j u s t d r i l l e d and abandoned? 

11 A. I t d i d not produce a t any l e n g t h of time or t e s t 

12 any — t o my knowledge, any s i g n i f i c a n t r a t e s of gas. That 

13 w e l l had shows i n the upper Pennsylvanian s e c t i o n , and i t 

14 was t e s t e d . The equivalent t o the — roughly the 

15 s t r a t i g r a p h i c equivalent of the Bennett Ranch 25-1 pay was 

16 t e s t e d i n t h a t w e l l , and i t i s two thousand — roughly 2500 

17 f e e t downdip. 

18 Q. So there's no p o s s i b i l i t y of drainage from t h a t 

19 p a r t i c u l a r well? 

20 A. No. 

21 Q. Had you been involved i n d r i l l i n g any w e l l s i n 

22 the Carlsbad k a r s t area? 

23 A. I can't say t h a t I have. 

24 Q. Does Heyco operate any w e l l s i n the Carlsbad 

25 k a r s t area? 
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A. I don't t h i n k we do. And I might ask f o r a 

d e f i n i t i o n of where t h a t area i s , but I don't t h i n k we do. 

Q. I read the advertisement f o r t h i s case, and the 

advertisement f o r t h i s case t a l k s about expansion of u n i t 

area, a r e a l expansion. You're not a d r i l l i n g engineer? 

A. No. 

Q. You're not a mud engineer? 

A. No. 

Q. You may have been a witness t o the d r i l l i n g of 

the two Heyco w e l l s , but you were not the a u t h o r i t y i n 

charge d u r i n g those — t h a t d r i l l i n g , were you? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Have you any clue why you've been questioned 

about d r i l l i n g when we're not here t o t a l k about d r i l l i n g 

of w e l l s t h a t have occurred i n the past years? 

A. I missed t h a t . Would you repeat tha t ? I j u s t — 

Q. I t ' s a common — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: He apparently missed the 

p o i n t . 

Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) — the ap p r o p r i a t e 

forum f o r the questions t h a t you've been asked f o r the 

d r i l l i n g of the w e l l s when we're here t o t a l k about a r e a l 

expansion of the u n i t . Not d r i l l i n g of the w e l l s w i t h i n 

the u n i t , t h a t ' s covered i n a d i f f e r e n t forum, i s n ' t i t ? 

A. That's — t h a t ' s my understand- — t h a t ' s what I 
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understand, yes, t h a t ' s what I t h i n k should happen. 

Q. Okay. Because we are here t o answer — t o hear 

cases on a l o t of d i f f e r e n t subjects, and i t ' s , i n my mind, 

best t o keep very c l e a r what we're t a l k i n g about and not 

argue cases t h a t haven't even been a d v e r t i s e d . So t h a t ' s 

my side p o i n t on t h a t . 

Your E x h i b i t s 9 and 10 show expanded 

p a r t i c i p a t i o n areas. Have those expansions been approved 

by the BLM and the Land Office? 

A. To my knowledge, they have. 

Q. Are you involved i n Heyco's h i e r a r c h y f o r APD 

approvals? 

A. Yes, I ' d have t o say — I don't know what e x a c t l y 

you mean by t h a t , but yes, I probably am, as you're — 

describe i t t h e r e . 

Q. Are d r i l l i n g programs normally handled by 

d i s t r i c t — OCD d i s t r i c t personnel? 

A. I'm — 

Q. Approval of APDs and d r i l l i n g programs t h a t are 

l a i d out, handled by BLM and OCD? 

A. That's my understanding. 

Q. Questions have come up about the running of 

seismic. 

Even though you may run seismic and have the best 

geophysicists poss i b l e , j u s t because you p i c k a spot based 
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on seismic doesn't guarantee a w e l l , does i t ? 

A. No, i t doesn't. D r i l l e d p l e n t y of dry holes. 

Q. That's r i g h t . 

The question came up about the S a l t Basin 

a q u i f e r . The Bennett Ranch Unit i s not connected t o the 

S a l t Basin a q u i f e r , i s i t ? 

A. I don't t h i n k i t i s . 

Q. Because don't the maps i n d i c a t e t h a t t h a t S a l t 

Basin i s many, many miles t o the east? 

A. Yes, i t ' s a good distance o f f . And l i k e I s a i d , 

I don't t h i n k there i s r e a l l y much i n the way of a 

f o r m a t i o n a l c o n t i n u i t y between there and where we're a t a t 

Bennett Ranch. 

Q. I'm sure you've read some of the referenced 

l i t e r a t u r e t h a t OCD has o f f e r e d as t h e i r e x h i b i t s . 

A. Yes, I've read most a l l of t h a t , most of i t i n 

the d i s t a n t past. 

Q. Yes, because they were w r i t t e n back i n *85, 

before t h e r e was new i n f o r m a t i o n f o r d e s c r i p t i o n s i n the 

area, because i s n ' t i t accurate t o say t h a t t e c h n i c a l 

papers change over time, according t o what developments — 

A. Yes, what new in f o r m a t i o n gets added, yes, they 

do. 

Q. Okay. The case between the Attorney General's 

O f f i c e and the BLM concerning the RMP f o r t h i s area i s 
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s t i l l i n the c o u r t s , i s n ' t i t ? 

A. To my knowledge, yes. 

Q. So we are not here t o question any of those 

t o p i c s t h a t are p a r t of t h a t case, are we? 

A. I agree. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I reserve the r i g h t t o ask 

more questions a t a l a t e r time. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. You were mentioning t h a t you were seeing f r e s h 

waters. I guess i t wasn't c l e a r t o me where you're — what 

formations you're seeing these f r e s h waters from. 

A. Fresh waters were seen i n the Abo, i n the 

Wolfcamp, i n the — t o a l i t t l e b i t of an extent i n the 

upper Pennsylvanian, i n the M i s s i s s i p p i a n and the Fusselman 

and the Ellenburger. 

So i n — p r e t t y much i n various places up and 

down through the se c t i o n . 

Those waters weren't a l l the same, by any means. 

Q. But by " f r e s h " you're saying they're less than 

10,000 m i l l i g r a m s per l i t e r t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

And we also saw waters t h a t had greater than t h a t 

number i n the base of the Wolfcamp, top of the upper 
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Pennsylvanian, and through the upper Pennsylvanian. 

Q. And you were mentioning t h a t some of these waters 

were i n close p r o x i m i t y t o the gas zones. What do you 

consider close? What ki n d of distance you're t a l k i n g 

about? 

A. Probably 50 t o 100 f e e t , maybe l e s s . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the 

questions I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Yahney, I want t o s t a r t w i t h a question. I 

may have got something wrong i n my notes, but i t seemed t o 

me t h a t you said t h a t the Texaco FO had extensive shows; i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A. The FO had shows. The FP had extensive shows i n 

the Fusselman. 

Q. Okay. P u l l i n g out the c r o s s - s e c t i o n t h a t was 

provided t o you by counsel t h a t i s not p a r t of the record 

— I mean t h a t i s p a r t of the record but not p a r t of the 

record i n t h i s case, I'm hard — d i d you complete i n an 

i n t e r v a l t h a t you d i d n ' t DST — or d i d Texaco complete i n 

an i n t e r v a l t h a t they d i d n ' t DST there? 

A. This w e l l has not been completed. I t was 

ex t e n s i v e l y t e s t e d , as you see from the records here, 

but — 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
989-9317 



93 

1 Q. And t h a t 1 s — 

2 A. — i f you would look a t — 

3 Q. — Mr. Yahney, t h a t ' s the p o i n t I'm t r y i n g t o 

4 make, i s , I don't see a show i n the t e s t s t h a t they d i d 

5 here. 

6 A. Yeah, and you also don't see the mud l o g , and you 

7 don't see the core d e s c r i p t i o n — 

8 Q. That's t r u e . 

9 A. — much beyond what's g e n e r a l l y t h e r e . I can 

10 p e r s o n a l l y t e l l you t h a t there was o i l coming out of the 

11 core i n the — t h a t was taken i n the Cisco or V i r g i l 

12 s e c t i o n of t h a t w e l l . 

13 Q. But the DST shows ab s o l u t e l y nothing p r o d u c i b l e , 

14 r i g h t ? Or nothing t h a t would be worth t e s t i n g again? 

15 A. Right, but t h i s w e l l was twinned by H.L. Brown. 

16 They thought the shows t h a t were i n t h i s w e l l warranted a 

17 second t e s t , and so the e n t i r e s e c t i o n was t e s t e d again, 

18 and unsuccessfully. 

19 Q. Would you c l a s s i f y H.L. Brown as a slow lear n e r 

20 then? 

21 A. Well, obviously he thought t h a t there was 

22 something t h a t was missed by Texaco, and maybe they... 

23 Q. Now you said t h a t your people modeled the 

24 drainage and t h a t i t would d r a i n — t h a t a w e l l d r i l l e d out 

25 t h e r e would probably d r a i n 640 acres. What formation were 
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1 you t a l k i n g about there? 

2 A. The w e l l t h a t we modeled was the 25-1, s i r . 

3 Q. And you aren't the modeler, I'm assuming? 

4 A. No, I was not. 

5 Q. Did you have anything t o do w i t h determining the 

6 i n p u t parameters f o r t h a t model? 

7 A. I probably d i d . 

8 Q. And can you t e l l me what some of those i n p u t 

9 parameters were? 

10 A. Not a t the moment. 

11 Q. Okay. So you can't t e l l me what k i n d of range of 

12 p e r m e a b i l i t y they were using? I'm assuming they were gas 

13 models. 

14 A. This was — Yes, t h i s was a gas model, and yes, 

15 the p e r m e a b i l i t y range was based on s i d e w a l l core data f o r 

16 the Canyon, and those numbers were between 100 and 2 00 

17 m i l l i d a r c i e s p e r m e a b i l i t y . 

18 Q. Okay. Do you know anyplace el s e , e i t h e r i n the 

19 v i c i n i t y i n here or on i n t o the Permian Basin, where the 

20 Canyon ranges between 100 and 200 m i l l i d a r c i e s ? 

21 A. I can't say t h a t I do, but I don't know t h a t I've 

22 looked s p e c i f i c a l l y f o r t h a t . 

23 Q. Okay. Were there any other important assumptions 

24 i n t h i s model t h a t we should know about? 

25 A. Well, j u s t the formation pressures t h a t were 
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1 i n v o l v e d and the — you know, the pressures from the 

2 drawdown t e s t s t h a t we d i d do. And I — you know, the 

3 bottomhole pressure f o r t h a t p a r t i c u l a r r e s e r v o i r , i f I 

4 remember r i g h t , was somewhere i n the neighborhood of 475 

5 pounds. 

6 Q. Okay. I n i t i a l bottomhole pressure was — 

7 A. — four hundred — 

8 Q. — ext r a p o l a t e d 475 pounds? 

9 A. That's c o r r e c t . This i s a low-pressure, h i g h -

10 p e r m e a b i l i t y r e s e r v o i r . 

11 Q. Well t h a t wouldn't be very e x c i t i n g even a t a low 

12 p e r m e a b i l i t y , would i t ? 

13 A. At a low p e r m e a b i l i t y , t h a t wouldn't be e x c i t i n g 

14 at a l l , you wouldn't get anything out of i t . 

15 Q. I mean a t a high p e r m e a b i l i t y i t wouldn't be 

16 e x c i t i n g a t a l l , would i t ? 

17 A. Well, i t ' s capable of d e l i v e r i n g above 3 m i l l i o n 

18 a day. 

19 Q. For a short period of time a t 475 pounds, you'd 

20 have an a w f u l l y low capacity, wouldn't you? 

21 A. Well, 475 pounds — How b i g i s your a r e a l extent? 

22 Q. Well, you're t e l l i n g us 640 acres here, aren't 

23 you? 

24 A. I'm t e l l i n g you t h a t a w e l l w i l l d r a i n 640 acres; 

25 I'm not t e l l i n g you t h a t the r e s e r v o i r i s t h a t s i z e . 
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1 Q. What would the reserves be a t 475 pounds, a t 640 

2 acres? 

3 A. I — The reserves, which g e n e r a l l y are 

4 p r o p r i e t a r y numbers f o r something l i k e t h a t — you know, 

5 we've made some c a l c u l a t i o n s , and we expect t h a t w e l l t o be 

6 able t o do between 3/4 and 1 BCF from t h a t zone, j u s t l i k e 

7 i t i s . 

8 Q. For 640-acre drainage? 

9 A. Whatever i t dr a i n s , whether t h a t ' s — 

10 Q. Well, aren't the reserves a f u n c t i o n of the 

11 drainage area? 

12 A. Yes, they are. I t may be able t o d r a i n more than 

13 t h a t , and i n t h a t case maybe the reserves would be b e t t e r . 

14 Q. And you're t h i n k i n g an EUR of between 3/4 and 1 

15 BCF? 

16 A. For t h a t p a r t i c u l a r w e l l , w i t h t h a t drainage. I 

17 t h i n k t h a t ' s probably the number t h a t was i n t h a t model. 

18 Q. I s t h a t a respective — I mean, i s t h a t a 

19 r e p r e s e n t a t i v e thickness f o r the r e s e r v o i r t h a t you expect 

20 t o encounter? 

21 A. We expect t h a t r e s e r v o i r t o t h i c k e n o f f s t r u c t u r e , 

22 and t h a t ' s p r e t t y much proven by the thickness t h a t we 

23 encountered and t h a t was penetrated i n both the 1Y and the 

24 Serengeti. 

25 Q. So o f f s t r u c t u r e t o the no r t h and t o the east? 
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A. To the southwest. 

Q. To the southwest. 

Now you said you skidded the r i g on the Bennett 

Ranch U n i t Number 1 t o the 1Y. 

A. That's inaccurate, t h a t ' s not c o r r e c t . That's — 

I misspoke t h e r e . 

Q. Okay — 

A. We moved t h a t l i t t l e r i g o f f and brought i n a 

bigger r i g t o d r i l l the second w e l l . 

Q. Okay, so you d i d n ' t s k i d i t , t h a t was j u s t a 

misstatement? 

A. Right, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you said something about the expansion being 

approved by the BLM. That was a b i t of a misstatement too, 

wasn't i t ? 

A. Not t o my knowledge, I t h i n k they have approved 

the expansion of the u n i t . 

Q. Didn't they c o n d i t i o n t h a t approval on the 

approval of the OCD? 

A. That's not a question f o r a g e o l o g i s t . 

Q. You mentioned you had some partners i n the 

Bennett Ranch U n i t . 

A. Yes, we do. 

Q. Who are those partners? 

A. The Redmon Partnership and ConocoPhillips, 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



98 

i n h e r i t e d from B u r l i n g t o n Resources, and v a r i o u s i n t e r n a l 

e n t i t i e s w i t h i n Heyco. 

Q. Now you mentioned t h a t the reason t h a t Heyco 

wanted t o expand the u n i t was t o f a c i l i t a t e 640-acre 

development, and then you said t h a t was p a r t of the reason. 

What i s the reason t h a t they want t o expand the u n i t ? 

A. I don't f o l l o w t h a t . We wanted t o expand the 

u n i t t o develop the gas r e s e r v o i r s t h a t we saw, both of 

which we thought had enough p e r m e a b i l i t y t o be able t o 

d r a i n 640-acre spacing. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Yes, we also wanted t o a t some p o i n t explore 

f u r t h e r on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r u n i t , and t o f a c i l i t a t e t h a t i n 

the best p o s s i b l e manner we thought t h a t expansion of the 

u n i t would be i n order. 

Q. Okay, and the expansion i s — w i t h the exception 

of Tract 11a, the expansion includes already leased Heyco 

leases; i s t h a t correct? 

A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are those 100-percent Heyco leases, or are they 

leased by the partnership? 

A. At t h i s p o i n t , those leases — I can't t e l l you 

t h a t again, t h a t ' s a question f o r a landman. 

Q. Okay. So why expand the u n i t ? I guess I don't 

understand why. 
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1 These leases are 100-percent Heyco, and they end 

2 up d r a i n i n g 640 acres, and you have the models t h a t show 

3 t h a t they d r a i n 64 0 acres. Why hold i t w i t h an e x p l o r a t o r y 

4 u n i t ? Why not j u s t pool t h a t d r i l l i n g u n i t and accomplish 

5 the same thing? 

6 A. Well, the f e d e r a l leases t h a t we hold have a time 

7 clock running on them. Okay. By p u t t i n g them i n t o the 

8 u n i t and d r i l l i n g i n a development program approved by the 

9 authorized o f f i c e r , we can hold those p a r t i c u l a r acreage 

10 w i t h a continuous development. 

11 Q. Okay so — You h i t on something t h e r e t h a t ' s k i n d 

12 of curious t o me. So the — one of the purposes of the 

13 expansion of the u n i t i s t o hold those f e d e r a l leases f o r a 

14 longer p e r i o d of time; i s t h a t correct? 

15 A. Well, t h a t could be considered a reason f o r 

16 expansion, yes. 

17 Q. Okay. 

18 A. That's not an unusual s i t u a t i o n . 

19 Q. What i s the r e s u l t of ho l d i n g those leases f o r a 

20 longer p e r i o d of time, w i t h respect t o c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s 

21 and the prevention of waste? 

22 A. Well, i f we t r u l y can develop on 640 acres and 

23 the r e s e r v o i r s t h a t we f i n d are capable of t h a t , we've 

24 prevented waste. We've d r i l l e d something on a smaller 

25 spacing w i t h less d o l l a r s t o generate the maximum r e t u r n of 
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the resource. 

Q. Okay, could you elaborate a l i t t l e b i t on t h a t , 

because I don't understand the reasoning. 

A. Okay, so we've gone out here t o the edge of the 

u n i t on one of the sections t h a t ' s not i n the p a r t i c i p a t i n g 

area. We make another discovery out t h e r e . I t ' s gas. 

Okay? 

We've got i t on 640-acre spacing, we're able t o 

develop i t on 640-acre spacing, apply f o r new f i e l d r u l e s , 

and not have t o develop t h a t w i t h — against c o m p e t i t i o n , 

t o o v e r - d r i l l t h a t p a r t i c u l a r r e s e r v o i r or p a r t of the 

s t r u c t u r e , and we prevent waste i n doing so. 

Q. Going back, Mr. Dyer was not p a r t of the o r i g i n a l 

development, but you apparently were? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. What were the o r i g i n a l boundaries of the u n i t 

based on? 

A. They were based on the — what we perceived as 

the c l o s i n g contour t o the Fusselman f o r m a t i o n , and they 

were based on 40-acre o i l spacing. There probably should 

have been a map t h a t went w i t h t h i s p a r t i c u l a r e x h i b i t t h a t 

showed you t h a t . 

Q. Now l e t ' s change. Why do we need — I s th e r e a 

geologic reason t o expand the u n i t ? 

A. We a t t h i s p o i n t have not t e s t e d the — what we 
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1 f e e l i s the t h i r d hydrocarbon r e s e r v o i r t h a t was seen i n 

2 the 1Y and the Number 1. We t h i n k t h a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

3 r e s e r v o i r may extend northward. 

4 And i t ' s an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t . We don't know 

5 where those extents w i l l end up, and we want t o develop our 

6 acreage. 

7 Q. Okay. The f i r s t w e l l i n the u n i t was the 1, and 

8 then the 1Y was the replacement w e l l f o r t h a t . The second 

9 w e l l i n the u n i t was the 25-1, which i s numbered f o r the 

10 s e c t i o n t h a t i t ' s i n . 

11 A. That's r i g h t . 

12 Q. The next w e l l t h a t you're proposing i s the 

13 Bennett Ranch Unit Number 6. 

14 A. Uh-huh. 

15 Q. How do we get t o t h a t numbering system? 

16 A. Well, there was a sequence of M i s s i s s i p p i a n 

17 development w e l l s , 2, 3, 4 and 5, t h a t were p a r t of the 

18 plan of development t h a t was submitted a f t e r the 1998 — 

19 '97 discovery of Mis s i s s i p p i a n gas. 

20 Q. And they were never d r i l l e d ? 

21 A. They were never d r i l l e d . We obtained a d d i t i o n a l 

22 seismic i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t t o l d us t h a t the next best 

23 l o c a t i o n t o d r i l l was the 25-1. 

24 Q. So since you d r i l l e d the 1 and the 1Y and the 

25 25-1, you've run no more seismic? 
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A. We ran seismic i n between the 1Y and t h e ^ 2 5 - l . 

Q. And where was t h a t seismic run? 

A. I t was run — the 2-D seismic was run i n a 

northwest-to-southeast, along the c r e s t of the a n t i c l i n e . 

Q. Did i t — d i d any of t h a t seismic data — Were 

any of the expansion areas included i n t h a t seismic? 

A. Yeah, t h a t seismic goes across the expansion — 

some of the expansion area, yes. 

Q. Northwest t o southeast? I guess I don't see — I 

don't see how t h a t could be o r i e n t e d , since the o r i g i n a l 

u n i t was o r i e n t e d northwest t o southeast and extends from 

corner t o corner, w i t h the exception of t h a t — maybe t h a t 

T r act 11a i n the n o r t h . 

A. I'm not f o l l o w i n g you. 

Q. Let me make sure I've got my d i r e c t i o n s r i g h t . 

Northwest t o southeast, from S e a t t l e t o Fort Lauderdale, 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yup. 

Q. How could a l i n e run along the c r e s t of the 

a n t i c l i n e i n t h a t d i r e c t i o n have t e s t e d any of the 

expansion areas, since the expansion areas are t o the 

southwest and the northeast and a l i t t l e b i t t o the north? 

A. I guess I see what you're saying t h e r e , and 

you're c o r r e c t i n t h a t the — most of Section 3 t h e r e , 

which i s up a t the northwest end of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r seismic 
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l i n e , was already i n the e x i s t i n g u n i t area. 

Q. That's my p o i n t . 

A. Yes, I agree. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I don't have any 

f u r t h e r questions. 

Commissioner Bailey, d i d you t h i n k of anything 

else you want t o discuss? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No, but I might l a t e r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

Mr. Bruce, d i d you have a r e d i r e c t of t h i s 

witness? 

MR. BRUCE: Yeah, a few questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Again g e t t i n g t o t h i s 64 0-acre spacing, a t t h i s 

p o i n t t h a t has been used f o r the p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas, has 

i t not, Mr. Yahney? 

A. Right. 

Q. And the p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas under the u n i t 

agreement are the areas deemed reasonably p r o d u c t i v e of 

hydrocarbons? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And again, regardless of the spacing, no one i s 

a f f e c t e d by the spacing a t t h i s time because, f i r s t , the 

w e l l — the e x i s t i n g w e l l s are i n the i n t e r i o r of the u n i t , 
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1 c o r r e c t 7 

2 A. Correct. 

3 Q. And you can't produce them a t t h i s p o i n t ? 

4 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. And you keep g e t t i n g asked about seismic and 

6 a d d i t i o n a l t e s t i n g , whatever t h a t may be. 

7 The only way t o r e a l l y t e s t the u n i t i s t o d r i l l 

8 a d d i t i o n a l w e l l s , correct? 

9 A. That's my opinion, yes. 

10 Q. That's why you have an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t ? 

11 A. Correct. 

12 Q. And i n s o f a r as preventing waste th e r e i s , of 

13 course, waste of hydrocarbons, correct? 

14 A. Correct. 

15 Q. Couldn't there also be economic waste? 

16 A. Yes, there can be. 

17 Q. Now i n e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , i s n ' t i t — i s n ' t one 

18 of the main f a c t o r s i s simply o r d e r l y development of the 

19 r e s e r v o i r or r e s e r v o i r s found i n an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t ? 

20 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

21 Q. You don't have t o worry about lease e x p i r a t i o n 

22 dates; you can take — as you d r i l l , you can develop your 

23 model and continue d r i l l i n g i n an o r d e r l y manner so t h a t 

24 you 1 re not wasting money? 

25 A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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1 Q. So once you d r i l l one w e l l , then you take t h a t 

2 data and move on t o the next best l o c a t i o n , as you see i t ? 

3 A. Correct. 

4 Q. And oftentimes what you're doing i s stepping out 

5 from one w e l l t o another, r a t h e r than, say, moving f i v e , 

6 s i x , seven miles away t o preserve an e x i s t i n g lease? 

7 A. Correct. 

8 Q. The D i v i s i o n ' s attorney also asked you what k i n d 

9 of pl a n , w e l l plan, you had. 

10 This i s n ' t l i k e a secondary recovery u n i t , where 

11 you p r e t t y much know how you're going t o develop the u n i t ? 

12 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

13 Q. Every new w e l l adds a d d i t i o n a l data t h a t you can 

14 then use t o r e f i n e your method? 

15 A. Indeed. 

16 Q. And you mentioned — and I t h i n k you mentioned 

17 t h i s i n your d i r e c t , but g e t t i n g — obviously a t t h i s p o i n t 

18 t h e r e i s Mis s i s s i p p i a n — proven M i s s i s s i p p i a n production? 

19 A. Yes, there i s . 

20 Q. And Canyon, correct? 

21 A. Correct. 

22 Q. And you mentioned a t h i r d zone. What other — 

23 What had the w e l l shown regarding a t h i r d p o t e n t i a l l y 

24 p roductive zone? 

25 A. When we d r i l l e d the Number 1, we had gas a t the 
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1 unconformity between the Powwow formation and the V i r g i l i a n 

2 or Cisco. That gas, we thought, was p o s s i b l y commercial, 

3 and a t t h i s p o i n t we have not been able t o t e s t i t . 

4 Q. I t makes no sense t o go i n t o your e x i s t i n g w e l l s 

5 and p e r f o r a t e t h a t zone a t t h i s time? 

6 A. No, i t does not. 

7 Q. So as you d r i l l , these w e l l s may have two or 

8 thr e e , or even more productive zones i n them? 

9 A. That would be very nice. 

10 Q. And Mr. Yahney, also you were questioned about 

11 i d e n t i f i c a t i o n of f r e s h water, e t c e t e r a . Are you f a m i l i a r 

12 w i t h a u n i t formed i n Hidalgo County several months ago by 

13 Dan A. Hughes Company? 

14 A. Yes, I am. 

15 Q. That u n i t covers some 82,000 acres, I believe? 

16 A. I t covered a l o t of acres. 

17 Q. Does Heyco have some leases i n t h a t area? 

18 A. Heyco c o n t r i b u t e d some leases t o t h a t u n i t . 

19 Q. Did you attend the hearing? 

20 A. Yes, I d i d . 

21 Q. And there was testimony — there were questions 

22 asked and testimony presented about p o t e n t i a l water zones 

23 i n t h a t area, correct? 

24 A. Yes, there was some. 

25 Q. But a t t h a t hearing Dan A. Hughes Company d i d n ' t 
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1 have t o present testimony regarding wellbore design, d i d 

2 i t ? 

3 A. I do not r e c a l l such. 

4 Q. They d i d n ' t have t o present any economics, d i d 

5 they? 

6 A. I don't r e c a l l seeing t h a t e i t h e r . 

7 Q. And now t h i s one I don't remember. They d i d 

8 present some geology as t o the t a r g e t formation, d i d they 

9 not? 

10 A. Yes, they d i d . 

11 Q. Was there any seismic? 

12 A. Their geology was based on some seismic, but I 

13 don't r e c a l l t h a t any seismic was a c t u a l l y — was a c t u a l l y 

14 shown t o the D i v i s i o n . 

15 Q. And the name of t h a t u n i t i s the Hueco South 

16 Exploratory Unit? 

17 A. That's c o r r e c t . 

18 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Chairman. 

19 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, anything on the 

20 subjects of the r e d i r e c t ? 

21 MS. ALTOMARE: I don't b e l i e v e so, thank you. 

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner B a i l e y , do you — 

23 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s i t okay t o release t h i s 

25 witness? 
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COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Can I c a l l him up a f t e r the 

OCD testimony? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t ' s okay w i t h me, as long as 

Mr. Bruce agrees. 

MR. BRUCE: P e r f e c t l y f i n e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Yahney, I — 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Oh, j u s t one question — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Oh, I'm so r r y . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. And I t h i n k t h i s comes back t o what you were 

j u s t asked. 

The p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas are the ones t h a t you're 

d e f i n i n g as the most productive areas; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Most l i k e l y t o be productive. 

Q. And those look l i k e they're p r e t t y much e n t i r e l y 

w i t h i n the e x i s t i n g u n i t , aren't they? 

A. Yes, they would be, a t t h i s p o i n t . 

Q. So I guess, then, coming back again, what — the 

purpose of the expansion of the u n i t , t h a t i t sounds l i k e 

i t ' s j u s t t o preserve the leases f o r the order — more 

o r d e r l y development of — 
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A. That i s p a r t — t h a t ' s got — a b i g p a r t of i t , 

yes. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any other questions of t h i s 

witness? 

Mr. Yahney, f o r the f i r s t time since I've been on 

the Commission, we're going t o allow you t o step back but 

reserve the r i g h t t o r e c a l l you. 

MR. YAHNEY: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: One f i n a l t h i n g , i f I could j u s t l e t 

him s i t here, r e c a l l Mr. Dyer p e r t a i n i n g t o one question 

you asked t h i s witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You would l i k e t o r e c a l l Mr. 

Dyer? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no problem w i t h t h a t . 

Any o b j e c t i o n , Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you go ahead and 

r e c a l l him? 

MR. BRUCE: The — and i f the record could 

r e f l e c t , he was pre v i o u s l y sworn i n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go ahead and put him — 

MR. BRUCE: Okay. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — on the witness stand, such 

2 t h a t i t i s . 

3 VERNON D. DYER (Recalled). 

4 the witness h e r e i n , having been p r e v i o u s l y duly sworn upon 

5 h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

6 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

7 BY MR. BRUCE: 

8 Q. Mr. Dyer, there's a question about the ownership 

9 of the Heyco leases outside the c u r r e n t l y e x i s t i n g u n i t . 

10 W i l l the ownership of those leases be the same as Heyco's 

11 leases i n s i d e the e x i s t i n g u n i t ? 

12 A. That i s c o r r e c t , the ownership w i l l not change a t 

13 a l l — 

14 Q. Okay, so — 

15 A. — same working i n t e r e s t s . 

16 Q. So a l l of the Heyco-operated leases i n s i d e or 

17 outside the u n i t w i l l have the exact same ownership? 

18 A. Yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

19 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have, Mr. Chairman. 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare? 

21 MS. ALTOMARE: (Shakes head) 

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

23 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 

25 COMMISSIONER OLSON: (Shakes head) 
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EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. Dyer, i f t h a t ' s t r u e then what i s the 

advantage t o Heyco t o expand the u n i t area? 

A. The advantage t o Heyco — 

Q. To — t o Heyco — 

A. — not t o our partners? Because we — i t doesn't 

make any d i f f e r e n c e — 

Q. Well, t o any of the par t n e r s . What's the — i f 

the ownership i s e x a c t l y the same i n the leases, what i s 

the advantage t o the partners of expanding the u n i t , other 

than h o l d i n g the leases f o r a longer p e r i o d of time? 

A. So t h a t we can conform t o OCD r u l e s when we have 

t o , and we don't end up w i t h t r y i n g t o communitize or 

coming back t o another hearing t o t r y t o get i t expanded so 

t h a t we can get the — get the w e l l s d r i l l e d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Does anyone else have a question of t h i s witness? 

MR. BRUCE: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Dyer. 

MR. BRUCE: And t h a t concludes my case, Mr. 

Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Bruce. 

Ms. Altomare, how long i s your witness going t o 

take? 
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MS. ALTOMARE: Longer than 10 minutes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We're not t h i n k i n g on the same 

frequency here. 

MS. ALTOMARE: For our p a r t of i t , probably — 

I' d say about a h a l f an hour. I would l i k e t o do a l i t t l e 

b i t of an opening and address some of the l e g a l standards 

as f a r as how we — the dynamic between our agency and the 

BLM w i t h these u n i t s . 

(Off the record) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Before we do t h a t , Ms. 

Altomare, we've decided t h a t w e ' l l go ahead and break now 

and come back a t a quarter t o 1:00 and reconvene a t a 

quart e r t o 1:00. 

I s t h a t s a t i s f a c t o r y t o you, Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, t h a t ' s okay w i t h 

you? 

MS. ALTOMARE: (Nods) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Why don't we break 

r i g h t now and, l i k e I said, reconvene a t a quar t e r t o 1:00? 

(Thereupon, noon recess was taken a t 11:53 a.m.) 

(The f o l l o w i n g proceedings had a t 12:53 p.m.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go back on the record. 

The record w i l l r e f l e c t t h a t i t ' s about 10 

minutes t o 1:00. This i s a c o n t i n u a t i o n of Cause Number 
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14,000. The record should also r e f l e c t t h a t a l l t h r e e 

Commissioners are present, t h a t a quorum i s t h e r e f o r e 

present. 

I b e l i e v e , Ms. Altomare, you was about t o — you 

was about t o — 

(Laughter) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You were about t o begin your 

d i r e c t examination of Mr. von Gonten. 

Mr. von Gonten, have you been sworn yet? 

MR. von GONTEN: No, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you l i k e t o stand and be 

so? 

MS. ALTOMARE: A c t u a l l y — Sorry. Before we do 

Mr. von Gonten, I would l i k e t o make a b r i e f opening. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, does t h a t preclude us 

swearing him in? 

MS. ALTOMARE: No, but I d i d want t o — whatever 

you want t o — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's go ahead and swear him 

i n and l e t you do your opening — 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — and then w e ' l l begin h i s 

ques t i o n i n g . 

(Thereupon, Mr. von Gonten was sworn.) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare, you were going 
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t o give an opening statement. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. I j u s t wanted t o touch on a 

couple of t h i n g s , j u s t because these e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s are 

k i n d of a unique beast created by the BLM, not a c t u a l l y 

something t h a t i s created and managed by the OCD d i r e c t l y . 

And our r u l e — our involvement i n the process 

stems d i r e c t l y from the BLM regs and from the language of 

the agreements themselves, r a t h e r than out of any OCD r u l e s 

or out of New Mexico s t a t u t e , which i s k i n d of a unique 

scenario, u n l i k e a l o t of the other ways t h a t we f i n d 

ourselves involved i n r e g u l a t i o n of the o i l and gas 

i n d u s t r y . 

That being said, I t h i n k i t ' s important f o r the 

Commission t o note t h a t under the c o n t r o l l i n g r e g u l a t i o n , 

f e d e r a l r e g u l a t i o n , when an a p p l i c a t i o n f o r a u n i t i s 

approved a couple of th i n g s are considered, one being t h a t 

the u n i t i s l o g i c a l i n t h a t i t i s put together i n a way 

t h a t i s l o g i c a l l y connected f o r the development and/or 

operation as a u n i t . There has t o be some r a t i o n a l i t y t o 

how the u n i t i s put together. 

I t also requires a showing t h a t u n i t i z a t i o n i s 

necessary and advisable and i n the p u b l i c i n t e r e s t . 

Those two thi n g s taken together are then viewed 

i n the context of — or considered w i t h — along w i t h 

whether or not there are any environmental consequences t o 
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the a c t i o n . Those are the standards t h a t are a p p l i e d by 

the BLM when they're looking at a u n i t a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Those r e g u l a t i o n s and the language of the u n i t 

i t s e l f c a l l f o r approval by the other agencies, i n c l u d i n g 

the State Land O f f i c e and the OCD, before the a c t u a l u n i t 

a p p l i c a t i o n or any expansion thereof i s a c t u a l l y approved 

and enforceable. 

I would submit t h a t t h a t i s because each agency 

has t h e i r own perspective, t h e i r own l i t t l e piece of the 

puzzle t h a t they're looking a t . 

I n the case of the OCD, as you w e l l know, the OCD 

and the Commission are looking a t the p r o t e c t i o n of p u b l i c 

h e a l t h and the environment, c o r r e l a t i v e — p r o t e c t i o n of 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , and the prevention of waste. 

I know there's been a l o t of emphasis on the 

p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s and the p r e v e n t i o n of 

waste. 

I would submit t h a t i n t h i s case th e r e i s also an 

issue of p r o t e c t i o n of p u b l i c h e a l t h and the environment 

and t h a t the existence of the a q u i f e r , the l o c a t i o n of i t 

and the lack of a d d i t i o n a l i n f o r m a t i o n submitted by the 

A p p l i c a n t t o assure the OCD t h a t i n approving t h i s u n i t 

expansion they are serving t h a t purpose, t h a t t h i r d purpose 

— I don't — I t h i n k t h a t t h a t i s a c o n s i d e r a t i o n t h a t 

needs t o be addressed by the Commission as w e l l , being as 
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i t i s one of the agencies t h a t i s tasked w i t h approving 

these t h i n g s . 

That being said, I would l i k e t o c a l l my f i r s t — 

my only witness t o the stand. That i s Glenn von Gonten. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. von Gonten, would you take 

the stand, please? 

GLENN von GONTEN, 

the witness h e r e i n , having been p r e v i o u s l y duly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Can you s t a t e your f u l l name f o r the t i t l e — f o r 

the — name and t i t l e f o r the record, please? 

A. My name i s Glenn von Gonten, I'm a senior 

h y d r o l o g i s t w i t h the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

Q. Okay. And have you t e s t i f i e d before the 

Commission and been q u a l i f i e d as an expert i n your f i e l d ? 

A. Yes, I have. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I would t h e r e f o r e move t o q u a l i f y 

Mr. von Gonten as an expert h y d r o l o g i s t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, do you have any 

object i o n ? 

MR. BRUCE: I have no o b j e c t i o n . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. von Gonten's c r e d e n t i a l s 

are so accepted. 
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MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s time, i n an e f f o r t t o 

expedite the process, I would ask the Commission and 

counsel i f i t would be a l l r i g h t t o l e t Mr. von Gonten go 

through some demonstrative aids t o e x h i b i t s and t h i n g s f o r 

the Commission, and then we can go through some 

c l a r i f i c a t i o n t h i n g s afterward. I t h i n k t h a t t h a t might 

speed up the process a l i t t l e b i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, do you have any 

o b j e c t i o n t o th a t ? 

MR. BRUCE: 1*11 reserve any o b j e c t i o n s t o the 

e x h i b i t s f o r l a t e r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Proceed, ma'am. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare) Mr. von Gonten, can you go 

ahead and go through the s l i d e s t h a t you prepared f o r 

today? 

A. Be happy t o . 

The area t h a t i s before the Commission today, the 

u n i t , i s located s l i g h t l y t o the west of the Cornudas 

Mountains, r i g h t on the Texas-New Mexico border i n south 

c e n t r a l New Mexico. 

This f i g u r e i s a c t u a l l y taken from the cover of 

the Geologic C i r c u l a r 198, which was, I b e l i e v e , provided 

as a reference. I t i s the only f i g u r e from t h a t document 

t h a t I ' l l be using. I t was chosen because I t h i n k i t 

f a i r l y w e l l establishes the s t r u c t u r a l and physiographic 
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s e t t i n g of t h i s area. 

The declared basin t h a t I ' l l be d e t a i l i n g a 

l i t t l e b i t l a t e r i s r e f e r r e d t o as the S a l t Basin, 

underground water basin, and i t i s bounded on the east by 

the Guadalupe u p l i f t , on the west by the J a r i l l a Mountains, 

the Hueco Mountains, and on the no r t h by the Sacramento 

u p l i f t , and extends south i n t o Texas. 

The S a l t Basin — and t h i s i s taken from a 

r e g i o n a l water- — or a c t u a l l y from a 2 004 p u b l i c a t i o n , 

shows i n a l i t t l e more d e t a i l the S a l t Basin. Again, the 

Guadalupes on the east and on the west we have the Otero 

Mesa. We have — the Cornudas Mountains are a c t u a l l y 

formed from paleozoic and volcani c rocks and i n t r u s i v e s . 

And g e n e r a l l y speaking, the outcrop youngs from 

south from the Abo -- I mean the — yeah, the Abo Hueco 

formation i n the south t o the Yeso formation, over t o the 

San Andres formation, crosses a Quaternary a l l u v i a l f i l l , 

which i s also r e f e r r e d t o as the Crow F l a t s , and then has 

u n d i f f e r e n t i a t e d Permian rocks, broke o f f mountains and 

then the l e v e l phase. 

C a l l t o your a t t e n t i o n a couple of l i n e s of 

cross - s e c t i o n . The f i r s t one i s t o the — east-west, on 

the n o r t h side, going through the Otero Mesa — I ' l l be 

showing t h a t i n a second — and followed l a t e r by a B-B' 

cross-section i n the south, j u s t n o r t h of the Texas s t a t e 
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l i n e , which goes very c l o s e l y through the Bennett Ranch 

u n i t . 

This i s an e x h i b i t which was provided by Heyco i n 

i t s 1995 a p p l i c a t i o n , and i t zooms i n t o the l o c a t i o n and 

shows some i n t e r e s t i n g f e a t u r e s , such as the Hueco 

Mountains, the Cornudas Mountains, and a c t u a l l y shows the 

area where they do have the seismic. You can p i c k up some 

seismic l i n e s i n t h i s area here, which i s where the Bennett 

Ranch U n i t i s located. 

Before the area was busted up by f a u l t i n g — t h i s 

i s a s i m p l i f i e d diagram, taken from Mayer and Sharpe, which 

a c t u a l l y shows the pre-deformation sequence from the Yeso 

t o the — V i c t o r i o Peak, lower San Andres and the Bone 

Spring, going east t o the S a l t Basin graben. 

As I mentioned, t h i s i s a source from 2004 which 

was prepared f o r the Otero Mesa C o a l i t i o n . I'm using i t 

not f o r t h e i r purposes but f o r the purposes of OCD, and 

t h a t i s t o d e p i c t the con d i t i o n s of the S a l t Basin a q u i f e r . 

Again, t h i s i s showing the same i n d i c a t o r map 

w i t h the cross-sections. We'll be f i r s t l o o k i n g a t the 

A-A' cross-section. 

This map — t h i s cross-section goes from west t o 

east. You can see the — there's some extreme v e r t i c a l 

exaggeration. This i s s i x miles on t h i s scale here, and 

t h i s i s 1000 f e e t v e r t i c a l l y here. 
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This shows t h a t there's a groundwater d i v i d e on 

Otero Mesa, and the groundwater a c t u a l l y flows t o the west, 

then t h a t d i v i d e and flows g e n e r a l l y east. We'll be 

lo o k i n g a t a groundwater contour map i n a minute, going 

over t o a h i g h l y f a u l t e d area on the east. 

There i s a mistake on t h i s diagram. I t ' s 

corre c t e d l a t e r . This i s not a l l Precambrian undivided. 

I t should say pre-Permian undivided. 

Another f i g u r e from the same source a c t u a l l y has 

co r r e c t e d t h a t , and i t r e f e r s t o pre-Permian rocks, which 

are shown below t h i s dashed l i n e . I t ' s again the same 

f i g u r e , w i t h o u t c o l o r , and i t has corrected t h i s typo. 

Again, looking more a t the Bennett Ranch area, 

which would be i n t h i s area here, j u s t t o the west of the 

Cornudas Mountains, t h i s i s the east-west — or west-to-

east cros s - s e c t i o n . Again, the v e r t i c a l exaggeration, one 

inch i s approximately — t h i s — these bars are 1000 f e e t 

v e r t i c a l l y , and again the zero t o s i x miles. So i t ' s q u i t e 

an extreme exaggeration. 

I t shows t h a t the Bennett Ranch would be i n 

approximately t h i s area, and i t shows the p r o x i m i t y t o the 

Cornudas Mountains which have T e r t i a r y i n t r u s i v e s . 

And again, t h i s i s r e a l l y focusing on the 

groundwater, water-table a q u i f e r , and i t i s showing t h a t 

t h a t occurs p r i m a r i l y i n the Permian formations, and 
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they're lumping everything else as being b a s i c a l l y p re-

Permian below t h a t i n t e r v a l . 

This also depicts some of the r e g i o n a l f a u l t i n g . 

And again, t h i s j u s t shows t h a t they had a black-and-white 

v e r s i o n of i t . 

This shows the pre-development, s o - c a l l e d pre-

development groundwater e l e v a t i o n contours and d i r e c t i o n of 

groundwater flow. Again, t h i s i s the area which we're 

r e f e r r i n g t o i n the Bennett Ranch. Generally t h e r e would 

be a groundwater d i v i d e w i t h water going t o the n o r t h from 

t h a t area, and i t also i n d i c a t e s t h a t the — a t some p o i n t 

i t would f l o w south i n t o Texas. Groundwater would wrap 

around and go through t h i s area which i s r e f e r r e d t o as the 

Otero Breaks and over t o Crow F l a t s . 

Recharge i s occurring from the n o r t h and i s — 

g e n e r a l l y speaking, t h i s i s fresher t o the n o r t h , as you 

would expect i n a recharge area, and TDS increases t o the 

south and i n t o the Basin. 

There's a l o t of s t r a t i g r a p h i c charts t h a t people 

have put together, and I'm not a p a r t i c u l a r fan of t h i s 

one, but i t was used i n t h i s p u b l i c a t i o n . What I've done 

i s shade i t s l i g h t l y . I f you can see t h i s area here, t h i s 

i s the i n t e r v a l t h a t i s the uppermost a q u i f e r i n the S a l t 

Basin. 

I'm showing here t h a t i n the upper Pennsylvanian 
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was where Heyco a c t u a l l y had gas, shown by t h i s p i n k -

h i g h l i g h t e d area here. That's not the name t h a t they use. 

And the Helms i s t h e i r M i s s i s s i p p i a n production or gas 

reserves, are shown i n here i n the M i s s i s s i p p i a n . So we 

have gas i n t h i s i n t e r v a l . 

And we also had water. O r i g i n a l l y i t was 

supposed t o be an o i l - b e a r i n g i n t e r v a l t h a t was p r e d i c t e d , 

but i n f a c t the Fusselman turned out t o be water-bearing, 

and I b e l i e v e t h a t there was testimony t h a t t h e r e was 

a d d i t i o n a l water-bearing zones, freshwater-bearing zones or 

more s a l t y water-bearing zones, below the Fusselman as 

w e l l . 

This i s from the Bennett Ranch 25-1, and again i t 

shows t h e i r tops, and t h i s was j u s t used t o i l l u s t r a t e t h a t 

the Canyon has gas and t h a t there were a t l e a s t t h r e e 

water-bearing zones, major water-bearing zones, a t 3300. 

And as Heyco's g e o l o g i s t t e s t i f i e d , t h i s i s somewhat 

d i f f e r e n t than other w e l l s i n the r e g i o n , and d i f f e r e n t 

from the o r i g i n a l Y — or 1 and 1Y w e l l s , which encountered 

shallow groundwater above 1000 f e e t . 

And t h i s i s a summary of b a s i c a l l y what these 

graphics have t r i e d t o d e p i c t . We're t a l k i n g i n t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r study about the r o l e of f r a c t u r e s and r e g i o n a l 

groundwater flow, and they summarize and say the r e g i o n i s 

l a r g e l y undeformed but i s cut by many extensional f a u l t s , 
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there's a broad f r a c t u r e zone extending from the Sacramento 

Mountains t o the S a l t Basin near D e l l C i t y . 

D e l l C i t y , I b e l i e v e , has been mentioned as an 

area where there's f a i r l y i n t e n s i v e a g r i c u l t u r a l 

development, and i t ' s using the water taken from the S a l t 

Basin or the Texas equivalent. 

Most of the f r a c t u r e s and the f a u l t s would be 

p a r a l l e l — Excuse me, the f r a c t u r e s p a r a l l e l the major 

f a u l t s and are o r i e n t e d n o r t h 20 west, and th e r e i s t h i s 

intense f r a c t u r i n g which i s known over — as the Otero 

Breaks on the east side of the Sa l t Basin, and there's 

f r e s h water coming from the no r t h t o the south. And they 

p o i n t out t h a t t h e i r modeling or t h e i r study shows t h a t 

f r a c t u r i n g has created a h i g h - p e r m e a b i l i t y zone t h a t 

funnels recharge from the Sacramento a l l the way i n t o 

Texas. 

This was a r e g i o n a l water plan. I ' l l be t a k i n g 

some f i g u r e s from t h i s . This was prepared i n accordance 

w i t h the State water plan, and t h i s a c t u a l l y shows the 

water q u a l i t y i n the Sa l t Basin, a t l e a s t on the New Mexico 

side. 

And t h e i r estimates are t h a t the recoverable 

f r e s h water — t h a t i s , fresher than 10,000 — or 

p r o t e c t i b l e groundwater would perhaps be a b e t t e r way of 

p u t t i n g i t — i s 28 m i l l i o n acre f e e t , and the Crow F l a t 
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a l l u v i a l a q u i f e r has another 1.5 m i l l i o n . 

So about 30 m i l l i o n acre-feet of recoverable from 

t h i s study, as an estimate. 

I would also p o i n t out t h a t , g e n e r a l l y speaking, 

most of the volume of the groundwater i n t h i s area i s 

f r e s h e r than 3000 pa r t s per m i l l i o n t o t a l d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s , 

and i t ' s — a t l e a s t i t ' s summarized on t h i s f i g u r e as a t 

l e a s t a l l p r o t e c t i b l e under the Water Q u a l i t y C o ntrol 

Commission r e g u l a t i o n s . 

Again, coming t o the end of my p r e s e n t a t i o n here, 

most of the S a l t Basin i s i n the bedrock, or most of the 

groundwater occurs i n bedrock a q u i f e r . Approximately 28 

m i l l i o n a c r e - f e e t of recoverable. They are e s t i m a t i n g t h a t 

the bedrock a q u i f e r i s 750 f e e t t h i c k . Most of t h i s i s i n 

the Permian. So they're saying t h a t they could produce 93 

m i l l i o n a c r e - f e e t per year f o r a hundred years from t h i s 

area. 

The Crow F l a t area also has the a l l u v i a l a q u i f e r , 

which has another 1.5 m i l l i o n a c r e - f e e t , and t h a t would be 

another 14,000 acre-feet per year. 

I n the area t h a t they studied — and t h i s study 

was put together, also included the Tularosa Basin, f o r 

example. The S a l t Basin i s fresher than the Tularosa 

Basin, which probably i s not a s u r p r i s e t o anybody who's 

l i v e d around i t . 
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And t h a t concludes my s l i d e p r e s e n t a t i o n . 

Q. Thank you. Before we go on w i t h the s u b s t a n t i v e 

p a r t of the testimony, I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o 

E x h i b i t s A and B. Can you i d e n t i f y those f o r the record? 

A. I don't have those i n f r o n t of me. 

Yes, E x h i b i t A was the 2004 Shomaker p u b l i c a t i o n , 

which I r e l i e d on f o r a number of my s l i d e s . 

Q. Okay. And E x h i b i t B i s — ? 

A. E x h i b i t B i s C i r c u l a r 198 from the New Mexico 

Bureau of Mines and Mineral Resources, which I used t o 

provide a s t r u c t u r a l and physiographic overview of what 

we're seeing i n t o the more d e t a i l e d f i g u r e s . 

Q. Okay. Both of these documents were used f o r your 

review and prep a r a t i o n f o r your testimony i n t h i s case? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i f I could d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t 

C, can you i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the record, please? 

A. E x h i b i t C — Excuse me, E x h i b i t C i s the 

t r a n s c r i p t of Case Number 14,000, heard before Hearing 

Examiners i n Santa Fe on September 20th, 2007. 

Q. And d i d you review t h i s document also i n 

pre p a r a t i o n f o r today's testimony? 

A. Yes, I d i d review i t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I would move E x h i b i t s — OCD 

E x h i b i t s A, B and C i n t o the record. 
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

2 MR. BRUCE: May I ask a couple of questions of 

3 the witness? 

4 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. 

5 VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION 

6 BY MR. BRUCE: 

7 Q. Mr. von Gonten, E x h i b i t A, d i d you have any had 

8 i n preparing t h i s document? 

9 A. I had no involvement w i t h i t . 

10 Q. And E x h i b i t B i s simply an o l d — you're not an 

11 o i l and gas engineer or g e o l o g i s t , are you? 

12 A. Not anymore. 

13 Q. And you had no hand i n preparing E x h i b i t B? 

14 A. No, s i r , I d i d not. 

15 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, I would o b j e c t t o the 

16 submission of both e x h i b i t s , e s p e c i a l l y as t o E x h i b i t A. I 

17 had no o p p o r t u n i t y t o cross-examine Mr. Finch and ask him 

18 about t h i s e x h i b i t , and t h e r e f o r e — and E x h i b i t B i s — 

19 you know, i t ' s a s t a t e record but once again, I have no 

20 chance t o cross-examine these witnesses, and I o b j e c t t o 

21 them both. 

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Bruce, as an expert 

23 i s he not e n t i t l e d t o r e l y on these as p a r t of h i s 

24 testimony today? 

25 MR. BRUCE: He's e n t i t l e d t o r e l y on them. I 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

127 

don't b e l i e v e t h a t they would be proper as e x h i b i t s . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I believe under the hearsay 

exceptions they're admissible as e x h i b i t s , and — as r e l i e d 

on by testimony. And my understanding of the r u l e s f o r the 

Commission i s t h a t the r u l e s of evidence are not t o be — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — are relaxed? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yeah. And i t i s our p o s i t i o n t h a t 

these documents would be i n s t r u c t i v e and h e l p f u l t o the 

Commission i n rendering a decis i o n i n t h i s matter. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, i n l i g h t of the 

f a c t t h a t Mr. von Gonten i s q u a l i f i e d as an expert, 

e s p e c i a l l y w i t h respect t o E x h i b i t A, I t h i n k he's e n t i t l e d 

t o r e l y on i t . That doesn't prevent you from cross-

examining him on i t , though. I mean, the conclusions t h a t 

he reaches based on the evidence i n here are e n t i r e l y open 

t o any questions t h a t you would want t o ask him du r i n g 

cross-examination. 

So having said t h a t , I ' l l go ahead and admit 

E x h i b i t s A and B — A, B and — Did you request C? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I d i d . I don't b e l i e v e he had any 

o b j e c t i o n t o C. 

MR. BRUCE: I have no o b j e c t i o n t o E x h i b i t C. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We'll go ahead and admit 

E x h i b i t s A and B — A, B and C, I'm so r r y . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, before I begin my 
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cross-examination, one question of c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I a c t u a l l y haven't f i n i s h e d my 

d i r e c t , so — 

MR. BRUCE: Oh, I'm sorr y . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s i t on the e x h i b i t s ? 

MR. BRUCE: P a r t i a l l y , but i t can w a i t u n t i l the 

end of her d i r e c t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

Ms. Altomare, why don't you continue? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 

DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed) 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. von Gonten, you heard the testimony t h a t was 

presented by the Applicant today, by both of the witnesses? 

A. I d i d . 

Q. And what i f any concerns do you have, or what 

issues do you have t h a t you'd l i k e t o express t o the 

Commission regarding the request being made by the 

Ap p l i c a n t f o r the u n i t expansion? 

A. I reviewed t h i s , not w i t h the background and 

experience of a Hearing Examiner, but as a g e o l o g i s t 

reviewing a t e c h n i c a l a p p l i c a t i o n . 

My concern was t h a t they s p e c i f i e d very c l e a r l y 

what they wanted, but they d i d n ' t seem t o provide any 

t e c h n i c a l basis f o r i t w i t h — s p e c i f i c a l l y , any f i g u r e s , 
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diagrams, maps, cross-sections, t h i n g s along t h a t l i n e t h a t 

would allow someone t o make an o b j e c t i v e o p i n i o n — or form 

an o b j e c t i v e opinion about t h e i r A p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. I s there any doubt i n your mind t h a t t h i s u n i t 

does indeed s i t r i g h t on top of the S a l t Basin a q u i f e r . 

Q. Okay. What i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of the State 

Engineer designating the Basin as an aquifer? 

A. Well, a l l the s t a t e of New Mexico has been 

declared i n one basin or another. The S a l t Basin was 

declared, I b e l i e v e , i n 2000. And the reason i s , of 

course, t o p r o t e c t New Mexico's resources. 

Q. Do you have any r e c o l l e c t i o n as t o what l e d t o 

the d e s i g n a t i o n , what p r e c i p i t a t e d t h a t d e s i g n a t i o n on the 

S a l t Basin aquifer? 

A. I've seen some discussion on i t . I have no 

f i r s t h a n d knowledge of what led t o the State Engineer 

making t h a t determination. 

Q. Okay. Do you have any opini o n as t o the 

l i k e l i h o o d t h a t waters below 2500 f e e t are h y d r o l o g i c a l l y 

connected w i t h waters above 2 500 feet? 

A. I t h i n k t h a t i t hasn't been demonstrated one way 

or the other. I would say t h a t i t i s — c e r t a i n l y 

c o n s i d e r i n g t h a t there are a number of f a u l t s i n the area, 

i t ' s e x t e n s i o n a l , I would t h i n k t h a t i t would remain t o see 

— be seen whether these f a u l t s are s e a l i n g or i f i n f a c t 
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they would a c t u a l l y allow subsurface waters t o p e r c o l a t e up 

through the f a u l t zone. 

Q. And what i s the s i g n i f i c a n c e of t h a t i n terms of 

o i l and gas e x p l o r a t i o n i n t h i s area? 

A. Well, i t g e n e r a l l y means t h a t there's — i n the 

f a u l t e d area l i k e t h i s , i t means t h a t your r e g i o n a l seal i s 

not w e l l known. I t would have t o be a combination seal 

above — a s t r a t i g r a p h i c seal and a s t r u c t u r a l s e a l . 

Therefore, any contamination could migrate up these f a u l t 

l i n e s and contaminate groundwater, t h a t could be an 

explanation. 

And t h a t could be n a t u r a l l y o c c u r r i n g , as w e l l as 

something t h a t occurs during d r i l l i n g . For example, i t was 

noted t h a t the shallow 3 3 00-foot i n t e r v a l i n the 25-1 

a c t u a l l y , I b e l i e v e , had gas as w e l l as water. That would 

i n d i c a t e perhaps t h a t there was a leaky f a u l t and t h a t some 

gas from lower i n the s t r a t i g r a p h i c i n t e r v a l was m i g r a t i n g 

up the f a u l t l i n e and being trapped below the r e g i o n a l 

unconformity, which the Heyco g e o l o g i s t r e f e r r e d t o . 

Q. Okay. Have you formed any opinions or 

conclusions based on the i n f o r m a t i o n you've been provided 

w i t h about the three w e l l s t h a t Heyco has d r i l l e d or 

attempted t o d r i l l on t h i s u n i t t o date? 

A. I'm not sure what you're asking. 

Q. Any conclusions about wellbore issues, the 
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l o c a t i o n and q u a n t i t y and q u a l i t y of water i n the area, 

concerns about those kinds of issues? 

A. Well, I d i d review the w e l l f i l e t h a t we had on 

our OCD o n l i n e , and I paid p a r t i c u l a r a t t e n t i o n t o any 

s o r t s of r e p o r t s of important water sands, or water sands 

t h a t were encountered, or water-bearing zones more 

c o r r e c t l y , i n the casing program. 

I t appears t h a t the 25 — Bennett Ranch 25 U n i t 

Number 1 was somewhat anomalous i n t h a t i t d i d not 

encounter shallow groundwater above 1000 f e e t . 

Most or a l l of the other — Well, I shouldn't say 

t h a t , but most of the other w e l l s d i d encounter shallow 

groundwater, above 1000 f e e t . This was somewhat unusual. 

So t h i s appears t o i n d i c a t e t h a t there i s p r o t e c t i b l e 

groundwater a t a depth t h a t they w i l l have t o penetrate, 

but t h a t ' s not unusual, as I believe was t e s t i f i e d by the 

Heyco g e o l o g i s t . 

Q. Do you f e e l t h a t Heyco has provided the 

Commission w i t h enough i n f o r m a t i o n and evidence a t t h i s 

time t o support a f i n d i n g t h a t approval of t h e i r 

A p p l i c a t i o n serves the purposes of prevention of waste, 

p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , as w e l l as p r o t e c t i o n of 

human h e a l t h and the environment? 

A. That would be f o r the Commission t o determine. I 

w i l l say t h a t my review of t h e i r A p p l i c a t i o n leaves me w i t h 
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a l o t of questions. I don't t h i n k t h a t I understand t h e i r 

j u s t i f i c a t i o n f o r i t , I don't t h i n k t h a t they explained 

t h e i r p o s i t i o n so t h a t a t e c h n i c a l person such as myself 

could a c t u a l l y f o l l o w i t and understand i t . 

As I sa i d e a r l i e r , they sa i d what they wanted. 

They d i d n ' t a c t u a l l y j u s t i f y i t . 

Q. Do you have an understanding from the review of 

the i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t has been presented as t o what the 

j u s t i f i c a t i o n f o r the proposed expansion t o the n o r t h of 

the u n i t is? 

A. No, I do not understand t h a t proposal. 

Q. And from a hydrogeo- — a g e o l o g i c a l p e r s p e c t i v e , 

from a t e c h n i c a l perspective, does there appear t o be any 

evidence i n the record a t t h i s p o i n t t o j u s t i f y such an 

expansion? 

A. I n the v e r b a l record, based on the testimony t h a t 

was presented by the Heyco witnesses today, I gained a 

b e t t e r understanding of t h e i r sub-unconformity p l a y t h a t 

they wish t o pursue, but I d i d not see t h a t i n the o r i g i n a l 

case, Number 14,000. 

Q. Was the v e r b a l testimony s u f f i c i e n t t o s a t i s f y 

you t h a t the proposed — the expansion i n the n o r t h as 

proposed i s f u l l y j u s t i f i e d ? 

A. I always l i k e t o see f i g u r e s . So I would say the 

answer i s no. I would want t o see a map and a cross-
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s e c t i o n on anything t o j u s t i f y the proposed — 

Q. Okay. Do you have any a d d i t i o n a l comments or 

concerns t h a t you would l i k e t o express t o the Commission? 

A. No, the p o i n t of my testimony was t o review the 

s e n s i t i v i t y of the groundwater area. I t i s i n a designated 

— as ever y t h i n g i s , i n an underground water basin. 

There's c e r t a i n l y p r o t e c t i b l e water, and g e n e r a l l y 

speaking, the water resources i n the S a l t Basin area 

adjacent t o Otero Mesa, are c e r t a i n l y something t h a t the 

D i v i s i o n would be very i n t e r e s t e d i n p r o t e c t i n g . 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay, I ' l l go ahead and pass the 

witness. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, would you l i k e t o 

j o i n us? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, do you t h i n k y o u ' l l 

need the p r o j e c t o r or — ? 

MR. BRUCE: No, no. I t can probably be turned 

o f f so I don't f e e l l i k e I'm under the s p o t l i g h t any more 

than I already am. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You read my mind, I was going 

t o o f f e r t h a t . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Based upon your l a s t comment, Mr. van Gonten — 

Excuse me, I d i d n ' t want t o t u r n you i n t o a Dutchman r a t h e r 
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than a German. Your concerns are based on f r e s h water? 

A. Yes, I'm a h y d r o l o g i s t , and what I deal w i t h i n 

my p o s i t i o n i n the D i v i s i o n i s a c t u a l l y p r o t e c t i o n of 

groundwater. 

Q. And i s n ' t t h a t a well-design issue? 

A. I t i s c e r t a i n l y an issue t h a t should be addressed 

i n the w e l l design. 

Q. Okay. I t r e a l l y has nothing t o do w i t h whether a 

u n i t e x i s t s or i s expanded, does i t ? 

A. I would agree w i t h t h a t . 

Q. When — For instance, l e t ' s ignore the u n i t . 

When an operator seeks t o d r i l l a w e l l — Are you a t l e a s t 

b a s i c a l l y f a m i l i a r w i t h the OCD's spacing r u l e s , w e l l -

spacing rules? 

A. Yes, I am somewhat f a m i l i a r w i t h them. 

Q. And normally o i l w e l l s are spaced on 40 acres 

w i t h o u t any s p e c i a l r u l e s , and f o r the most p a r t gas w e l l s 

are spaced on 160 or 32 0 acres — I don't mean t o put words 

i n your mouth, but i s t h a t correct? 

A. I understand t h a t , yes. 

Q. And when you're looking a t a w e l l design, i t ' s — 

i n order t o p r o t e c t f r e s h water, i t i s completely 

i r r e l e v a n t t o the OCD's well-spacing rules? 

A. I would agree w i t h t h a t . 

Q. Does your job a t the D i v i s i o n also encompass 
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northwest New Mexico? 

A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. And c e r t a i n l y when people — i s n ' t — I won't use 

the word f r e s h , but i s n ' t the water o f t e n encountered i n 

the F r u i t l a n d Coal w e l l s i n the northwest and northeast 

p a r t of the s t a t e r e l a t i v e l y f r e s h or low i n t o t a l 

d i s s o l v e d s o l i d s ? 

A. Generally speaking, t h a t ' s the case. 

Q. And y e t operators have d r i l l e d , a t t h i s p o i n t , 

probably thousands of w e l l s t o t h a t zone? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q. And what i s done w i t h the produced water i n those 

zones? 

A. That's a very i n t e r e s t i n g t o p i c and i s , I guess, 

going t o be covered under the produced water r u l e . 

A c t u a l l y the disposal of t h a t produced water i s something 

t h a t I'm not very f a m i l i a r w i t h . That goes t o the people 

who would be p e r m i t t i n g the surface waste management 

f a c i l i t i e s . 

But by understanding i s g e n e r a l l y — Well, the 

f r e s h water i s a problem. They don't want t o waste i t as a 

resource, but i t s t i l l must be — you know, not 

contaminate, say, the San Juan River. 

So as f a r as i t s f i n a l d i s p o s i t i o n , I would have 

t o say t h a t I'm not completely f a m i l i a r w i t h those d e t a i l s . 
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Q. But i t must be produced i n c o n j u n c t i o n w i t h 

producing the gas from the Basin F r u i t l a n d Coal formation? 

A. Yes, there i s water associated w i t h the 

production. 

Q. And the D i v i s i o n doesn't prevent d r i l l i n g of 

w e l l s t o the Basin F r u i t l a n d Coal? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , they do not. 

Q. I s n ' t t here also, as I understand i t — and you 

would know b e t t e r than me on t h i s , but much deeper below 

the State Engineer's 2500-foot c u t o f f , there's also q u i t e a 

b i t of r e l a t i v e l y f r e s h — I use t h a t term advisedly — 

water i n the Mesaverde formation? 

A. With t h a t — I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h the deeper 

subsurface i n the San Juan Basin. I tend t o deal w i t h 

leaks and s p i l l s , and they're very shallow. 

Q. Okay. You're not f a m i l i a r w i t h — I b e l i e v e i t 

was the — perhaps the C i t y of Rio Rancho hoping t o d r i l l a 

water w e l l t o the Mesaverde formation west of Albuquerque? 

A. I have heard some discussion of t h a t , but I don't 

have any p a r t i c u l a r knowledge of t h a t issue. 

Q. Okay. And c e r t a i n l y the D i v i s i o n allows d r i l l i n g 

of w e l l s t o the Mesaverde formation i n the San Juan Basin? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Your testimony concentrated a l o t on the S a l t 

Basin. What — Again, what i s the appropriate formation or 
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1 depth of the Basin? 

2 A. Excuse me? 

3 Q. The S a l t Basin a q u i f e r t h a t you were speaking 

4 about. 

5 A. Yes. 

6 Q. What formation i s tha t ? 

7 A. I t a c t u a l l y occurs g e n e r a l l y throughout the 

8 Permian s e c t i o n . I t s t a r t s o f f i n the Abo-Hueco t o the San 

9 Andres and — Let me t h i n k . The A zone, San Andres, and i t 

10 also occurs i n the Quaternary a l l u v i u m i n Crow F l a t s . 

11 Q. Okay. You d i d see the cross-section t h a t — from 

12 the p r i o r hearing t h a t showed t h a t above the top of the 

13 Pennsylvanian there was v i r t u a l l y no f a u l t i n g ? 

14 A. Yes, i t appears t h a t the f a u l t i n g was b u r i e d i n 

15 the — by the Permian. 

16 I would p o i n t out t h a t there i s — I b e l i e v e 

17 ther e are surface cuts f u r t h e r t o the east, but I don't 

18 be l i e v e there's major f a u l t i n g t h a t cuts the surface i n the 

19 area of the Bennett Ranch. 

20 Q. When Dan A. Hughes Company ap p l i e d f o r approval 

21 of the Hueco South Exploratory U n i t , d i d you review t h a t 

22 m a t e r i a l , submitted by t h a t company w i t h respect t o the 

23 formation of the u n i t ? 

24 A. No, s i r . 

25 Q. To your knowledge, has the Commission or the 
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D i v i s i o n ever denied approval of an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t or the 

expansion of such a u n i t based upon concerns about f r e s h 

water? 

A. Mr. Bruce, t h i s i s the f i r s t I've been i n v o l v e d 

w i t h one of these u n i t s , and so I don't know. 

Q. Why i s the D i v i s i o n opposing t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A. My understanding i s t h a t the D i v i s i o n doesn't 

f e e l t h a t i t was provided a l l the i n f o r m a t i o n i t needed t o 

make the determinations t h a t i t would be p r o t e c t i v e of 

human h e a l t h and the environment, p r o t e c t c o r r e l a t i v e 

r i g h t s and prevent waste. 

Q. What i s the j u r i s d i c t i o n a l s t a t u t e f o r the 

D i v i s i o n over the p r o t e c t i o n of human health? 

A. That i s s t a t u t o r y language i n the O i l and Gas 

Act. 

Q. And how i s human h e a l t h harmed by the expansion 

of the Bennett Ranch Unit? 

A. I don't know t h a t i t would be. 

Q. Now w i t h respect t o the environment, you sat 

through the — Heyco's witnesses' testimony today, d i d you 

not? 

A. Yes, s i r , I d i d . 

Q. And w i t h respect t o the environment, aren't — 

F i r s t o f f , would you agree t h a t an o i l and gas lessee 

g e n e r a l l y has the r i g h t t o develop h i s leases? 
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1 A. Yes, I would. 

2 Q. And i n order t o do t h a t , he has t o use a t l e a s t 

3 some of the surface on those leases? 

4 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

5 Q. And I — you heard t h a t Heyco i s now proposing t o 

6 l i m i t development e s s e n t i a l l y based on one w e l l per 640 

7 acres? 

8 A. I understood t h a t . 

9 Q. And i s n ' t t h a t lessening any e f f e c t on the 

10 surface? 

11 A. I t would c e r t a i n l y minimize the surface impact 

12 w i t h respect t o roads and pads. 

13 Q. Did you — i n the e x h i b i t packet — and I don't 

14 know i f you reviewed Heyco's e x h i b i t s , but the — Heyco 

15 E x h i b i t 2 was the o r i g i n a l order. 

16 A. Just a minute, Mr. Bruce, I ' l l p u l l i t up. 

17 Q. Heyco E x h i b i t 2, s i r . 

18 A. The 1995 order? 

19 Q. That's c o r r e c t , Mr. — 

20 A. Yes — 

21 Q. — von Gonten. 

22 A. — I have i t . 

23 Q. I f you'd look down i n the f i r s t page t o f i n d i n g 

24 paragraph ( 5 ) , i t t a l k s about p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e , 

25 but t h a t p e r t a i n s t o c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s w i t h i n the u n i t 
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1 area, does i t not? 

2 A. This would be a b i t outside my area. 

3 Q. But t h a t ' s what the order says? 

4 A. I bel i e v e i t does. 

5 Q. Why i s the D i v i s i o n now concerned w i t h p r o t e c t i o n 

6 of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s outside the u n i t area? 

7 A. I don't know the answer t o t h a t question. 

8 Q. And the D i v i s i o n ' s s t a t u t o r y mandate w i t h respect 

9 t o waste i s p r i m a r i l y w i t h respect t o waste of 

10 hydrocarbons, correct? 

11 A. I would disagree w i t h t h a t statement. When we 

12 t a l k about waste, I f e e l — I focus on o i l f i e l d waste. 

13 Working on the environmental side, we t a l k about the proper 

14 d i s p o s i t i o n of o i l f i e l d waste. So when you use the word 

15 "waste", t h a t ' s what I t h i n k about. 

16 Q. You're t a l k i n g about — 

17 A. I understand t h a t i n t h i s — 

18 Q. You're t a l k i n g about — 

19 A. — context subsurface you're t a l k i n g about waste. 

20 Q. You're t a l k i n g about contaminants? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Can you provide me w i t h a s t a t u t o r y c i t e t o your 

23 d e f i n i t i o n . 

24 A. Of o i l f i e l d waste? 

25 Q. No, no, where the Commission — I s n ' t the 
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Commission's mandate f o r waste having t o do w i t h waste of 

hydrocarbons? 

A. The term "waste" also includes nondomestic waste. 

I don't have t h a t i n f r o n t of me, but yes, i t i s i n the 

s t a t u t e . 

And I'm j u s t t o e x p l a i n t h a t when you t a l k about 

waste — 

Q. Okay. 

A. — my background leads me t o focus on t h a t issue 

of the d i s p o s i t i o n of nondomestic waste. 

Q. Let's focus on the hydrocarbons. I f Heyco wasn't 

allowed t o proceed w i t h any development or p r o d u c t i o n on 

the u n i t , wouldn't t h a t cause waste of hydrocarbons? 

A. I f t h a t was the case i n the f u t u r e , you know — 

Q. They would have t o shut i n or plug and abandon 

t h e i r wells? 

A. The hydrocarbons would s t i l l be t h e r e , so they 

would not have been wasted. But they — C e r t a i n l y Heyco 

would have been denied i t s o p p o r t u n i t y t o produce those 

hydrocarbons. 

Q. And i n essence, t h a t i s i m p a i r i n g t h e i r 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A. I'm less f a m i l i a r w i t h the issues r e l a t e d t o 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , so I ' l l d e c l ine t o answer t h a t . 

Q. And I don't have a f i g u r e , but you don't deny 
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1 t h a t Heyco has spent money buying leases, d r i l l i n g w e l l s , 

2 e t c e t e r a , w i t h the hopes of hydrocarbons under i t s leases? 

3 A. I understand t h a t t o be t r u e . 

4 Q. And i f i t had t o abandon t h i s p r o j e c t , t h a t money 

5 would be a loss t o i t ? 

6 A. Yes, s i r , I believe t h a t ' s the case. 

7 Q. And what waste would be caused by u n i t expansion? 

8 A. That's an area outside my area of experience. 

9 MR. BRUCE: That's a l l I have a t t h i s time, Mr. 

10 Chairman. 

11 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey? 

12 EXAMINATION 

13 BY COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 

14 Q. Oh, l e t ' s s t a r t o f f w i t h the t r a n s c r i p t , which i s 

15 E x h i b i t Number C, page 16, 17. There's some confusion on 

16 the OCD's — 

17 A. Excuse me, I don't have a copy of t h a t before me, 

18 Commissioner Bailey. 

19 MS. ALTOMARE: Did you give i t back t o me? 

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t ' s OCD E x h i b i t C. 

21 MS. ALTOMARE: I t ' s the one I handed t o you w i t h 

22 the pink s t i c k y . 

23 THE WITNESS: Right, I gave i t back. 

24 MS. ALTOMARE: Oh, here. 

25 THE WITNESS: Okay, yes, I do have a copy of 
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t h a t , I'm sor r y . 

Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) Okay, t h e r e appears t o 

be some confusion over the OCD r u l e i n approvals of u n i t s . 

A. Commissioner Bailey, could you p o i n t me t o where 

you were looking? 

Q. Yes, on page 16, l i n e s 7 through page 17, l i n e s 

9. And there's confusion there between Mr. Brooks and Mr. 

Bruce, and Examiner Jones i s — must be the Examiner a t 

t h a t time. 

I would j u s t — and then you have discussed, and 

your a t t o r n e y have discussed, OCD's r o l e i n u n i t approvals. 

I would l i k e t o r e f e r you t o OCD Rule 507, which 

discusses OCD's r o l e . 

A. Commissioner, I do not have a copy of the OCD 

rulebook before me. 

Q. Then I ' l l read i t t o you. 

A f t e r p e t i t i o n and n o t i c e and hearing, the 

D i v i s i o n may grant approval f o r the combining of 

contiguous developed p r o r a t i o n u n i t s i n t o a u n i t i z e d 

area. 

That i s , OCD's r o l e i s c o n s i d e r a t i o n of combining 

contiguous developed p r o r a t i o n u n i t s , w i t h the purpose, I 

would assume, of a l l of the mantra t h a t you t a l k about and 
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the protection of correlative rights, prevention of waste, 

et cetera. 

I j u s t would l i k e t o b r i n g t h a t out, because 

th e r e seems t o be some question over what OCD i s supposed 

t o be lo o k i n g a t , as f a r as the a d d i t i o n of 1000 acres or 

so t o an approved u n i t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I f I could i n t e r j e c t , i t ' s my 

understanding t h a t t h a t i s a d i s t i n c t r u l e , t h a t t h a t i s 

separate from e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s . Those are f o r s t a t u t o r y 

u n i t s . That was my understanding i n my review of the law 

i n preparing f o r today, and I consulted w i t h s e veral 

d i f f e r e n t a t t o r n e y s . 

And my understanding i s t h a t u n i t i z a t i o n under 

t h i s r u l e r e l a t e s t o the s t a t u t e f o r s t a t u t o r y u n i t and not 

— i t doesn't s p e c i f y e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , t h a t the 

ex p l o r a t o r y u n i t phenomenon i s s p e c i f i c t o the BLM 

r e g u l a t i o n , c r e a t i o n , which then imposes upon OCD an 

o b l i g a t i o n of approval. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: For the past. 58 years, the 

OCD has been working w i t h e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , because t h i s 

r u l e was passed i n 1950 — 

MS. ALTOMARE: Right. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY; — and some of those very 

e a r l y u n i t cases, and cont i n u i n g through the years, d i d 

apply t o e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , and not ne c e s s a r i l y confined t o 
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secondary u n i t s . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I may be i n c o r r e c t , but I spent 

the l a s t several days speaking t o several d i f f e r e n t 

a t t o r n e y s , and nobody could t e l l me what r u l e i t was t h a t 

s p e c i f i e d i n the OCD Rules t h a t s p e c i f i c a l l y allowed f o r 

the c r e a t i o n and approval of e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , and I was 

i n s t r u c t e d t h a t t h i s r e l a t e d only t o s t a t u t o r y u n i t . 

So perhaps the Chairman can c l a r i f y t h a t . 

But I j u s t — I t h i n k t h a t there i s a tremendous 

amount of confusion about t h a t , so I don't know t h a t the 

record i s c l e a r . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Examiner — I mean — s o r r y , Mr. 

Chairman, i f — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I understand the confusion. 

MR. BRUCE: — i f I could j u s t throw i n my two 

cents' worth. 

I f t h a t r u l e was adopted i n 1950s, I would merely 

p o i n t out t h a t s t a t u t o r y u n i t i z a t i o n , the Act i t s e l f , was 

not adopted u n t i l the 1970s. Therefore, obviously the r u l e 

had t o do w i t h v o l u n t a r y u n i t s , e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s . 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay, then perhaps — perhaps I'm 

i n c o r r e c t , but — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, I'm of the op i n i o n 

t h a t the s t a t u t e allows us t o u n i t i z e p r o p e r t i e s only f o r 

purposes of enhancing secondary and t e r t i a r y recovery i n an 
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o i l r e s e r v o i r , and t h a t t h i s r u l e was i n place t o 

f a c i l i t a t e t h a t . 

I t ' s an i n t e r e s t i n g — Was the r u l e m o d i f i e d , or 

was the u n i t i z a t i o n r u l e not i n place a t a l l p r i o r t o — 

MR. BRUCE: And I w i l l be the f i r s t t o confess 

t h a t I too may be wrong, Mr. Chairman. 

But i f t h a t ' s the case then I would say, Why are 

we here today? Because c e r t a i n l y w i t h respect t o f e d e r a l 

u n i t s , the OCD never approves them, 100-percent f e d e r a l 

u n i t s . 

And when you come t o lands t h a t include s t a t e and 

— fee u n i t s t h a t include s t a t e and fee lands, r e a l l y , the 

way I read the r e g u l a t i o n s i s , i t ' s t o t a l l y a t the wish of 

the Land O f f i c e . NMAC 19.2.100.51 provides — subsection D 

provides w i t h respect t o u n i t agreements t h a t any d e c i s i o n 

of the Commissioner may be postponed, pending an a c t i o n by 

the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , but i t ' s not mandatory. And 

so — I don't t h i n k i t ' s mandatory i n any event. 

And r e a l l y , i t has j u s t become the p r a c t i c e of 

o i l and gas operators over the decades, whether a t the 

request of the Land Commissioner or simply j u s t out of 

h a b i t , t o seek expansion, t o seek u n i t — e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t 

approval or t o seek u n i t o r y s t a t u t e — excuse me, 

ex p l o r a t o r y u n i t expansion before the D i v i s i o n . 

But i f the D i v i s i o n i s saying there's no 
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r e g u l a t i o n t h a t i t has regarding e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s , then 

why don't we j u s t seek permission from the Land O f f i c e and 

the BLM f o r the expansion of the Bennett Ranch Unit? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k f o r — I t ' s a r e a l 

i n t e r e s t i n g question, because I t h i n k perhaps the Land 

O f f i c e and the BLM, through t h e i r orders, have e s t a b l i s h e d 

some s o r t of a u t h o r i t y i n the OCD. 

Now whether or not t h a t ' s a v a l i d extension of 

a u t h o r i t y , I don't know. But I t h i n k i t ' s a c o n d i t i o n of 

t h e i r permits — 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t i s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — t h e r e f o r e we are a c t i n g i n 

t h a t capacity, e s s e n t i a l l y advisory t o the BLM. 

MR. BRUCE: Well, and I w i l l again submit t h a t 

100-percent f e d e r a l u n i t s — I have never seen one approved 

by the D i v i s i o n . 

MS. ALTOMARE: But f o r those f e d e r a l u n i t s t h a t 

also cont a i n s t a t e lands, the f e d e r a l r e g u l a t i o n s convey 

upon the OCD an o b l i g a t i o n t o review and approve. And i t ' s 

from t h a t r e g u l a t i o n t h a t we end up here today. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k i t ' s very t e l l i n g , and 

I d i d not know t h a t the u n i t i z a t i o n s t a t u t e post-dates the 

u n i t i z a t i o n r u l e . 

MS. BADA: Because the u n i t i z a t i o n — i f I might 

i n t e r r u p t — u n i t i z a t i o n deals w i t h p r o r a t i o n , i t ' s not 
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e x p l o r a t o r y . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Uh-huh. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: But the only reason I know t h a t the 

S t a t u t o r y U n i t i z a t i o n Act post-dates t h a t r u l e i s d e a l i n g 

w i t h Mr. Carr, who I believe had a hand i n — 

(Laughter) 

MS. ALTOMARE: And he's not here t o defend h i s — 

(Laughter) 

MR. BRUCE: And he's only so o l d . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner B a i l e y , why don't 

we continue w i t h your question, given t h a t . . . 

Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) Okay. I n the study 

t h a t was given t o us as E x h i b i t B, the paper, O i l and Gas 

P o t e n t i a l of the Tularosa Basin — 

A. I beli e v e — excuse me, I be l i e v e t h a t was 

E x h i b i t A? 

MS. ALTOMARE: E x h i b i t B. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: E x h i b i t B. 

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) On page 3 0 and 31 th e r e 

are l i s t s of w e l l s t h a t have been d r i l l e d w i t h i n the 

Tularosa Basin-Otero p l a t f o r m - S a l t Basin graben area. 

Do you know of any contamination cases t h a t OCD 

i s d e a l i n g w i t h or has d e a l t w i t h from any of these w e l l s 
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t h a t were d r i l l e d p r i o r t o the cu r r e n t environmental 

p r o t e c t i o n t h a t i s required f o r d r i l l i n g of w e l l s r i g h t 

now? 

A. Commissioner Bailey, I am not f a m i l i a r w i t h any 

remediation cases i n the Otero Mesa area, and the answer 

would be, I don't know of any. 

Q. And these w e l l s would a l l have been d r i l l e d w i t h 

u n l i n e d d r i l l i n g p i t s , disposal probably i n t o u n l i n e d p i t s ? 

A. The older ones, I'm sure t h a t would have occurred 

i n some cases. 

Q. And i n f a c t , these papers brought out the f a c t — 

E x h i b i t A, page 8 — t h a t w e l l s are converted from o i l and 

gas e x p l o r a t i o n t o water w e l l s f o r ranchers out i n t h a t 

area? 

A. Yes, Commissioner, some water w e l l s have been — 

excuse me, some exp l o r a t o r y w e l l s have been turne d over t o 

surface owners f o r use as water w e l l s . 

Q. So c l e a r l y these o i l and gas w e l l s t h a t were 

converted d i d not contaminate the groundwater a q u i f e r , or 

else they would not be used as water w e l l s f o r human or 

stock use? 

A. Commissioner Bailey, I t h i n k my response would be 

t h a t there probably was a minor amount of contamination 

t h a t occurs when you penetrate a water-table a q u i f e r w i t h 

whatever f l u i d s , the casing, the cement program, but i t 
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1 would have been very c l o s e l y confined t o the we l l b o r e 

2 environment, unless i t got i n t o a f r a c t u r e . 

3 And the f a c t t h a t the o r i g i n a l w e llbores, when 

4 they were turned over t o the surface owners, you know, they 

5 probably d i d n ' t t e s t them t o determine i f t h e r e were any 

6 trace s of hydrocarbon, i f there were any other 

7 contaminants, but those would have probably cleaned up over 

8 time, i f they were there i n the f i r s t place. 

9 Q. And i n E x h i b i t A, page 99 and page 100 — page 

10 100, i f you place the Bennett Ranch Uni t on t h a t map, i t 

11 would be on the western edge of f r a c t u r e zone number 4? 

12 A. Commissioner, I'm not w i t h you. What was — 

13 Q. Okay, page 100 — 

14 A. This i s the 2004 — 

15 Q. — of your E x h i b i t A. 

16 A. Yes. Was t h a t a page number t h a t ' s an 

17 attachment? 

18 Q. I t ' s the page number t h a t ' s on the bottom of t h a t 

19 page, 100 of E x h i b i t A. 

20 A. Yes, ma'am, I see i t . 

21 Q. I f you draw a very rough c i r c l e of where the 

22 Bennett Ranch Uni t l i e s on t h a t map, i t would be on the 

23 western p o r t i o n of f r a c t u r e zone number 4, j u s t r i g h t on 

24 the Texas border. 

25 And then i f you look over on page 99, the f a c i n g 
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page, the l a s t p a r t of t h a t paragraph says, Zone 4 includes 

p r i m a r i l y the western Otero Meso and Diablo Plateau and i s 

cha r a c t e r i z e d by r e l a t i v e l y sparse f r a c t u r e s and no s i n g l e 

dominant f r a c t u r e o r i e n t a t i o n . 

So t h a t would confirm your comment a w h i l e ago 

t h a t — l e t ' s see what your quote was — t h a t t h e r e was 

very l i t t l e t o no f a u l t i n g on the Bennett Ranch Unit? 

A. I b e l i e v e t h a t ' s what i t says. 

However, i f we were t o r e f e r t o the 1995 

a p p l i c a t i o n by Heyco, they d i d provide a s t r u c t u r e contour 

map t h a t was approximately — a seismic s t r u c t u r e contour 

map a t the top of the Fusselman, and they d i d show a number 

of f r a c t u r e s . And those f r a c t u r e s , I b e l i e v e , are depicted 

on one of the PowerPoint s l i d e s t h a t I used. I t was the 

hydrogeologic cross-section B-B', which was Figure 4 of 

t h i s document. 

So t h i s study from whatever t h i s — t h i s guy was 

working on h i s PhD i n 1995. He may have been l o o k i n g a t — 

j u s t on the outcrop. And most of those f r a c t u r e s are — my 

understanding i s t h a t most of these f a u l t s and f r a c t u r e s 

would be bu r i e d by the Permian s e c t i o n , and t h a t the f a u l t s 

t h a t were depicted by Heyco were a c t u a l l y i n the pre-

Permian s e c t i o n , the Pennsylvanian and M i s s i s s i p p i a n , a l l 

the way through and i n f a c t i n t o basement. 

So there i s a buried f r a c t u r e and f a u l t system 
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t h a t may not have been observed by t h i s PhD candidate. 

Q. Well, l e t ' s go f a r t h e r back i n t o t h i s document, 

i n t o the a r t i c l e t h a t ' s stapled onto i t t h a t says Fracture 

c o n t r o l of r e g i o n a l ground-water flow i n a carbonate 

a q u i f e r i n a semi-arid region, by two other authors. And 

on page — and t h a t was published i n the GSA B u l l e t i n i n 

1998. And on page 277 — I ' l l w a i t f o r you t o get t h e r e . 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Okay, on the l e f t - h a n d side of page 277, under 

the heading, Fracture Geometry, the second paragraph says: 

F i r s t , except f o r the western Otero Mesa, the r e 

i s a strong p r e f e r r e d f r a c t u r e o r i e n t a t i o n . . . i n the 

western...Mesa... 

— which i s where the Bennett Ranch U n i t would be 

located — 

...there i s no s i n g l e dominant p r e f e r r e d o r i e n t a t i o n . 

Second, f r a c t u r e s are most abundant along the Otero 

Break... 

— but t h a t ' s f a r t o the n o r t h — 

...The s c a r c i t y of f r a c t u r e s i n the western Otero Mesa 
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may be l i t h o l o g i c a l l y c o n t r o l l e d . 

And then f a r t h e r on down on t h a t same page, same 

l e f t - h a n d side, the very l a s t three l i n e s , i t says: 

Domain 4... 

— which i s the same domain t h a t we were t a l k i n g about 

e a r l i e r — 

...includes the western Otero Mesa and Diablo 

Plateau and i s characterized by r e l a t i v e l y sparse 

f r a c t u r i n g . . . 

So those analyses are repeated several times by 

d i f f e r e n t authors through time. 

When Heyco submitted t h e i r i n f o r m a t i o n f o r the 

o r i g i n a l approval of the Bennett Ranch U n i t , they were 

r e l y i n g on 2-D seismic data. Do you have much experience 

w i t h 2-D seismic data? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Are you aware how dependent the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i s 

on the processing of t h a t data and who the person i s who 

analyzes i t , because i t i s as much of an a r t as a science? 

A. Yes, e s p e c i a l l y onshore, the data can be very 
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1 problematic. 

2 Q. Yes, t h a t ' s t r u e , which means t h a t — could I be 

3 le d t o be l i e v e t h a t t h e i r s u b m i t t a l a t the time of t h e i r 

4 a p p l i c a t i o n of the u n i t approval contained a great deal of 

5 spec u l a t i o n since they have not d r i l l e d a w e l l a t t h a t 

6 point? 

7 A. That was t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , based on t h e i r 

8 data set t h a t they had, and i t would c e r t a i n l y be t r u e t h a t 

9 other people would have a d i f f e r e n t i n t e r p r e t a t i o n l o o k i n g 

10 a t i t then and versus looking a t i t now, e s p e c i a l l y when 

11 they have two completed new w e l l s i n t h a t area. 

12 Q. But i t also shows t h a t i t would be s p e c u l a t i v e t o 

13 r e l y on i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t they supplied i n *95, before they 

14 d r i l l e d any w e l l s , and t h a t the w e l l s e i t h e r proved or 

15 disproved what t h e i r hopes and dreams were a t t h a t time? 

16 A. C e r t a i n l y they should — they — I b e l i e v e they 

17 mention t h a t . I t ' s a l l contingent upon what the next w e l l 

18 — what you l e a r n from the next w e l l , what t h e i r d r i l l i n g 

19 program would be, or development program would be. 

20 Q. That's r i g h t . So they can't answer any questions 

21 of where they w i l l go next, as they were asked e a r l i e r ? 

22 A. Commissioner Bailey, asked by whom? 

23 Q. I n cross-examination of t h e i r witnesses. 

24 A. (No response) 

25 Q. But aside from a l l of t h a t — because t h a t r e a l l y 
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i s o f f the subject of why we're here, i n my p o i n t of view, 

because we're here t o decide whether or not the a d d i t i o n of 

a l i t t l e over 1000 acres i s warranted under OCD Rules. 

And I have not heard whether or not t h i s 

a d d i t i o n a l acreage t h a t ' s i n question would have a 

de t r i m e n t a l e f f e c t on h e a l t h — human h e a l t h , the 

environment, e t ce te ra , i f those acres i n p a r t i c u l a r have 

something wrong w i t h them t h a t t h e i r a d d i t i o n t o the u n i t 

would be d e t r i m e n t a l t o those t h i n g s t h a t you are charged 

w i t h p r o t e c t i n g . 

A. I would agree w i t h t h a t statement. I t h i n k those 

are two separate issues. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: How nice of you t o admit 

t h a t . 

(Laughter) 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Thank you. 

Q. (By Commissioner Bailey) So t h i s case doesn't 

r e l y on w e l l designs or contamination or p o s s i b i l i t i e s , i t 

r e l i e s on whether or not these 1000 acres are i n any way 

de t r i m e n t a l t o the State of New Mexico i n being included i n 

t h i s u n i t ? 

A. Commissioner Bailey, t h i s i s an area beyond where 

I deal w i t h on a d a i l y basis. 

But as I understand i t , the OCD Hearing Examiners 

denied the A p p l i c a t i o n because they d i d not f e e l t h a t they 
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had been provided s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n t o make those 

thr e e determinations. 

Q. And can you say that you have see any evidence 

against enclosure of those acres, based on the impact that 

those additional acres would have on human health, et 

cetera? 

A. I have not seen Heyco's e x h i b i t s t h a t document 

why the u n i t expansion should be approved. I have not seen 

— we do not have any evidence t h a t would c o n c l u s i v e l y show 

one way or the other. 

I j u s t t h i n k t h a t the D i v i s i o n wasn't provided 

w i t h the i n f o r m a t i o n i t f e l t i t needed, the Hearing 

Examiners needed i n 2007. 

Q. I s there any p u b l i c a t i o n or g u i d e l i n e s or any 

guidance f o r i n d u s t r y t o r e l y on when i t comes t o t h i s k i n d 

of a case? 

A. Not t h a t I'm aware of. 

Q. So OCD doesn't have any g u i d e l i n e s f o r them t o 

use i n t h e i r p r e s e n t a t i o n of the case? 

A. Commissioner Bailey, I'm not a Hearing Examiner 

and I don't serve i n t h a t capacity, so I don't know the 

answer t o t h a t question. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Thank you. That's a l l I 

have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson? 
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EXAMINATION 

BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

Q. Well, I ' l l f o l l o w up on t h a t a l i t t l e b i t , 

because t h a t ' s been the p o i n t t h a t ' s been confusing me, 

t h a t we don't have any process f o r t h i s , and i t seems t o me 

t h a t the concerns t h a t you're r a i s i n g are issues t h a t are 

d e a l t w i t h i n the APDs; i s n ' t t h a t c o r r e c t ? For p r o t e c t i o n 

of f r e s h waters? Not j u s t the idea t h a t we have a u n i t 

t h a t may or may not have o i l or gas i n i t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t , the APDs must s p e c i f y a casing 

program, and t h a t casing program should be p r o t e c t i v e of 

shallow groundwater, or deeper groundwater. And t h a t i s 

c o r r e c t , i t should be a p a r t of the APD. 

Q. Because I also got t h a t from the prehearing 

statement t h a t the D i v i s i o n f i l e d . I go back t o the l a s t 

— the l a s t paragraph. The D i v i s i o n — and t h i s i s even 

proposing the — i f the Commission's i n c l i n e d t o grant i t , 

t h a t the D i v i s i o n — or t h a t Heyco be r e q u i r e d t o o b t a i n 

formal approval v i a hearing i n f r o n t of the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n on w e l l s f o r APDs. 

So i t seems t o me t h a t there i s some acceptable 

mechanism here t h a t the D i v i s i o n was o f f e r i n g as an 

a l t e r n a t i v e . Did I understand t h a t c o r r e c t l y ? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t p a r t i c u l a r p a r t of the 

prehearing statement by Ms. Altomare. 
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Q. Well, I guess, wouldn't through the APD process 

be the place t h a t we would look a t whether or not we'd 

approve an APD, based upon i t s p r o t e c t i o n of the issues 

t h a t you're b r i n g i n g up here, such as p r o t e c t i o n of f r e s h 

waters? 

A. That would c e r t a i n l y be a p a r t of i t , yes, 

Commissioner. Yes. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no questions. 

Ms. Altomare, do you have a r e d i r e c t ? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Just a couple of t h i n g s t o c l a r i f y , acknowledging 

t h a t there's a l o t of confusion about the — what e x a c t l y 

we're doing i n t h i s process and what guidance A p p l i c a n t 

should get. 

I n s u b m i t t i n g an a p p l i c a t i o n , don't you t h i n k 

t h a t i t ' s a commonsense standard t h a t i f an a p p l i c a n t i s 

su b m i t t i n g an a p p l i c a t i o n asking f o r a p a r t i c u l a r r e l i e f , 

t h a t they submit evidence and data adequate t o support the 

r e l i e f they're asking for? 

A. I do bel i e v e t h a t t o be the case g e n e r a l l y . I f I 

were a Hearing Examiner and someone were t o come forward 

w i t h me and I were t o look through the case f i l e and f i n d 

out t h a t they're submitting less i n f o r m a t i o n than they had 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



159 

submitted p r e v i o u s l y , I would be very curious as t o why 

t h a t was. 

Q. And — 

A. My experience i s , I always want t o see a map and 

a c r o s s - s e c t i o n . 

Q. And i n t h i s case, do you t h i n k the A p p l i c a n t has 

met i t s burden of submitting the data r e q u i r e d t o j u s t i f y 

what they're asking for? 

A. My review of the case of 2007 before the Hearing 

Examiners, I d i d n ' t see any e x h i b i t s there t h a t made t h e i r 

case f o r them. I don't see t h a t E x h i b i t 8 of Heyco today 

makes t h e i r case f o r them. 

To me, i t was somewhat f r u s t r a t i n g t o review. I 

wasn't sure where t h i s cross-section was. There was no 

index map associated w i t h i t , there was no o r i e n t a t i o n , 

t h e r e was no h o r i z o n t a l scale, there were no f a u l t s — 

p r e v i o u s l y they had f a u l t s i n the area — and t h e r e was no 

i n d i c a t i o n of where the w e l l s were d r i l l e d on t h a t 

s t r u c t u r e . 

So I t h i n k t h a t i t could have been — and should 

have been prepared d i f f e r e n t l y and b e t t e r . 

Q. And i s i t your understanding t h a t the burden i s 

on the A p p l i c a n t t o provide the evidence t o j u s t i f y the 

expansion, or i s the burden on the D i v i s i o n t o prove why 

the expansion shouldn't be granted? 
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A. I be l i e v e i t ' s the burden of the A p p l i c a n t . 

Q. And the only other t h i n g I wanted t o c l a r i f y i s , 

the r e was some comparison made between t h i s area and the 

San Juan Basin. From a ge o l o g i c a l and h y d r o l o g i c a l 

perspective, are these two areas analogous? 

A. I t h i n k they're d i f f e r e n t . 

Q. Okay, and how are they d i f f e r e n t ? 

A. Well, f i r s t o f f , the San Juan Basin i s b a s i c a l l y 

a sandy shale c l a s t i c basin, and t h i s i s carbonate — 

bedrock carbonate a q u i f e r s . 

There appears t o be — a t l e a s t i n the S a l t Basin 

r e g i o n , e s p e c i a l l y i n the Otero Breaks, there's a gre a t 

deal of f a u l t i n g , which seems t o c o n t r o l the r e g i o n a l 

groundwater flow. That f a u l t i n g i s not as intense t o the 

west, and i t i s n ' t as intense west of the Cornudas 

Mountains, f o r whatever reason. 

So I t h i n k t h a t you can see some s t r u c t u r a l 

d i f f e r e n c e s , and some — A c t u a l l y what would be the a q u i f e r 

m a t e r i a l would be q u i t e d i f f e r e n t . I t would be a sandy 

a q u i f e r i n the San Juan Basin, and i t would be a carbonate 

a q u i f e r here. 

Q. Do you see the same ki n d of v a r i a b i l i t y and 

s i g n i f i c a n t f a u l t i n g i n the San Juan Basin t h a t you see i n 

the Otero Mesa? 

A. No, i t ' s not as f a u l t e d as t h i s area appears t o 
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be. 

Q. And i f you know, what are the — do people — do 

operators tend t o d r i l l w i t h the same kinds of chemicals, 

same types of d r i l l i n g f l u i d s i n the San Juan Basin as they 

do i n the southern p a r t of the state? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h the mud programs i n e i t h e r 

basin. 

Q. Okay. Would you say t h a t — How would you 

compare the v u l n e r a b i l i t y f o r contamination, based on the 

p e r m e a b i l i t y between the San Juan Basin and the Otero Mesa 

area? 

A. I would have t o go and do a l i t t l e research on 

t h a t . Again, I t h i n k t h a t there are c e r t a i n l y some 

vuln e r a b l e areas, there's more surface drainage, there's 

more surface water i n the San Juan Basin. 

I n the Otero Mesa I don't t h i n k i t ' s as w e l l 

known what the p o t e n t i a l r i s k s are t o the water t a b l e 

a q u i f e r . I t appears t o be q u i t e deep i n some areas. 

However, the State Engineer has made some c a l c u l a t i o n s t h a t 

t h i s i s , you know, a very valuable resource t o the State of 

New Mexico. 

Q. But the issues are d i f f e r e n t , a f f e c t i n g the two 

areas? 

A. I t h i n k they're d i f f e r e n t on a t e c h n i c a l basis, 

but I t h i n k t h a t b a s i c a l l y groundwater i s pr o t e c t e d i n the 
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San Juan Basin and i t ' s p rotected i n the Otero Mesa area i n 

the S a l t Basin. 

Q. Okay. And t o your knowledge, i s anybody using 

the water from the Sa l t Basin a q u i f e r as a domestic water 

source a t t h i s point? 

A. I bel i e v e I d i d read t h a t t h e r e are a number of 

domestic, but p r i m a r i l y I believe i t ' s l i v e s t o c k . 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay, I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, any recross on 

those subjects? 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BRUCE: 

Q. Mr. von Gonten, you t e s t i f i e d about E x h i b i t 8, 

but you're not q u a l i f i e d as an expert petroleum g e o l o g i s t , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. No, I'm not. 

Q. And then you discussed the burden of proof. I f 

i t ' s up t o the Applicant t o prove i t s case, why i s the 

D i v i s i o n here opposing t h i s ? 

A. The D i v i s i o n i s opposing i t because our Hearing 

Examiners made a determination t h a t Heyco had not provided 

an adequate amount of inf o r m a t i o n , and we s t i l l m a intain 

t h a t . 

Q. And many cases are — Can you name me another 

case where the D i v i s i o n denied anything, where the D i v i s i o n 
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appeared i n op p o s i t i o n t o the Applicant? 

A. I'm not f a m i l i a r w i t h t h a t . As I s a i d , t h i s i s 

my f i r s t experience w i t h one of these appeals. 

Q. I s n ' t i t e s s e n t i a l l y because the Energy and 

Minerals Department opposes any development on the Otero 

Mesa? 

A. Not t h a t I know of. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I'd l i k e t o c l a r i f y something. I n 

the prehearing statement I t h i n k i t was e x p l i c i t l y s t a t e d 

t h a t the D i v i s i o n cannot support the A p p l i c a t i o n unless and 

u n t i l adequate i n f o r m a t i o n t o support and j u s t i f y the 

proposed expansion i s presented. I t was never e x p l i c i t l y 

s t a t e d t h a t we f l a t l y oppose the d r i l l i n g program t h a t i s 

proposed f o r t h i s area. 

So j u s t f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n purposes... 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Well, l e t Mr. Bruce — Mr. 

Bruce, are you fin i s h e d ? 

Q. (By Mr. Bruce) Mr. von Gonten, are you f a m i l i a r 

w i t h the l e t t e r t h a t the Secretary of the Energy, Minerals 

and Natural Resources Department wrote t o the BLM January 

of t h i s year? 

A. No, s i r . 

MR. BRUCE: You're not. 

That's a l l I have, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything f u r t h e r from the 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



164 

1 Commission? 

2 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: No. 

3 You're not f a m i l i a r w i t h the l e t t e r e i t h e r , huh? 

4 COMMISSIONER OLSON: Well, no, I was coming back 

5 quest i o n i n g , I guess, some of the l i n e of que s t i o n i n g t h a t 

6 was going on here. 

7 FURTHER EXAMINATION 

8 BY COMMISSIONER OLSON: 

9 Q. I t seems t o me — You were here f o r the testimony 

10 t h i s morning from the Heyco witnesses, c o r r e c t ? 

11 A. I was here f o r the testimony t h i s morning, yes. 

12 Q. And maybe I've got t h i s wrong, but i t was my 

13 impression t h a t r e a l l y the only reason f o r expansion of the 

14 u n i t , t h a t I can see, i s t h a t i t preserves t h e i r leases; i s 

15 t h a t — Did you hear t h a t the same way I did? 

16 A. I heard t h a t t h i s morning, t h a t t h a t was p a r t of 

17 the reason f o r asking f o r i t . 

18 Q. So i f they need t o preserve t h e i r leases j u s t by 

19 the expansion, does t h a t — doesn't r e a l l y go towards the 

20 geology, hydrology or other issues — 

21 A. That would seem — 

22 Q. — j u s t p reservation of a lease? 

23 A. That would p r o t e c t t h e i r land p o s i t i o n , i t 

24 appears t o me. 

25 COMMISSIONER OLSON: A l l r i g h t . Okay, t h a t ' s a l l 
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I have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 

Q. Mr. von Gonten, what e x a c t l y was l a c k i n g i n the 

A p p l i c a t i o n t h a t Heyco made, the reason t h a t t he Examiners 

turned i t down? 

A. I'm not i n t i m a t e l y involved w i t h the Hearing 

O f f i c e r s ' decision-making, but when I was asked t o review 

i t I came away w i t h the conclusion t h a t they d i d n ' t 

a c t u a l l y demonstrate, as I mentioned, w i t h maps and cross-

sections why they needed t h a t n o r t h area extension and the 

a d d i t i o n a l 1000-plus acres. 

Q. I s t h a t the only d e f i c i e n c y t h a t you i d e n t i f i e d ? 

A. That was the one t h a t was the show-stopper f o r 

me. 

Q. And what reason would they need t o — why don't 

you give me some examples of reasons t h a t they would need 

t o — of what they would need t o prove, i n order f o r t h a t 

t o be approved by the OCD? 

A. The th i n g s t h a t I would — I'm not a Hearing 

Examiner, and t h i s i s a b i t beyond my area of e x p e r t i s e . 

Looking a t i t as a ge o l o g i s t w i t h some f a m i l i a r i t y of o i l 

and gas e x p l o r a t i o n , what I was l e f t t h i n k i n g t h a t the 

A p p l i c a t i o n was d e f i c i e n t i n was j u s t documenting t h a t 

t h e r e was a c t u a l l y a need t o move f u r t h e r t o the n o r t h , 
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t h a t they would, i n f a c t , have any produc t i o n t h a t extended 

t h a t f a r t o the no r t h . 

The d e t a i l s of u n i t i z a t i o n are something I'm not 

f a m i l i a r w i t h . 

Q. Do you t h i n k i t was s u f f i c i e n t w i t h respect t o 

the lands around the border on the east and west sides? 

A. I have no questions or issues w i t h the 

pr e s e n t a t i o n by Heyco's landman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Ms. Altomare, anything else? 

MS. ALTOMARE: (Shakes head) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce? 

MR. BRUCE: I have nothing f u r t h e r , Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioners? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Nothing. 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: No. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. von Gonten. 

Mr. Bruce, do you have a closing? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, I do, Mr. Chairman, and I r e a l l y 

don't want t o beat a dead horse here, but t h i s goes back t o 

the p o i n t of c l a r i f i c a t i o n . 

Ms. Altomare requested the i n c o r p o r a t i o n of the 

e n t i r e f i l e , and t h a t ' s when she was presenting the form of 

the u n i t agreement. And t h a t came from the o r i g i n a l case, 

11,394, and I j u s t wanted t o c l a r i f y w i t h the Commission 
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t h a t the e n t i r e record from t h a t case would be incorpo r a t e d 

i n t o the record. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And you're asking — 

MR. BRUCE: I would ask — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — the Commission t o take 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e notice? 

MR. BRUCE: Yes, s i r . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And I t h i n k we've done t h a t . 

MR. BRUCE: Okay. I j u s t wasn't sure whether i t 

was j u s t w i t h respect t o t h a t one document or not. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I t h i n k a t your request w e ' l l 

take a d m i n i s t r a t i v e n o t i c e of the e n t i r e f i l e . 

MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, Ms. Altomare t a l k e d 

about the f e d e r a l r e g u l a t i o n s and about the for m a t i o n of a 

l o g i c a l u n i t . I t seems t o me t h a t the BLM has already made 

t h a t d e c i s i o n t h a t t h i s i s a l o g i c a l u n i t , the u n i t as 

expanded, and I t h i n k t h a t ' s a s t a r t i n g p o i n t . 

And furthermore, the u n i t agreement as expanded 

includes a l l leases and conforms t o Heyco's proposal, 

accepted by the BLM and the Land O f f i c e , t o have one w e l l 

per 640 acres. 

Yes, i t ' s p a r t l y a land d e c i s i o n . There's no 

question about t h a t . But i t c e r t a i n l y makes f o r a l o g i c a l 

u n i t and o r d e r l y development. 

And when you get down t o i t , when you look a t the 
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r e g u l a t i o n s , whether they're State Land O f f i c e r e g u l a t i o n s , 

D i v i s i o n Regulations, BLM r e g u l a t i o n s or the p e r t i n e n t 

s t a t u t e s , what they t a l k about f i r s t and foremost i s 

o r d e r l y development of the acreage. And t h a t i s e x a c t l y 

what Heyco i s t r y i n g t o do w i t h the expanded u n i t . 

Furthermore, under Heyco's proposal t h e r e w i l l be 

less surface use than under i t s o r i g i n a l proposal. I 

r e a l l y have a hard time seeing what i s the harm i n 

expanding the u n i t . As a matter of f a c t , i t w i l l b e n e f i t 

the working i n t e r e s t owners, i t w i l l b e n e f i t the l e s s o r s , 

i t w i l l b e n e f i t the surface i t s e l f because t h e r e w i l l be 

less surface use. There w i l l be o r d e r l y development of the 

u n i t , t h e r e w i l l be c e n t r a l i z e d f a c i l i t i e s , c e n t r a l i z e d 

management of the u n i t , and t h a t ' s what e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s 

are formed f o r . 

Furthermore, when i t comes t o the geology, I 

t h i n k Mr. Yahney has adequately described what t h e i r 

t a r g e t s are i n t h a t there i s a t l e a s t a reasonable 

expec t a t i o n t h a t the acreage on the n o r t h side of the u n i t 

w i l l be, or could be, productive. 

But once again, we get back t o development, 

e x p l o r a t i o n , has been forbidden f o r seven years now. And 

u n t i l t h a t e x p l o r a t i o n i s allowed t o move forward, there's 

no sense, c e r t a i n l y i n c o n t r a c t i n g the u n i t , but i t r e a l l y 

makes f o r sense i n expanding the u n i t . 
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I n s o f a r as c o n t r a c t i o n goes, t h a t ' s governed by 

the u n i t agreement i t s e l f . A f t e r the f i v e - y e a r p e r i o d , as 

i t ' s been extended due t o the RMP process, e t c e t e r a , t h e r e 

w i l l be expansion. 

Now some issue has been made about, w e l l , i t ' s 

only t o extend the leases. The f a c t of the matter i s , the 

leases t h a t w i l l be included i n the expanded u n i t area are 

new leases. There are no deadlines a t t h i s p o i n t f o r the 

development of those leases. They are k i n d of tagged along 

w i t h the u n i t agreement and the formation of PAs, but a t 

t h i s p o i n t those leases aren't i n danger of e x p i r i n g . 

So t h a t i s a red h e r r i n g , i t ' s a f a l s e lead. 

There's no need t o b r i n g those leases i n t o the u n i t t o 

extend t h e i r terms, because they already have s u f f i c i e n t 

terms remaining i n them f o r e x p l o r a t i o n and development. 

Once again, I r e i t e r a t e t h a t w i t h respect t o the 

p r o t e c t i o n of any waters t h a t are found i n t h i s area, 

t h a t ' s a well-design issue, not a unit-expansion issue. 

And as our witnesses t e s t i f i e d , t here i s a process, t h e r e 

i s an APD before the BLM a t t h i s p o i n t , and t h a t ' s where 

t h a t should be decided. 

Next, c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . I t ' s a non-issue. As 

the o r i g i n a l u n i t agreement — order approving the u n i t 

agreement provided, what they were l o o k i n g a t was 

p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s outs- — i n s i d e the u n i t . 

STEVEN T. 
(505) 

BRENNER, CCR 
989-9317 



170 

Now a l l of a sudden i t ' s become expanded t o outsid e the 

u n i t . But the f a c t of the matter i s , i t ' s a l l f e d e r a l and 

s t a t e land. The f e d e r a l government and the s t a t e 

government, i f they see a problem w i t h respect t o 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , could lease t h e i r lands t o p r o t e c t 

t h e i r c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . They've already approved the 

u n i t expansion. That's a non-issue. 

I n s o f a r as spacing goes, a witness has sa i d , 

Well, they're not r e a l l y averse t o 640-acre spacing. But 

the f a c t of the matter i s , a t t h i s p o i n t w i t h no produc t i o n 

t h a t ' s not a p r i o r i t y . I t ' s not a p r i o r i t y . Who cares a t 

t h i s p o i n t what the spacing i s going t o be, u n t i l they can 

produce the w e l l s and at t h a t p o i n t get more information? 

Now i f the D i v i s i o n i s worried about p r o t e c t i o n 

of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s outside the u n i t , they could probably 

e s t a b l i s h a 1650-foot b u f f e r zone around the e x t e r i o r of 

the u n i t . Big deal. That's f i n e . But don't use t h a t as a 

reason t o deny u n i t expansion, because once again t h a t ' s a 

f a l s e issue. 

Ms. Altomare also r a i s e d — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Hold on — 

MR. BRUCE: — economics. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — j u s t a minute. Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: I've been doing t h i s f o r 25 years. 

I've never seen the D i v i s i o n ever demand any economics f o r 
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an e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t , period. 

C e r t a i n l y on the Hueco South U n i t — and I can 

provide the order, i f you f o l k s so d e s i r e , Order Number 

R-12,841 — no economics were demanded f o r the fo r m a t i o n of 

an 80,000 u n i t — 80,000-acre u n i t . 

And i f you go through the record i n t h a t case, 

the geology presented d i d n ' t prove t h a t the e n t i r e u n i t 

would be productive. They hope i t i s . 

But t h a t ' s not the issue. I t ' s t o agglomerate 

lands f o r o r d e r l y development of r e s e r v o i r s which may be 

discovered. 

And again, i n t h a t order, f i n d i n g paragraph 3.F, 

i t t a l k s about gathering i n f o r m a t i o n t o i d e n t i f i c a t i o n of 

f r e s h waters and w e l l s and d r i l l i n g operations w i l l be 

designed i n order t o p r o t e c t and preserve these waters. 

That's p e r f e c t l y f i n e , but t h a t ' s no reason t o h o l d up 

expansion of the u n i t area. 

F i n a l l y , we get t o the issue of h e a l t h and human 

environment. Even the D i v i s i o n ' s witness can't say how 

expansion of the u n i t would harm t h a t . That wasn't — once 

again, wasn't an issue i n the Hueco South U n i t . 

There are other u n i t s t h a t the approved before. 

Cottonwood Canyon U n i t , over i n western New Mexico, west 

c e n t r a l New Mexico, Catron County, 90,000-acre u n i t . 

Health and human environment never came up. Why i s i t 
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here? I t ' s not an issue f o r u n i t expansion. Now c e r t a i n l y 

everybody i n t h i s room wants t o p r o t e c t h e a l t h and human 

environment, but t h a t has nothing t o do w i t h expanding the 

siz e of the u n i t . 

I f a i l t o see the problem. This expansion w i l l 

lead t o less surface use, i t w i l l lead t o o r d e r l y 

development of the u n i t . And who knows? Because 

p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas are formed based on what i s reasonably 

p r o d u c t i v e , i t doesn't r e q u i r e one w e l l t o be d r i l l e d every 

64 0 acres; i t only requires development up t o the p o i n t 

where p a r t i c i p a t i n g areas are formed around reasonably 

p r o d u c t i v e areas, and t h a t does not r e q u i r e one w e l l every 

4 0 acres. 

I don't even know why we're here today. This 

u n i t should be expanded without question. 

Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Just b r i e f l y . 

I t h i n k why we're here today i s because operators 

have g o t t e n i n the h a b i t of f i l i n g a p p l i c a t i o n s and not 

supporting t h e i r request w i t h documentation. 

For whatever reason, t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n was 

submitted w i t h f a r less i n f o r m a t i o n than was needed f o r the 

D i v i s i o n t o pro p e r l y review i t and approve i t . A whole l o t 

more i n f o r m a t i o n came t o f r u i t i o n a t t h i s hearing than was 
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ever presented t o the D i v i s i o n a t the previous hearing or 

through any other transmission of documents p r i o r t o t h i s 

date. 

Bottom l i n e i s t h a t operators must submit 

s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n and s u f f i c i e n t evidence t o support 

anything t h a t they're requesting t h i s Department gr a n t . 

And unless and u n t i l t h a t data i s submitted, those requests 

don't — should not be granted. 

And i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case, the i n f o r m a t i o n 

simply was not forthcoming. A whole l o t of i n f o r m a t i o n 

came out du r i n g the process of the d r i l l i n g of those t h r e e 

w e l l s , between the i n i t i a l g r a n t i n g of the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r 

the o r i g i n a l u n i t and the A p p l i c a t i o n f o r the expansion, 

and y e t none of t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n was included i n the 

A p p l i c a t i o n f o r the expansion t h a t was presented. We had 

very l i t t l e t o go on t o j u s t i f y — t o f i g u r e out why i t was 

t h a t they wanted t o expand i n t o the northern p a r t . 

Granted, some of the i n f o r m a t i o n has been 

v e r b a l l y provided today, but we s t i l l have not been 

presented w i t h adequate i n f o r m a t i o n . 

I n a d d i t i o n , I understand t h a t they're arguing 

t h a t the f r a c t u r i n g and the f a u l t i n g l a r g e l y occurs below 

where the groundwater, you know, i s a t r i s k and t h a t k i n d 

of t h i n g . 

But, you know, the bottom l i n e i s , i f they're 
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arguing t h a t t h i s area i s so permeable t h a t t hey're going 

t o be able t o use 640-acre spacing and d r a i n i t i n t h a t 

k i n d of a fashion, t h a t same dynamic i s going t o create a 

vulnerable — a v u l n e r a b i l i t y t h a t the D i v i s i o n and the 

Commission needs t o be aware of and a t l e a s t consider. 

Granted, i t may be more appropriate t o consider i t i n more 

d e t a i l a t the APD process, but a t l e a s t i t should be 

considered a t t h i s stage. And, you know, i t wouldn't h u r t 

t o submit i n f o r m a t i o n t o provide the D i v i s i o n w i t h 

assurances t h a t when the time comes, the d r i l l i n g program 

t h a t i s put i n t o place w i l l adequately address those 

issues. 

You know, there's been some co n t e n t i o n t h a t we 

have not been able t o show t h a t the expansion of the u n i t 

w i l l cause harm. That's not our burden. Their burden i s 

t o show t h a t there's j u s t i f i c a t i o n f o r expansion of the 

u n i t . And f r a n k l y , there j u s t hasn't been enough 

i n f o r m a t i o n f o r anybody t o hang t h e i r hat on. 

That's e s s e n t i a l l y where we stand a t t h i s p o i n t . 

I t ' s not t h a t we bar none are co n t e s t i n g or opposing the 

A p p l i c a t i o n , i t ' s t h a t we were given a very small packet of 

m a t e r i a l . 

1 And I t h i n k the Hearing Examiners f e l t the same 

way a t the underlying hearing. There was very l i t t l e 

evidence t h a t was presented t o j u s t i f y what was being 
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requested, and they had concerns. And they l a i d out those 

concerns i n t h a t order i n a very o r d e r l y f a s h i o n , and s t i l l 

none of the documentation was forthcoming. 

So t h a t ' s the f r u s t r a t i o n , I t h i n k , and t h a t i s 

why we're here, coupled w i t h the f a c t t h a t the OCD Rules 

are not t e r r i b l y c l e a r as t o what the dynamic i s f o r these 

e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s . 

But f o r b e t t e r or worse, the OCD has been brought 

i n t o t h i s process and has been asked t o render some k i n d of 

an o p i n i o n . I would submit t h a t the f a c t t h a t we are being 

brought i n , t h a t the Commission and the D i v i s i o n are being 

asked t o render an opinion, means t h a t we have something t o 

c o n t r i b u t e t h a t the other agencies do not, and t h a t means 

t h a t we apply our standards. And those are the tasks t h a t 

are before us. And t h a t includes the p r o t e c t i o n of human 

h e a l t h and the environment, as w e l l as preve n t i o n of waste 

and p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s . 

And whether or not the agreement r e f e r s t o only 

p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s w i t h i n the boundaries of 

the u n i t , the OCD i s not l i m i t e d by t h a t . P r o t e c t i o n of 

c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s i n general i s p a r t of i t s burden t o 

assess. 

So t h a t being said, I don't t h i n k t h a t t h e r e has 

been s u f f i c i e n t i n f o r m a t i o n submitted t o j u s t i f y t he 

expansion of the u n i t , p a r t i c u l a r l y i n t o the northern p a r t . 
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I f however, the Commission disagrees and does grant the 

expansion of the u n i t , the Commission — the D i v i s i o n would 

ask t h a t Heyco be the — required t o f o r m a l l y seek APD 

approval through a hearing process w i t h a Hearing Examiner 

w i t h the D i v i s i o n f o r the continued d r i l l i n g i n t h i s u n i t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Bruce, d i d I understand i n 

your c l o s i n g you said t h a t the leases are not i n danger of 

exp i r i n g ? 

MR. BRUCE: Well, I ' d have t o confirm t h a t , but 

at t h i s p o i n t there's several years. The f e d e r a l leases 

have 10-year primary terms, State of New Mexico leases have 

f i v e - y e a r primary terms. 

And those leases — i t would be i n the e x h i b i t — 

the dates of those leases would be i n E x h i b i t 5, which i s 

the approval of the BLM. There's a new E x h i b i t B t o the 

u n i t agreement attached. 

And — I don't have them a l l , Mr. Examiner, but 

t h i n k i f you look a t s t a t e lands — Tract 11a i s l i s t e d i n 

t h i s document as unleased, but as Mr. Dyer t e s t i f i e d , t h a t 

was a recent — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Right. 

MR. BRUCE: — s t a t e lease w i t h a f i v e - y e a r term. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 

MR. BRUCE: Or i s i t f e d e r a l w i t h a 10-year term? 

No. 
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MR. DYER: I t ' s f i v e . 

MR. BRUCE: Five. And some of the others have 

been issued — I won't say immediate, but obviously t h e r e 

are s t i l l a couple of years l e f t i n the s t a t e lease terms, 

I b e l i e v e , I'm not sure. And i n the f e d e r a l acreage they 

have 10-year primary terms. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Commissioner B a i l e y had 

something t o add. 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Just t o c o r r e c t something, 

those are 10-year leases — 

MR. BRUCE: Oh, the s t a t e — 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: — on the s t a t e those 

are — 

MR. BRUCE: — on the s t a t e , oh — 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: — because of — 

MR. BRUCE: — because of t h e i r — the — 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: — which makes i t a 10-

year . 

MR. BRUCE: They're the — t h a t ' s the — the 

form, I'm so r r y , I'm used t o dealing w i t h — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And she would know. 

MR. BRUCE: And she would know, much more than 

me. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Rather than d e l i b e r a t i n g on 

t h i s r i g h t now, I'm going t o propose something t o the 
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Commissioners. 

There are two questions t h a t — I need some 

advice, perhaps, on t h i s , but there are two questions t h a t 

need t o be — a t l e a s t two questions, maybe t h r e e . 

What i s the a u t h o r i t y of the OCD t o grant or 

approve e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s ? 

What should be the c r i t e r i a under the O i l and Gas 

Act f o r such a decision? 

And what should the a p p l i c a t i o n include? 

And I was going t o propose t h a t we continue t h i s 

case u n t i l the next r e g u l a r l y scheduled meeting and ask the 

atto r n e y s t o b r i e f those three questions, because I don't 

t h i n k we can make t h i s d ecision w i t h o u t an understanding of 

what's — or a t l e a s t a v a l i d o u t l i n e of what our p o s i t i o n s 

— or what our choices would be, or what the answers t o 

those questions would be. 

Commissioner Bailey, would you be opposed t o 

tha t ? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: What were the three? The 

r o l e of the OCD and t h i s process — 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What i s the a u t h o r i t y of the 

OCD t o grant or approve e x p l o r a t o r y u n i t s ? 

What should be the c r i t e r i a under the O i l and Gas 

Act f o r such a decision? 

And what should the a p p l i c a t i o n include? 
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1 This de c i s i o n t h a t we're making i s l i a b l e t o be 

2 precedent - s e t t i n g , and I would l i k e t o — Counsel Bada, 

3 does t h i s — 

4 COMMISSIONER OLSON: So you're asking f o r l e g a l 

5 b r i e f s , e s s e n t i a l l y , from the — 

6 MS. ALTOMARE: You're asking us t o work? 

7 COMMISSIONER OLSON: — p a r t i e s ? 

8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Legal b r i e f s , and be prepared 

9 t o argue i t a t the next r e g u l a r l y scheduled meeting. 

10 MS. ALTOMARE: When i s the next Commission 

11 meeting? 

12 MS. DAVIDSON: June 17th [ s i c ] . 

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: June 17th? 

14 MR. BRUCE: Five weeks. That's an e t e r n i t y f o r 

15 me. 

16 (Laughter) 

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Does t h a t mean you can get i t 

18 done? 

19 MR. BRUCE: I ' l l do my best. 

20 MS. ALTOMARE: So we have t o — a week ahead of 

21 time? 

22 MR. BRUCE: Do we have t o — yeah, t h a t was the 

23 question, should we f i l e them a week ahead of time. 

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: They should be f i l e d , as would 

25 any other p r e t r i a l statement. And t h a t ' s what, f o u r — or 
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Thursday before the meeting? 

MR. BRUCE: That would be f i n e . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s t h a t acceptable, Ms. 

Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I s t h a t acceptable t o the 

Commission? 

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Yes, i t i s . 

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes, i t i s . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So w i t h t h a t — I s t h a t 

acceptable t o counsel? 

MS. BADA: (Nods) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: With t h a t , we w i l l continue 

t h i s hearing t o the next r e g u l a r l y scheduled OCD — OCC 

meeting, t o be held June 17th i n t h i s room. Okay? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Counsel f o r the Commission i s j u s t 

happy t h a t she doesn't have t o research. 

(Laughter) 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay, the next case before the 

Commission i s — 

MS. BADA: The only t h i n g counsel f o r the 

Commission i s ab s o l u t e l y convinced about i s our r u l e s and 

our s t a t u t e are absolutely s i l e n t . 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yeah — 

MS. ALTOMARE: Yes. 
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: — and t h i s w i l l be a 

prec e d e n t - s e t t i n g d e c i s i o n , so I'm hoping t h a t the — t h a t 

you a l l w i l l answer the question f o r us r e a l — 

MR. BRUCE: May we a l l be excused, Mr. Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, s i r . 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: As i f i t made a d i f f e r e n c e , 

Mr. Bruce. I missed t h a t noon plane. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

2:33 p.m.) 

* * * 
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